Unrestricted Document Pack

Xl
MALDON DISTRICT
COUNCIL
APOLOGIES Committee Services DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY,
Email: Committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk PERFORMANCE AND
GOVERNANCE
Paul Dodson

29 June 2022

Dear Councillor

You are summoned to attend the meeting of the;

COUNCIL

on WEDNESDAY 6 JULY 2022 at 7.30 pm

in the Council Chamber, Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon.

Please Note: All meetings will continue to be live streamed on the Council’'s YouTube channel for

those wishing to observe remotely. As well as physical attendance Public participants wishing to
speak remotely at a meeting can continue to do so via Microsoft Teams.

To submit a question in writing please complete the Public Access form (to be received no later than
12noon two clear working days before the Council meeting). All requests will be considered on a
first-come, first-served basis.

A copy of the agenda is attached.

Yours faithfully

[y

Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance

B2 disability
B confident

COMMITTED

Please note: Electronic copies of this agenda and its related papers
are available via the Council's website www.maldon.gov.uk.



http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/watchlive
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=VH_RilQmuUumwvI0YlcqFJCd4KzoXBdDs1brNZU39TJUOVpCU0xQVlRWQlhHVU8wVThIMU03UjFLSC4u

AGENDA
COUNCIL

WEDNESDAY 6 JULY 2022

1.

2.

Chairman's notices (please see below)

Apologies for Absence

Declaration of Interest

To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, other
Pecuniary Interests or Non-Pecuniary Interests relating to items of business on the
agenda having regard to paragraphs 6 - 8 inclusive of the Code of Conduct for
Members.

(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as
soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting).

Minutes of the Statutory Annual Council - 12 May 2022 (Pages 7 - 24)

To confirm the Minutes of the Statutory Annual Council meeting held on 12 May 2022
(copy enclosed).

Public Questions

To receive questions from members of the public, of which prior notification in writing
has been received (no later than noon two clear working days before the day of the
Council meeting).

Should you wish to submit a question please complete the online form at
www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation.

Chairman's Announcements

Minute Book

To consider the recommendations coming forward from the Committees detailed
below. Please note that the Minute so these meetings are not enclosed as they have
not been approved at Committee level.

a) Strategy and Resources Committee - 25 May 2022

Agenda Item 6 — Notice of Motion

Recommended that the Motion in the name of Councillor A S Fluker (as
detailed below) not be agreed.

Motion:

With regards fiscal propriety, public interest, and value to customers the
Director of Resources in his role under S151 Local Government Act
1972 brings forward an Autumn Budget for consideration by Council.

Page 2
For further information please see the Council's website.



http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/publicparticipation

b)

Performance, Governance and Audit Committee - 9 June 2022

Agenda Item 6 — Notice of Motion — Council Constitution and Scheme of
Delegation

Recommended that the Council notes the position as now advised by
Councillor K M H Lagan to withdraw his Motion and takes no further action on
this Motion.

Agenda Item 7 — Notice of Motion — Council Constitution and Questions to
the Leader

Recommended that the Motion in the name of Councillor A S Fluker (as
detailed below) not be agreed.

Motion:

Part 4 of the Rules of Procedure, Rule 1, 3 (m) be amended from:

(m)  Questions (which may be made without notice) to the Leader of
the Council (or in his absence the Deputy Leader) (other than at
the Annual Meeting, and at the meetings referred to in (h) above)
for a maximum of 15 minutes and not beyond 10.00pm unless
such period is extended with the mutual agreement of the
Chairman of the Council and the Leader (or Deputy Leader).

(m)  Questions (which may be made without notice) to the Leader of
the Council (or in his absence the Deputy Leader) (other than at
the Annual Meeting, and at the meetings referred to in (h) above)
for a maximum of 15 minutes allocated to the asking of
guestions. Where the Leader or (Deputy Leader in their
absence) is unable to answer a question, the answer will be
given by a written response from the Leader to all members
within 5 working days.

Agenda Item 14 — Notice of Motion — Referred by Statutory Annual Council

Recommended that the Council notes the position as now advised by
Councillor A S Fluker to withdraw his Motion and takes no further action on this
Motion.

Joint Standards Committee - 16 June 2022

Agenda Iltem 5 — Motion of Councillor A S Fluker regarding Planning
Decision on Land South of Charwood and East of Orchard, Stoney Hills,
Burnham-on-Crouch

Recommended that in respect of the Motion (set out below) the Council rejects
the call for an external investigation but accepts the findings of the Inspector,
that Council emphasises the need for more objective and evidence-based
decision-making in the future and that the matter of planning decision making
be referred to the Overview and Scrutiny and / or Performance, Governance
and Audit Committees.

Motion:
With regards to openness, transparency, and public interest the Council
writes to the Planning Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State, Mr
Terrence Kemmann-Lane JP DipTP FRTPI MCMI, asking him to
evidence his findings of ‘substantive’ ‘unreasonable behaviour’ and pre-
determination by ‘elected members’, and that the Council appoints an
Independent Person to conduct a review of the decision notice and
report their findings to Council.

Page 3

For further information please see the Council's website.



http://www.maldon.gov.uk/

10.

11.

Minutes of Meetings of the Council

To note that since the last Council, up until Tuesday 28 June 2022 (Council agenda

dispatch) the following Committees have met, and to receive any questions in

accordance with Council and Committee Procedure Rule 6 (2).

Minutes published:

Performance, Governance and Audit Committee (special) 12 May 2022
Strategy and Resources Committee (special) 12 May
Licensing Committee (special) 12 May
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (special) 12 May
Joint Standards Committee (special) 12 May
Investigating and Disciplinary Committee (special) 12 May
District Planning Committee (special) 12 May
Central Area Planning Committee (special) 12 May
North Western Area Planning Committee (special) 12 May
South Eastern Area Planning Committee (special) 12 May
North Western Area Planning Committee 18 May
South Eastern Area Planning Committee 19 May
Licensing Sub-Committee 24 May
Strategy and Resources Committee 25 May
Performance, Governance and Audit Committee 9 June
North Western Area Planning Committee 15 June
Joint Standards Committee 16 June

Statement of the Leader of the Council (Verbal Report)

To consider the statement of the Leader of the Council setting out the Council’s report
and programme for the current municipal year.

Questions in accordance with Procedure Rule 6(3) of which notice has been

glven

To consider the following question received from Councillor A S Fluker:

With reference to the Decision Notice and Costs Decision Notice regarding the
Planning Appeal determined on 24 March 2022 Ref/APP/X1545/W/21/3281036
Land South of Charwood and East of Orchard House, Stoney Hills, Burnham-
on-Crouch, CMO0 8QA, can the Council confirm why the appeal was not
defended and why a rebuttal was not sent to the Planning Inspectorate?

Notice of Motion

In accordance with notice duly given under Procedure Rule 4, Councillor A S Fluker to
move the following Motions, duly seconded by Councillors R P F Dewick and M W
Helm.

Page 4
For further information please see the Council's website.



http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=284&MId=2811
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=285&MId=2812
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=293&MId=2813
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=2814
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=148&MId=2815
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=152&MId=2817
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=277&MId=2791
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=2795
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=150&MId=2792
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=2794
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=150&MId=2690
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=2691
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=156&MId=2816
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=285&MId=2692
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=284&MId=2696
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=150&MId=2695
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=148&MId=2819

12.

13.

14.

Motion A:

Preamble:

With reference to the Costs Decision Notice regarding the planning appeal determined
on 21st March 2022 Ref/APP/X1545/W/213283478 Land 250M North of 16A Maldon
Road, Burnham on Crouch Essex.

Since losing the appeal the Council has agreed to pay the appellants costs of
£230,000. The Council’'s own legal fees are £30,000. These costs will be met by
Council Tax payers.

Motion to Council:

1. That Council considers the Inspectors Notice and in particular paragraph 18
and takes the appropriate action.

2. That Council considers whether the ‘unreasonable behaviour’ of members in
determining the application resulted in the appeal being lost and a costs of
£230,000 being paid to the appellant and takes the appropriate action.

3. That Council considers, bearing in mind members overturned the Planning
Officers recommendation to approve the application, why no members
attended the appeal to evidence and give weight to their decision.

4, That Council considers why members went against the Officers decision to
approve the application, the advice that Council was unlikely to win any appeal
and considers why under those circumstances the appeal was defended at a
cost of £30,000.

Motion B:

Preamble:

That Council notes that on the 6th June 2022 a members briefing was conducted by
the Director of Service Delivery regarding the performance of the Planning Department
and that the issue was reported on at the Performance Governance and Audit
Committee of the 9th June.

Motion to Council:

1. That Council receives regular updates from the Director of Service Delivery
regarding the delivery of his plan to improve the service area and that
extraordinary costs associated with the delivery of the plan are reported to
Council.

Making the Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan (Pages 25 - 146)

To consider the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance (copy
enclosed).

Public Space Protection Order - Consultation Review (Pages 147 - 164)

To consider the report of the Director of Service Delivery, (copy enclosed).

Appointment to Outside Bodies and Corporate Governance Working Group
(Pages 165 - 172)

To consider the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance (copy
enclosed).

Page 5
For further information please see the Council's website.



http://www.maldon.gov.uk/

15. Change of Date to Statutory Annual Council 2023 (Pages 173 - 174)

To consider the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance (copy

enclosed).

16. Business by reason of special circumstances considered by the Chairman to be
urgent

17. Exclusion of the Public and Press

To resolve that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that this satisfies the public interest test.

18. Legal Action (Pages 175 -178)
To consider the report of the Director of Service Delivery (copy enclosed).

19. Commercial Options for Princes Road - Update (Pages 179 - 182)

To consider the report of the Director of Service Delivery (copy enclosed).

NOTICES

Recording of Meeting
Please note that the Council will be recording and publishing on the Council’'s website any
part of this meeting held in open session.

Fire

In the event of a fire, a siren will sound. Please use the fire exits marked with the green
running man. The fire assembly point is outside the main entrance to the Council Offices.
Please gather there and await further instruction.

Health and Safety
Please be advised there is a step up when you enter the Council Chamber.

Closed-Circuit Televisions (CCTV)
Meetings held in the Council Chamber are being monitored and recorded by CCTV.

Lift Access
Lift access to the Council Chamber is currently unavailable. Please contact
committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk for any queries.

Page 6
For further information please see the Council's website.



http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
mailto:committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk

Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES of
STATUTORY ANNUAL COUNCIL
12 MAY 2022
PRESENT
Chairman Councillor M S Heard
(presiding)
Councillors M G Bassenger, Miss A M Beale, B S Beale MBE, V J Bell,
R G Boyce MBE, Mrs P A Channer, R P F Dewick,
M F L Durham, CC, M R Edwards, Mrs J L Fleming, CC,
A S Fluker, MW Helm, B B Heubner, A L Hull, J V Keyes,
K M H Lagan, C Mayes, S J N Morgan, C P Morley,
S P Nunn, N G F Shaughnessy, R H Siddall, N J Skeens,
P L Spenceley, W Stamp, CC, E L Stephens, Mrs J C Stilts,
C Swain, Mrs M E Thompson and S White
1. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the Statutory Annual meeting of the Council and
went through some general housekeeping arrangements for the meeting. He then
welcomed newly appointed Councillor P L Spenceley to her first meeting of the
Council.

2. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

It was proposed by Councillor N G F Shaughnessy and seconded by Councillor C
Mayes that Councillor M S Heard be elected as Chairman of the Maldon District
Council for the ensuing Municipal Year.

Councillor Mrs P A Channer proposed that Councillor R G Boyce be elected as
Chairman of the Maldon District Council for the ensuing Municipal Year. This was duly
seconded by Councillor Mrs M E Thompson.

In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 13 (3) Councillor R H Siddall requested a
recorded vote, this was duly seconded, and the voting was as follows:

For Councillor M S Heard:
Councillors M G Bassenger, B S Beale, M R Edwards, M S Heard, C Mayes, NG F
Shaughnessy, R H Siddall, N J Skeens, E L Stephens, Mrs J C Stilts and C Swain.

For Councillor R G Boyce:

Councillors Miss A M Beale, R G Boyce, Mrs P A Channer, R P F Dewick, M F L
Durham, Mrs J L Fleming, A S Fluker, M W Helm, B B Heubner, A L Hull, J V Keyes, K
M H Lagan, S J N Morgan, C P Morley, S P Nunn, W Stamp, Mrs M E Thompson and
S White.

Page 7



Abstention:
Councillors V J Bell and P L Spenceley.

RESOLVED that Councillor R G Boyce MBE be elected Chairman of the Maldon
District Council for the ensuing Municipal Year.

Councillor M S Heard thanked Members for the privilege of steering the Council
through its most difficult, challenging and turbulent times over the last two terms. He
paid tribute to staff, Members and their families, both past and present and praised
senior staff. Councillor Heard continued thanking the Committee Clerks, Civic Support
Officers and his Vice-Chairman, Councillor Carlie Mayes who had been an invaluable
help to him. He hoped the Council could now look forward to working together,
challenging where necessary.

IN THE CHAIR: COUNCILLOR R G BOYCE MBE

CHAIRMAN'S STATUTORY DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE

Councillor R G Boyce made the Statutory Declaration of Acceptance of the Office of
the Chairman of the Council.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN

It was proposed by the Chairman (Councillor R G Boyce) and seconded by Councillor
M F L Durham that Councillor S P Nunn be elected as Vice-Chairman of the Maldon
District Council for the Municipal Year.

Councillor R H Siddall proposed that Councillor C Swain be elected as Vice-Chairman
of the Maldon District Council for the ensuing Municipal Year. This was duly seconded
by Councillor M S Heard.

In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 13 (3) Councillor R H Siddall requested a
recorded vote, this was duly seconded, and the voting was as follows:

For Councillor S P Nunn:

Councillors Miss A M Beale, R G Boyce, Mrs P A Channer, R P F Dewick, M F L
Durham, Mrs J L Fleming, A S Fluker, M W Helm, B B Heubner, A L Hull, J V Keyes, K
M H Lagan, S J N Morgan, C P Morley, S P Nunn, W Stamp, Mrs M E Thompson and
S White.

For Councillor C Swain:
Councillors M G Bassenger, B S Beale, M R Edwards, M S Heard, C Mayes, NG F
Shaughnessy, R H Siddall, N J Skeens, E L Stephens, Mrs J C Stilts and C Swain.

Abstention:
Councillors V J Bell and P L Spenceley.

RESOLVED that Councillor S P Nunn be elected as Vice-Chairman of the Maldon
District Council for the Municipal Year.

VICE-CHAIRMAN'S STATUTORY DECLARATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE

Councillor S P Nunn made the Statutory Declaration of Acceptance of the Office of
Vice-Chairman of the Council.

Page 8



10.

The Chairman thanked Members for electing him to this position and he endorsed the
earlier statement made by Councillor Heard. He referred to the conduct of Councillor
Heard in the role as Chairman of the Council as being extraordinary and he highlighted
how Councillor Heard had worked at times under extreme pressure. The Chairman
also welcomed Councillor Spenceley to the meeting.

The Chairman advised the Council that he would be a-political in the Chamber and
would discontinue any association with the Conservative Group. However because of
the 1989 Local Government and Housing Act and political balance he would remain a
Member of the Conservative Group.

Councillor S P Nunn informed the Council that he was an Independent Non-Aligned
Councillor and would not be joining any political group or showing political bias.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were none.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors M F L Durham, Mrs J L Fleming and W Stamp declared a non-pecuniary
interest as a Member of Essex County Council.

MINUTES - 31 MARCH 2022

RESOLVED

0] that the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 31 March 2022 be
received.

Minute 15 — Questions to the Leader of the Council in Accordance with
Procedure Rule 1(3)(M)

Councillor A S Fluker raised that he was still outstanding a response to questions he
had raised and the Chairman advised that he would look into this and ensure a written
response was provided.

RESOLVED

(i) that the Minutes of the Council meeting held on 31 March 2022 be approved
and confirmed.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were none.

MINUTES OF MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL

The Council noted the list of Committees that had met before and since the last
meeting of the Council, up until Wednesday 4 May 2022 for which Minutes had been
published.

Page 9



11.

12.

13.

NOTICE OF MOTION

Councillor A S Fluker raised a point of order and suggested that the Chairman consider
referring the four Motions to specific Committees for consideration.

The Chairman agreed with Councillor Fluker and ruled that the Motions would be
referred in a timely manner to Committees of the Council as follows:

o Option 1 — to the Joint Standards Committee;
. Options 2 and 4 — to the Strategy and Resources Committee;
. Option 3 —to the Performance, Governance and Audit Committee.

QUESTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH PROCEDURE RULE 6 (2) OF WHICH
NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN

There were none.

LEADERS AND COMPOSITION OF POLITICAL GROUPS

The Council considered the report of the Head of Paid Service, tabled at the meeting.
As required by the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, the Head of Paid Service
had been notified that the composition of the political Groups of the Council were as
follows:

Leader: Councillor R H Siddall

Councillors: M G Bassenger,
B S Beale MBE,
V J Bell,
M R Edwards,
M S Heard,
Members C Mayes,
N G F Shaughnessy,
N J Skeens,
E L Stephens,
Mrs J C Stilts and
C Swain

Independent Group

Leader Councillor Mrs P A Channer

Councillors: Miss A M Beale,

R G Boyce MBE

M F L Durham CC,
_ Mrs J L Fleming CC,
Conservative Group B B Heubner,
Members A L Hull,
J V Keyes,
S J N Morgan
C P Morley,
Mrs M E Thompson and
S White

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, it was noted that Councillor R H Siddall
was therefore recognised as Leader-designate.

Page 10




The Chairman moved recommendation (i) as set out on the agenda, to consider the
contents of the report on the Leaders and composition of each political group and this
was duly noted.

Moving onto appointment of a Leader of the Council, the Chairman advised that as the
Council had an insitu Leader and Leader Designate he would be using Rule 23 and
calling for nominations for Leader of the Council.

In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 13 (3) Councillor R H Siddall requested a
recorded vote.

The Lead Legal Specialist and Monitoring Officer advised the Council that the Council’s
Procedure Rules referred to ratification of the Leader Designate at the Annual Meeting.
That was Councillor Siddall however it was ultimately the final ruling of the Chairman
on how he ran the meeting and to not follow Procedure Rules and call for nominations
for Leader of the Council was within his domain to do so.

Nominations for Leader of the Council, duly seconded, were received for Councillors
Mrs P A Channer and R H Siddall.

The Chairman put these nominations to the Council and the voting was as follows:

For Councillor Mrs Channer:

Councillors Miss A M Beale, R G Boyce, Mrs P A Channer, R P F Dewick, M F L
Durham, Mrs J L Fleming, A S Fluker, M W Helm, B B Heubner, A L Hull, J V Keyes, K
M H Lagan, S J N Morgan, C P Morley, S P Nunn, W Stamp, Mrs M E Thompson and
S White.

For Councillor R H Siddall:
Councillors M G Bassenger, V J Bell, M R Edwards, M S Heard, C Mayes, N G F
Shaughnessy, R H Siddall, N J Skeens, E L Stephens, Mrs J C Stilts, and C Swain.

Abstention:
Councillors B S Beale and P L Spenceley.

The Chairman declared that Councillor Mrs Channer was therefore elected as Leader
of the Council.

The Chairman moved to recommendation (ii) as set out in the report and sought
nominations for Deputy Leader of the Council. Nominations were received for
Councillors Mrs M E Thompson and Councillor R H Siddall.

In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 13 (3) Councillor R H Siddall requested a
recorded vote and the voting was as follows:

For Councillor R H Siddall:
Councillors M G Bassenger, V J Bell, M R Edwards, M S Heard, C Mayes, N G F
Shaughnessy, R H Siddall, N J Skeens, E L Stephens, Mrs J C Stilts, and C Swain.

For Councillor Mrs M E Thompson:

Councillors Miss A M Beale, R G Boyce, Mrs P A Channer, R P F Dewick, M F L
Durham, Mrs J L Fleming, A S Fluker, M W Helm, B B Heubner, A L Hull, J V Keyes, K
M H Lagan, S J N Morgan, C P Morley, S P Nunn, W Stamp, Mrs M E Thompson and
S White.

Abstention:
Councillors B S Beale and P L Spenceley.

Page 11



14.

The Chairman declared that Councillor Mrs Thompson was duly elected as Deputy
Leader of the Council.

RESOLVED
0] that the contents of the report be noted.

(i) that Councillor Mrs P A Channer be elected as Leader of the Council for the
ensuing municipal year,;

(iii) Councillor Mrs M E Thompson be elected as Deputy Leader of the Council for
the ensuing Municipal Year.

APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL

The Council considered the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and
Governance, circulated prior to the meeting, to appoint serving Members to
Committees for the Municipal year to May 2023.

The Chairman moved recommendations (i) and (ii) as set out in the report and these
were duly agreed.

The Chairman drew Members’ attention to recommendation (iii) in the report and
Appendix A which detailed nominations received from the Independent and
Conservative Groups. He advised that there were a number of Committees where the
Council would need to nominate and appoint a non-aligned Councillor to.

In response to a question regarding the allocation of seats and non-aligned Members,
the Chairman explained that the report set out the proportional allocation on
Committees and how the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 set out the
provision to do this. It was for the Council to allocate Members to Committee.

The Leader of the Council, Councillor Mrs P A Channer, proposed the following
nominations to Committees which was duly seconded:

Performance, Governance and Audit

: Councillors A S Fluker and W Stamp
Committee

Councillors A S Fluker, KM H Lagan

Strategy and Resources Committee and W Stamp

Licensing Committee

Councillors MW Helm and S P Nunn

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillors M W Helm and P L
Spenceley

Joint Standards Committee

Councillors MW Helm and S P Nunn

Investigating and Disciplinary Councillor M W Helm

Committee

Investigating and Disciplinary Panel Councillor KM H Lagan and W Stamp

In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 13 (3) Councillor Mrs M E Thompson
requested a recorded vote. This was duly seconded.

At this point the Chairman advised that Membership of the Appointments Board would
be considered following the appointment of Committee Chairmen.

The Chairman then asked Councillor R H Siddall, Leader of the Opposition, for his

nominations. Councillor Siddall proposed that Councillor P L Spenceley be appointed
to the Performance Governance & Audit and Strategy & Resources Committees.

Page 12



In response Councillor Spenceley advised that she did not wish to be appointed to
these Committees but was happy to be appointed to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. This was duly noted.

The Chairman then put the proposals of Councillor Mrs Channer to the Council, and
these were duly agreed.

The Chairman referred to recommendation (iv) as set out in the report and the Leader
of the Council advised the Council of the reasoning behind the proposed change. The
Chairman put the recommendation to the Council, and this was duly agreed.
Councillors V J Bell and C Mayes requested that their vote against this
recommendation be noted.

The Chairman advised that the Council needed to agree the Town and Parish
representatives on the Joint Standards Committee and advised that three nominees
had been received, these being Councillors Todd, Pearlman and Shrimpton.
Accordingly he called for vote on each of the nominees and following this declared that
Councillors M R Pearlman and N R Todd were elected to the Joint Standards
Committee.

RESOLVED
(1) The allocation of seats on Committees as set out in Section 3.6 of the report be
ratified;

(i) That for the purposes of Substitutes, serving Performance, Governance & Audit
and Strategy & Resources Committees Members are allowed to sit on the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee;

(iii) That Councillors M R Pearlman (Maldon Town Council) and N R Todd (Mayland
Parish Council) be appointed to the Joint Standards Committee for the ensuing
municipal year;

(1) that accordingly, with the exception of the Appointments Board the membership
of the Committees of the Council as set out below be agreed:

Committee Members
Performance, Councillors Mrs J L Fleming, M R Edwards,
Governance and Audit A S Fluker, AL Hull, J V Keyes, N J Skeens,
W Stamp CC, E L Stephens, Mrs J C Stilts and
Mrs M E Thompson
Strategy and Resources | Councillors M G Bassenger, Mrs P A Channer,
M F L Durham CC, A S Fluker, K M H Lagan,
N G F Shaughnessy, R H Siddall, W Stamp CC,
C Swain, Mrs M E Thompson and S White
Licensing Councillors M G Bassenger, M F L Durham CC,
M W Helm, A L Hull, S J N Morgan, S P Nunn,
R H Siddall, E L Stephens, Mrs J C Stilts and
M E Thompson
Overview and Scrutiny Councillors Miss A M Beale, B S Beale MBE,
V J Bell, M S Heard, M W Helm, B B Heubner,
Overview and Scrutiny C Mayes, SJ N Morgan, C P Morley and
(meeting as the Crime P L Spenceley.
and Disorder Committee)

Page 13



Committee Members
Joint Standards Councillors M G Bassenger, Miss A M Beale,
Mrs J L Fleming CC, M W Helm, C Mayes,
S P Nunn, E L Stephens and
Mrs M E Thompson

Parish Councillors (non-voting):
Councillors M R Pearlman and N R Todd.

Independent Person:
Mr J Mitchel (Reserve: Ms K Payne)

Investigating and Councillors Mrs P A Channer, M W Helm,
Disciplinary B B Heubner, C Mayes and R H Siddall
Investigating and Councillors R G Boyce MBE, M S Heard,
Disciplinary Panel A L Hull, KM H Lagan, N G F Shaughnessy,

Minimum of five Members W Stamp CC, Mrs J C Stilts, C Swain,

of the Council — politically | Mrs M E Thompson and S White
balanced — of which three

have not served on the Independent Person:

initial investigation carried - .
out by the Investigating & Mr J Mitchel (Reserve: Ms K Payne)

Disciplinary Committee. In
addition, two or three
Independent Persons
appointed by the Council to
assist the Joint Standards
Committee under the
Localism Act 2011.

District Planning All Members of the Council

Central Area Planning Councillors Miss A M Beale, M R Edwards,
M S Heard, B B Heubner, K M H Lagan,

C Mayes, S P Nunn, P L Spenceley,

N G F Shaughnessy, Mrs J C Stilts and

C Swain
North Western Area Councillors M F L Durham CC, Mrs J L Fleming
Planning CC, J V Keyes, S J N Morgan, C P Morley,
R H Siddall, E L Stephens, Mrs M E Thompson
and S White
South Eastern Area Councillors M G Bassenger, B S Beale MBE,
Planning V J Bell, R G Boyce MBE, Mrs P A Channer,

R P F Dewick, A S Fluker, M W Helm, A L Hull,
N J Skeens and W Stamp, CC

ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

RESOLVED that the meeting be adjourned at 8:30pm to allow special meetings of
Committees to be held as follows:

Performance, Governance and Audit Committee, Strategy and Resources Committee,
Licensing Committee, Overview and Scrutiny Committee (including Overview and
Scrutiny Committee acting as the Crime and Disorder Committee), Joint Standards
Committee, Investigating and Disciplinary Committee, District Planning Committee,
Central Area Planning Committee, North Western Area Planning Committee and South
Eastern Area Planning Committee.

Page 14



16.

17.

18.

RESUMPTION OF BUSINESS

RESOLVED that the business of the Annual Meeting of the Council be resumed at
8:56pm.

APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES OF THE COUNCIL
CONTINUED

The Chairman advised Members that the Council needed to confirm the membership of
the Appointments Board now that Committee Chairmen had been appointed. He
asked Councillor Mrs P A Channer, Leader of the Council, for a nomination from her
Political Group to this Board.

Councillor Mrs Channer proposed Councillor A S Fluker. This proposal was duly
seconded.

The Chairman confirmed that the following posts were automatically allocated to the
Appointments Board:

Leader of the Council (Councillor Mrs P A Channer)*
Leader of the Opposition (Councillor R H Siddall)*

* or their deputies
Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Strategy & Resources and Performance,
Governance & Audit Committees

Councillor R H Siddall proposed that Councillor C Mayes be appointed to the
Appointments Board. This was duly seconded.

The Chairman then put the two nominations to the Council which were duly agreed.

RESOLVED that the membership of the Appointments Board for the ensuing Municipal
Year be agreed as follows:

Leader of the Council (Councillor Mrs P A Channer)*
Leader of the Opposition (Councillor R H Siddall)*
* or their deputies

Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Strategy & Resources and Performance,
Governance & Audit Committees

Councillors: A S Fluker
C Mayes

APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND
OUTSIDE BODIES

The Council considered the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and
Governance, circulated prior to the meeting, seeking Members’ consideration of the
appointment of representatives to serve on Local Government and Outside Bodies for
the ensuing municipal year.

Councillor R H Siddall proposed that Councillor M R Edwards be appointed to the Local
Area Highways Panel for the Central Area. This proposal was duly seconded.

Page 15



19.

20.

Councillor Mrs P A Channer proposed that Councillors A L Hull, SJ N Morgan and S P
Nunn be appointed to the Local Area Highways Panel. This was duly seconded.

The Chairman advised that the Council’s protocol was to appoint one Member from
each of the Area Planning Committees to the Local Area Highways Panel. He
informed the Council that a vote would be taken on the hames proposed.

Councillor C Swain proposed that Councillor Siddall be appointed to the Local Area
Highways Panel. This proposal was duly seconded.

The Chairman then put the proposal in the name of the Leader of the Council, that
Councillors Hull, Morgan and Nunn be appointed to the Local Area Highways Panel. In
accordance with Procedure Rule No. 13 (3) Councillor R H Siddall requested a
recorded vote. This was duly seconded, and the voting was as follows:

For the recommendation:

Councillors Miss A M Beale, Mrs P A Channer, R P F Dewick, M F L Durham, Mrs J L
Fleming, A S Fluker, M W Helm, B B Heubner, A L Hull, JV Keyes, KM H Lagan, S J
N Morgan, C P Morley, S P Nunn, W Stamp, Mrs M E Thompson and S White.

Against the recommendation:

Councillors M G Bassenger, B S Beale, V J Bell, M R Edwards, M S Heard, C Mayes,
N G F Shaughnessy, R H Siddall, N J Skeens, E L Stephens, Mrs J C Stilts and C
Swain.

Abstention:
Councillors R G Boyce and P L Spenceley.

The Chairman advised that the proposal had therefore been agreed. The Council then
agreed recommendation (i) as set out in the report.

RESOLVED that the appointment of representatives on Local Government and outside
bodies as detailed in APPENDIX 1 to these Minutes, be approved.

APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO SERVE ON WORKING GROUPS OF THE
COUNCIL

The Council considered the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and
Governance, circulated prior to the meeting, seeking Members’ agreement to appoint
Members to serve on Working Groups of the Council for the municipal year.

RESOLVED that the appointments to the Working Groups as set out APPENDIX 2 to
these Minutes be confirmed.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The Council considered the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and
Governance presenting an annual update on the activities of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

The annual report for 2021 / 22 had been agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee at its last meeting and was set out in Appendix 1 to the report. It was noted
that the annual reporting arrangements ensured a degree of accountability to the
Council.

Page 16



21.

22.

Councillor V J Bell advised how it had been her pleasure to serve as Chairman of the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the past year. Councillor Bell outlined some of
the work that had been undertaken and how the Working Group set up to review
scrutiny requests coming forward from Members had worked well. In addition to the
scrutiny items reported in the Appendix Councillor Bell advised that there was one item
raised by Councillor White outstanding and hoped this would be taken forward by the
new Committee.

RESOLVED that the annual report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 2021 /
22 be accepted.

SOUTH EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - BURNHAM TOWN COUNCIL
OFFICES LIVE STREAMING

The Council considered the report of the Director of Resources seeking consideration
of the feasibility to set up and support the live streaming from Burnham Town Council
(BTC) Offices for the South Eastern Area Planning Committee (SEAPC).

Following the decision of the Council to move the meeting back to the Town Council
Offices the Council’s IT specialist team had carried out a detailed site survey to advise
on Committee meeting live streaming options for the venue. Appendix A to the report
set out the findings of this survey.

The Leader of the Council presented the report and outlined the three
recommendations set out in the report. She noted that Officers were proposing that
option four be agreed by the Council.

Councillor A S Fluker spoke in favour of option four and proposed that option four be
agreed. This proposal was duly seconded.

A debate ensued. A number of Members spoke in support of meetings returning to the
BTC offices and the benefit this had to local residents. Some concern was raised
regarding the change of venue and this was also discussed by Members.

In response to questions the Lead Specialist ICT Infrastructure provided the Council
with some further information regarding the proposed installation if option four was
agreed.

In accordance with Procedure Rule No. 13 (3) Councillor C Mayes requested a
recorded vote.

The Chairman then put the proposal in the name of Councillor Fluker to the Council.
He advised that there being a majority Option Four was therefore agreed. Councillor
Mayes requested that her dissent be recorded.

RESOLVED that Members allocate funding for the costs of Maldon District Council

Officers to implement the preferred Option Four (as detailed in Appendix A to the
report).

BUSINESS BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES CONSIDERED BY THE
CHAIRMAN TO BE URGENT

There was none.

Page 17



23.

24,

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED that under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of
Partlof Schedule 12A to the Act, and that this satisfies the public interest test.

Councillor N J Skeens left the meeting at this point and did not return.

COMMERCIAL OPTIONS FOR PRINCES ROAD

The Council considered the report of the Director of Service Delivery updating
Members on progress made with commercial options for the Princes Road project
following approval to commence with the feasibility review by the Council on 31 March
2022.

It was noted that work on the feasibility study would continue and a formal update
brought the next meeting of the Council.

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted.

There being no other items of business the Chairman closed the meeting at 9.31 pm.

R G BOYCE MBE
CHAIRMAN

Page 18



Minute Annex

APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND OUTSIDE

BODIES 2022 /23

LOCAL GOVERNMENT
BODIES

LEAD OFFICER

2022 | 23 REPRESENTATIVE(S)

East of England Local
Government Association

Head of Paid Service

Leader of the Council

Essex Local Government
Association

Head of Paid Service

Leader of the Council

Local Government Association

Head of Paid Service

Leader of the Council

Outside Bodies (not appointed by Maldon District Council but involve Members of the

Council):

BODY

LEAD OFFICER

2022 / 23 REPRESENTATIVES

Essex Partnership Board (Mid
Essex representative)

Director of Strategy,
Performance and
Governance

Leader of the Council

Essex Leaders and Chief
Executives Group

Director of Strategy,
Performance and
Governance

Leader of the Council

Representatives to Outside Bodies made by the Council:

BODY

LEAD OFFICER

2022 / 23 REPRESENTATIVE(S)

Action for family carers liaison
board

Thematic Lead,
Community

Councillor N G F Shaughnessy

Blackwater Estuary Siltation
Steering Group — annual
meeting

River Bailiff / Lead
Countryside and Coast
Coordinator

Councillor C Mayes

Bradwell B Community Forum

Strategy, Performance
and Communications
Manager

Councillors MW Helm and N J Skeens

Bradwell B Joint Local
Authorities Group (renamed
20/07/20)

Director of Strategy,
Performance and
Governance

Leader and Deputy Leader of the
Council

Chairman and Vice-Chairman of
Strategy and Resources Committee

Bradwell Local Community
Liaison Council

Strategy, Policy and
Communications
Manager

Councillors B S Beale MBE, A L Hull, C
Mayes and N J Skeens

Brickhouse Farm Management
Committee

Customer, Community
and Casework Manager

Councillors KM H Lagan and Mrs J C
Stilts

Burnham-on-Crouch Business
Board.

Councillor W Stamp CC

British Red Cross Society —

Thematic Lead,

Chairman of the Council

Essex County Branch Community
Civilian and Military Partnership Thematlc_ Lead, Councillor B B Heubner
Board Community

Drapers Farm Sports Club
Committee

Countryside and Coast
Manager

Councillor M R Edwards

Reserve: Councillor B B Heubner

Essex Coastal Forum

Countryside and Coast
Manager

Councillor Mrs P A Channer

Substitute: Councillor M G Bassenger

Page 19




APPENDIX 1

APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND OUTSIDE

BODIES 2022 /23

BODY

LEAD OFFICER

2022 | 23 REPRESENTATIVE(S)

Essex Countywide Traveller Unit
Committee

Lead Specialist,
Community

Councillor Mrs J L Fleming CC

Essex Climate Action Forum

Lead Specialist-
Community / Strategy
Policy and
Communications
Manager

Councillor C Swain

Essex Flood Partnership Board

Lead Specialist-
Community

Councillor S White

Substitute: Councillor C Swain

Essex Housing Policy Portfolio

Lead Specialist-
Community

Chairman of the Strategy and
Resources Committee

Essex Planning Policy Portfolio
and Chairmans’ Group

Lead Specialist Place /
Strategy, Policy and
Communications
Manager

Chairman of the Strategy and
Resources Committee

Substitute: Vice-Chairman Strategy and
Resources Committee

Essex Waste Member
Partnership Board

Lead Specialist
Community / Specialist
for Commissioning and
Contracts (Waste)

Chairman of the Strategy and
Resources Committee

Substitute: Vice-Chairman Strategy and
Resources Committee

Livewell Partnership Group

Customer, Community
and Casework Manager /
Strategy Theme Lead —
Community

Councillors M G Bassenger, Mrs P A
Channer, P L Spenceley, E L Stephens,
Mrs J C Stilts and S White

Local Area Highways Panel

Highways Liaison Officer
Essex County Council

Councillors A L Hull, S J N Morgan and
S P Nunn

Local Government Association
Coastal Issues Special Interest
Group

Countryside and Coast
Manager

Councillor M F L Durham, CC

Substitute: Councillor C Swain

Local Government Flood Forum

Lead Specialist —
Community

Councillor Mrs J L Fleming, CC

Substitute: Councillor C Swain

Maldon District Dementia
Alliance (appointed by the
Council 18/03/21)

Strategy Theme Lead -
Community

Councillor C Mayes

Maldon and District Youth
Strategy Group

Strategy Theme Lead —
Community

Councillor V J Bell

Reserve: Councillor A L Hull

Maldon Business Board

Councillor J V Keyes

Substitute: Councillor C Mayes

Maldon District Tourism Board

Councillor Mrs J C Stilts

Reserve: Councillor Mrs P A Channer

Page 20




APPENDIX 1

APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND OUTSIDE

BODIES 2022 /23

BODY

LEAD OFFICER

2022 | 23 REPRESENTATIVE(S)

Maldon Harbour Improvement
Commissioners

This position is an appointment
as a Commissioner for a
minimum period of three years
(appointment will continue even
if Member leaves the Council)

River Bailiff / Countryside
and Coast Manager

Councillor KM H Lagan

Maldon High Street Focus
Group
(Council 16 July 2020)

Strategy Theme Lead —
Place

Councillors J V Keyes and C Mayes

Maldon Operational Group
(Previously Maldon Health Hub)

Director of Strategy,
Performance and
Governance

Chairman of the Strategy and
Resources Committee

Councillor Mrs P A Channer

North Essex Economic Board
(NEEB)

Leader of the Council

PATROL (Parking and Traffic
Regulations Outside London)
Adjudication Joint Committee
2022-23

Councillor A S Fluker

Plume Educational Trust
(Four yearly appointment)

Councillor R H Siddall (until June 2023)

Councillor C Swain (from 15 June 2021

until 14 June 2025)

Police and Crime Panel

Director of Service
Delivery

Councillor M S Heard

Substitute: Councillor B B Heubner

Responsible Authorities Group
(RAG) (Community Safety)

Director of Service
Delivery / Director of
Strategy, Performance
and Governance /
Community Safety
Partnership Manager

Councillor B B Heubner

Substitute: M S Heard

River Crouch Coastal
Community Team (Management
Team)

Councillor M G Bassenger

Sense of Place Board

Director of Strategy,
Performance and
Governance

Chairman of the Strategy and
Resources Committee

Substitute: Vice-Chairman of the
Strategy and Resources Committee

South Essex Parking
Partnership — Joint Committee

Customer, Community
and Casework Manager

Councillor C Mayes

Substitute: Councillor W Stamp CC

Superfast Essex Steering
Board

Strategy Theme Lead -
Place

Chairman of the Strategy and
Resources Committee

*Southend Airport Consultative
Committee

Strategy Theme Lead—
Prosperity

Councillor A L Hull

Stow Maries Aerodrome
Consultative Committee
(Appointed 20/12/18)

Director of Resources

Councillors Mrs J L Fleming and S
White

Page 21




APPENDIX 1
APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES ON LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND OUTSIDE
BODIES 2022/ 23

BODY LEAD OFFICER 2022 | 23 REPRESENTATIVE(S)
The Thomas Plume Library
Charitable Incorporated Councillor S P Nunn

Organisation

West Maldon Community
Association Management
Committee

Strategy Theme Lead -

Community Councillor N G F Shaughnessy

Page 22




APPENDIX 2

APPOINTMENT OF CORPORATE WORKING GROUPS 2022 / 23

Appointed annually at the Statutory Annual Meeting of the Council:

Body

Lead Officer

Representatives

Asset Management Working
Group

Director of Service Delivery

Councillors M G Bassenger, R G Boyce,
MBE, Mrs P A Channer, M F L Durham

CC, KM H Lagan, R H Siddall, Mrs J C

Stilts and C Swain

Air Quality Management (Market
Hill) Member Officer Working
Group

Strategy, Policy and
Communications Manager

Mrs P A Channer, M R Edwards, Mrs J L
Fleming CC, C Mayes, S P Nunn, NG F
Shaughnessy, Mrs J C Stilts and S White

Alderman and Alderwoman
Working Group

Chairman of the Council
Leader of the Council
Leader of the Opposition

Councillors M R Edwards, S P Nunn and
N J Skeens

Bradwell ‘A’ Care and
Maintenance Working Group

Strategy, Policy and
Communications Manager

Councillors M G Bassenger, Mrs J L
Fleming CC, A S Fluker, AL Hull, C
Mayes and N J Skeens

Bradwell ‘B’ Power Station
Working Group

Bradwell B Programme
Lead

Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council

Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the
Strategy and Resources Committee

Councillors M G Bassenger, R G Boyce,
MBE, Mrs J L Fleming CC, A L Hull, KM
H Lagan, C Mayes and N G F
Shaughnessy

Climate Action Strategy Working
Group

Strategy, Policy and
Communications Manager

Councillors Mrs P A Channer, C Mayes,
S J N Morgan, N J Skeens, W Stamp CC
and Mrs J C Stilts

Corporate Governance Working
Group

Head of Paid Service /
Director of Strategy,
Performance and
Governance

Leader of the Council
Leader of the Opposition

Councillors R G Boyce MBE, C Mayes, E
L Stephens, Mrs J C Stilts, Mrs M E
Thompson and One vacancy

Corporate Projects Member
Working Group

Director of Resources

Councillors M F L Durham CC, A S
Fluker, S J N Morgan, R H Siddall, P L
Spenceley, W Stamp CC, Mrs J C Stilts
and C Swain

Finance Member Working
Group

Director of Resources

Councillors Mrs P A Channer, A S
Fluker, M S Heard, R H Siddall, P L
Spenceley, W Stamp CC, C Swain and S
White

Leisure Contract Working
Group

Commercial Manager /
Director of Service Delivery

Councillors M G Bassenger, M F L
Durham CC, Mrs J L Fleming CC, S P
Nunn, N G F Shaughnessy, R H Siddall,
C Swain and S White

Page 23




APPENDIX 2

Body

Lead Officer

Representatives

Member Training and
Development Member Working
Group

Leader of the Council
Deputy Leader of the Council
Opposition Leader

All Chairmen of Committees

Planning Policy Working Group

Director of Strategy,
Performance and
Governance

Councillors Mrs P A Channer, M W
Helm, C Mayes, R H Siddall, P L
Spenceley, W Stamp CC, Mrs J C Stilts
and Mrs M E Thompson

Strategic Housing Board

Senior Specialist - Housing

Councillors Mrs P A Channer, M F L
Durham CC, C Mayes, S J N Morgan, R
H Siddall and E L Stephens

Strategies and Engagement
Member Task and Finish
Working Group

Strategy, Policy and
Communications Manager

Councillors M G Bassenger, Mrs P A
Channer, M F L Durham CC, KM H
Lagan, C Mayes and R H Siddall

Page 24




Agenda Item

REPORT of
DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE

to

COUNCIL
6 JULY 2022

MAKING THE GREAT TOTHAM NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN

1.

11

3.1

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.14

3.2

3.21

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan (GTNP) (at APPENDIX 1) which includes the
Village Design Statement (at APPENDIX 2) has successfully passed its referendum.
Following the referendum, it automatically became part of the statutory Development
Plan for the district. Maldon District Council now needs to formally ‘make’ the GTNP
part of the Development Plan.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Council ‘makes’ the Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan in accordance with
section 38(A)(4) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

Referendum

On 31 March 2022, the District Council made the decision to accept the Examiner’s
recommendations and that the GTNP (as modified by the Examiner’s Report) should
proceed to referendum (Minute No. 605 refers).

The District Council published its decision statement on 1 April 2022 to confirm that
the GTNP, as modified, met the Basic Conditions and other legal requirements.

The referendum was held on 9 June 2022. The Referendum asked the question “Do
you want Maldon District Council to use the neighbourhood plan for Great Totham to
help it decide planning applications in the neighbourhood area?”

89% of those who voted were in favour of the Plan.

Referendum Results

YES 483
NO 58
Rejected ballots 1
Total votes cast 542

Decision and reasons

Under section 38A (4)(a) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as
amended), the District Council is required to ‘make’ a Neighbourhood Plan if more

Our Vision: Sustainable Council — Prosperous Future

Page 25

12



3.2.2

3.3

3.3.1

4.1

5.1

than half of those voting have voted in favour of the Plan. 89% of the votes cast
were in favour of this Plan.

Under section 38A(6), a Council is not subject to this duty if the making of the Plan
would breach, or would otherwise be incompatible with, any EU obligation (as
transposed into UK law) or any of the Convention Rights (within the meaning of the
Human Rights Act 1998). Maldon District Council has assessed that the Plan,
including its preparation, does not breach, and is not incompatible with these
obligations. Therefore the GTNP can be ‘made’ part of the District's Development
Plan.

Neighbourhood Development Plan status

Planning applications in the Neighbourhood Area must be considered against the
Great Totham Neighbourhood Development Plan, as well as existing planning policy
such as the approved Maldon District Local Development Plan (2017) and the
National Planning Policy Framework and National Planning Practice Guidance.

CONCLUSION

The GTNP was developed by the Parish Council through extensive engagement with
the local community, culminating in a Referendum on the Plan on 9 June 2022. The
majority of those who voted, voted for the Neighbourhood Plan. Following the
referendum, the Plan automatically became part of the development plan for the
district. The Council now needs to complete the statutory process by formally
‘making’ the Neighbourhood Plan part of the development plan for the district and
publishing the Decision Statement (see draft at APPENDIX 3).

IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES

The making of the Neighbourhood Plan will have positive impacts on the following
corporate outcomes:

o (1) Promote civic pride and maintain the District's environmental quality;

. (7) Supporting existing local businesses;

° (9) Working with our communities and partners to improve the physical health
and well-being of our residents;

° (13) Building on the strengths of our communities and what they can do to
support themselves and help each other to thrive;

° (18) Meaningful engagement.

IMPLICATIONS

(1) Impact on Customers — Neighbourhood Planning gives communities the

opportunity to directly plan the future of their area.

(i) Impact on Equalities — Neighbourhood Planning has the potential to identify
and manage local equalities issues and must be prepared taking into account
relevant equalities legislation. The Neighbourhood Plan has been
independently examined for its compliance with relevant legislative
requirements including human rights.

Page 26



(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(Vi)

Impact on Risk — Neighbourhood Plans can reduce risk in the development
management process by providing support for the Council in determining
planning applications and defending planning appeals.

Impact on Resources (financial) — Maldon District Council is financially
responsible for organising the Examination and Referendum for
Neighbourhood Plans in their area. The Council can claim a grant from the
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities for each
Neighbourhood Plan, once the Decision Statement on sending the Plan to
Referendum is published. These payments are made by Central Government
to Local Planning Authorities to reflect the additional financial burdens
associated with supporting Parish Councils or Neighbourhood Plan Forums to
prepare Neighbourhood Plans.

Impact on Resources (human) — The Neighbourhood Plan adds to the
development plan documents used in the determination of planning
applications, and it further strengthens the planning policies for the parish.
Neighbourhood Plans can reduce risk in the development management
process by providing support for the Council in determining planning
applications and defending planning appeals.

Impact on the Environment — Neighbourhood Plans have the potential to
improve the local environment where plans are being produced. The making
of the Neighbourhood Plan will help reduce the impact on the environment
from inappropriate development.

Impact on Strengthening Communities - Neighbourhood planning is
intended to strengthen communities by giving them the opportunity to prepare
statutory plans that shape the future development of the community.

Background Papers:

Information on the Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan is available at:
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning _policy/8112/community led planning

and neighbourhood plans/3

The referendum results are available at:
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/18998/result of referendum -

parish of great totham 9 june 2022

Enquiries to: Leonie Alpin, Specialist Local Plans.

Page 27


https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8112/community_led_planning_and_neighbourhood_plans/3
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8112/community_led_planning_and_neighbourhood_plans/3
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/18998/result_of_referendum_-_parish_of_great_totham_9_june_2022
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/18998/result_of_referendum_-_parish_of_great_totham_9_june_2022

This page is intentionally left blank



Z
<
—d
o
Qo
O
O
L
24
-
O
M
L
O
LL
2
=
<
L
—
O
—
—
<
LL
(2 4
O

Ln
)
=)
o
=)
N
=)
N

O
c
>
o
O
<
2
-
©
o.
£
©
<
)
o
-
d
©
o
-
O

c
2
wv
S
o
>
£
S
o
c
T
S
2
T
o

N
o
o
N
<
]
S
©
=

[
o
[%]
—
[
c
[a 9
O
=
>
e
o4
oS
[
-
()
%]
<
[}
©
—_
80
9
2
o
-
o




APPENDIX 1
Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan

Referendum Version

CONTENTS
1 INTRODUCTION ...ccuuiiiiiuuiiiiinecitienesitiesesssrenssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssssssssssasssssss 1
PUIPOSE OF TN PlAN ...ttt st st sttt st st st st 1
POLICY CONTEXT...eeiutiiieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e b e e b e bt e bt e sbeesbeesbaesbeesbeesbaesbaesaaesasesanessnesseens 1
MONITOMNE ThE Plan..c.ci ittt st st st st st seaesenesatesasesasessnessnesasesanenns 3
2 (0 T Y I 0 0 1|V I ) (g 5
HiStory Of Great TOTNAM ..c.ui ittt st st st st st saae st saaesanesane e 5
Profile of the COMMUNItY t00AY......coviiiiiiiiiiitre ettt saesanesane e 6
Great TOtham's @SSELS......cciiiiiiiiiiii e 9
Main issues and challenges in Great TOtham ........cccvvivciiiriiniinreee e 10
3 VISION AND OBJECTIVES.....cccciieiienniieriennsinrenesssssassssssesssssssssssssssasssssssasess 12
ViSioN fOr Great TOTNaM . c.c i s st s 12
(0] o] [=Tatu\V/<Ig oY gt a1 o] =1 o H U PRRUPRPRP 12
4 SPATIAL STRATEGY AND HOUSING NEED ......ccccoerrrueiiirrnnecnrnnncccnrennescenens 13
HOUSING NEEA. ...ttt st sttt st sttt s it e sate st e sabesabesabesatesnsesasesane 16
5 HIGH QUALITY ARCADIAN DESIGN........cccirruiiirreniiirrnniinrennscnnenesseneneenens 18
) o 11 | TP TR R PP PO 18
SEYIE @NA MATEIIAIS ....eieii ettt et e bbbt e s bt e st satesaresatesaees 20
6 ENVIRONMENT ....cuuiiiiiiiiititiiiiiineiititeeistisseissnsasesssrsssssssssssssssssssssssssssesns 23
VIBWS ettt n e 24
Green wildlife corridors and wildlife-friendly design........ccccoveevieniiniiniinneeeen 30
Recreational diStUrDanCe ... e et s s 37
Environmental impact of developmEeNnt ... 38
7 TRANSPORT AND MOVEMENT ......ccciiiiiiiiirinniiirinninniennsnniesesssssasssssssaness 41
A PAIKINE ettt ettt ettt et e st e e bt e bt e bt e s be e s b e e sbe e beeshteshaesbeeshaeshaesatesatenaees 41
WalKING @NA CYCIING ettt sa e bt s enenees 43
Public and community bUS ProViSiON .......cccecuiriiiiiniiiniisiieieeiesre e sre e sbeesseeseesesssesnne 49
COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES .....ccciiiruiiiiiinniinirnncnirennsssrensesssssnsssssssssssssssssssns 50
9 NON-POLICY ACTIONS .....rrriiriitiiiirtneiitteniinneanessstessessssssssssssssssssssassssens 53

APPENDIX A GREAT TOTHAM VILLAGE DESIGN STATEMENT (PROVIDED
SEPARATELY)

APPENDIX B LOCAL VIEWS

APPENDIX C CIRCULAR WALKS AND CYCLE ROUTES

Page 30



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

INTRODUCTION

Purpose of the plan

This document represents the Neighbourhood Plan for Great Totham parish for the period
2020 to 2035. The Plan contains a vision for the future of Great Totham and sets out clear
planning policies and actions to realise this vision.

The principal purpose of the Neighbourhood Plan is to guide development within the
Neighbourhood Area. It also provides guidance to anyone wishing to submit a planning
application for development within the Area. The process of producing a plan has sought to
involve the community as widely as possible. The different topic areas are reflective of matters
that are of considerable importance to the Area’s residents, businesses and community
groups.

Some of the Neighbourhood Plan policies are general and apply throughout the Plan area,
whilst others are site or area-specific and apply only to the appropriate areas illustrated on
the relevant map. Nevertheless, in considering proposals for development, Maldon District
Council will apply all relevant policies of the Plan. It is therefore assumed that the Plan will be
read as a whole, although some cross-referencing between Plan policies has been provided.

The process of producing the Neighbourhood Plan has identified a number of actions which
have not been included in the policies’ sections. This is because these are not specifically
related to land use matters and therefore sit outside the jurisdiction of a Neighbourhood Plan.
These actions will be addressed outside of the Neighbourhood Plan process.

Policy context

The Neighbourhood Plan represents one part of the development plan for the
neighbourhood area over the period 2020 to 2035, the other parts being the Maldon District
Local Plan (2017) which covers the period to 2029 and the Essex Minerals Local Plan (2014)
and Essex and Southend-on-Sea Waste Local Plan (2017).

Maldon District Council, as the local planning authority, designated the Great Totham
Neighbourhood Area in November 2016 to enable Great Totham Parish Council to prepare
the Neighbourhood Plan. The Plan has been prepared by the community through the Great
Totham Neighbourhood Plan (GTNP) Steering Group.

The GTNP has been prepared in accordance with the Town & Country Planning Act 1990, the
Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, the Localism Act 2011 and the Neighbourhood
Planning Regulations 2012 (as amended). The GTNP Steering Group has prepared the plan to
establish a vision for the future of the Neighbourhood Area and to set out how that vision will
be realised through planning and controlling land use and development change over the plan
period.

The map in Figure 1.1 overleaf shows the boundary of the Neighbourhood Plan Area which is
slightly smaller than the area of the civil parish. It excludes the parish area allocated in the
Maldon District Local Development Plan for the development of the North Heybridge Garden
Suburb.

Page 31



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 1.1: Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan Area boundary

T kY — W s ™ . it . 1 | S \ Frisiat? )
1o 7 A I B
Legend : wil Vsl —
-‘llIll‘ X” - "~ A :.M " . 3 3 V
“1i....., i Proposed Great Totham Neighbourhood Area wy Grqg,scﬁ?;s !, - .’{t 4 q‘f
T7\ 2 L oF I ey .
;‘warmaoum A IR "L o R S

Moce's ’
Farpm [

¥ A
UITFJLE-ROTHAN
2t | Sy it

h
NP =

\1v .-J]
() 1

5
iy

o

0 0.1750.35 0.7 1.05 14
© Crown copyright. All ights reserved Makdon Disict Council = 1000185682016 [T ——— S——\liles

Page 32



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

1.9

Minerals and waste local plans set out the policy framework within which minerals and waste
planning applications are assessed. They also contain policies which safeguard known
mineral bearing land from sterilisation, and existing, permitted and allocated mineral and
waste infrastructure from proximal development which may compromise their operation.

Essex and Southend-on-Sea Waste Local Plan (WLP)

Essex County Council is the Waste Planning Authority (WPA) for the Plan area and is
responsible for preparing planning policies and assessing applications for waste
management development. The WLP was adopted in July 2017 forming part of the statutory
Development Plan and should be read alongside the adopted Maldon Local Development
Plan. The WLP covers the period from 2017 to 2032. It sets out where and how waste
management developments can occur and contains the policies against which waste
management planning applications are assessed. Policy 2 of the WLP designates Waste
Consultation Areas within 250m of active, allocated or permitted waste management facilities
(400m in the case of Water Recycling Centres). These act to ensure that ECC are consulted on
all non-waste related development proposals to ensure that there are no detrimental impacts
which would compromise the operation of the existing facility or the newly proposed
development.

Essex Minerals Local Plan 2014 (MLP)

The Essex Minerals Local Plan 2014 (MLP) forms part of the statutory Development Plan and
should be read alongside the Maldon Local Development Plan. Sand and gravel deposits are
subject to a Minerals Safeguarding policy (Policy S8), which seeks to prevent deposits being
sterilised by on mineral development.

Mineral Consultation Areas are also established through Policy S8 and these act to ensure
that ECC is consulted on all non-mineral related development within a distance of 250m
around active, allocated and permitted quarries, and other mineral infrastructure.

Some of the Plan Area in the East, South and West and North West lie within a Mineral
Safeguarding Area (MSA) due to the presence of sand and gravel deposits beneath the ground
(see Appendix 1). These areas are subject to the Minerals Safeguarding Policy S8 of the MLP,
which seeks to prevent deposits being unnecessarily sterilised by non-mineral development.
However, all housing allocations proposed in the Neighbourhood Plan fall below the site size
threshold at which the provisions of Policy S8 are engaged.

Monitoring the Plan

Great Totham Parish Council, as the responsible body for the Neighbourhood Plan, will be
responsible for maintaining and periodically revisiting the Plan to ensure relevance and to
monitor delivery.

Maldon District Council has recently begun the review of the Maldon District Local
Development Plan. Itis recognised that an early review of the Neighbourhood Plan may be
required following the adoption of the LDP, to ensure that the Neighbourhood Plan remains
in conformity with the LDP. This will be an important matter for the local planning policy

3

Page 33



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

context. The Parish Council will assess the need or otherwise for a review of the
neighbourhood plan within six months of the adoption of the emerging Local Development
Plan.

Page 34



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

LOCAL CONTEXT

History of Great Totham

Great Totham has been a settlement since the Saxons occupied it as a lookout place, taking
advantage of its extensive open views over a long stretch of the Blackwater River. The village
has always been open and dispersed therefore has not developed over time as a historic
‘English village'. The thirteenth century church of St. Peter, the Vicarage and Totham Hall are
separated from the main village population, even at the latter's current extent.

In the early nineteenth century the parish consisted of scattered farms, their houses and
cottages. The small, principal settlements were around the Parish Gravel Pits (now Totham
South), and Totham Hill (now part of Totham North). Population was rising at this time but
this trend was checked from 1850 by agricultural decline, mechanisation and the drift to
urban industry. By 1931 Totham'’s population at 982 was only a little above what it had been
80 years previously.

The beginning of the twentieth century saw some building; there were larger properties such
as Beacons and Great Ruffins which date from this era but most houses were small, built for
rent. Local authority housing provision began after the First World War. The Ordnance Survey
map for 1958 shows a village little changed for half a century with most development around
the crossroads at Totham South and some at the Green in Totham North, along with isolated
farms and rural buildings elsewhere in the Parish.

The population had risen to 1228 by 1951 and from 1960 Great Totham began to grow into
its current shape. Larger schemes from private developers and individual infill properties
appeared in Totham North, Totham South, Broad Street Green and Beacon Hill. As a result
the population reached 2,930 in 2011. This was linked to factors such as increased car
ownership and consequent mobility so people could live further from work, coupled with a
desire to live in a more rural environment.

Employment in Great Totham was historically in agriculture and related industries such as
milling by wind and water, also brick, tile and pottery making from local clay pits. Today little
of such employment remains and most residents work in neighbouring towns or commute to
London.

Modern developments have, in the main, retained the open aspect of the earlier settlement,
its ‘Arcadian’ quality as defined and discussed elsewhere. There has been little building of an
inappropriate urban nature and buildings of different periods sit together in relative
harmony. Surveys show that, while Great Totham may not be a conventionally historic village,
its environment, views and landscape are cherished by its inhabitants.

Page 35



2.7

2.8

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Profile of the community today

Data from the 2011 Census for Great Totham parish' identifies some key features of the
population of Great Totham. Figure 2.1 shows that, compared with Maldon district and Essex
county, the parish has a high proportion of retired people - nearly one-quarter of the
population. It has a correspondingly low proportion of people of young working age (25-44).
Figure 2.1: Age profile

35%

30%

0 |
0-5 6-15

16-24 25-44 45-64 65-84 85+

NN
o u
X X

% of population
=
(9]
N

[
o
X

Age
B Great Totham H Maldon Essex

Source: 2011 Census

Figure 2.2 shows that Great Totham has a high proportion of households with married
couples and also households where every member is aged 65 or above. The profile is
predominantly of small households, either of retired people or couples with no dependent
children - although not shown in Figure 2.2, 27% of Great Totham's households consist of
couples with either no children or no dependent children, compared with 23% for Maldon
district and 20% for Essex county.

T Whilst the parish is a slightly larger area, there are few residents within the excluded area, therefore the
statistics will be only slightly different to the Neighbourhood Area.

Page 36



2.9

2.10

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 2.2: Profile of households

Other

Lone parent
Cohabiting couple
Married couple

Everyone aged 65+

Type of household

Single person aged below 65

Single person aged 65+

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%
% of households

M Essex M Maldon ™M Great Totham

Source: 2011 Census

The majority of residential properties in Great Totham are detached. Figure 2.3 shows that
nearly two-thirds are detached (which includes bungalows), with correspondingly low
proportions of terraced properties or flats. It should be noted that since 2011, there has been
some development of apartments which would serve to increase this share.

Figure 2.3: Property type

70%
60%
50%
40%

30%

20%

10% II I
0%

Detached Semi-detached Terraced Flat

% of households

Type of property
M Great Totham ™ Maldon M Essex

Source: 2011 Census

Reflecting the fact that many households in Great Totham are small yet the stock of properties
is mostly large, detached properties, a significant proportion of the residences in the parish
are under-occupied. Figure 2.4 shows that nearly 60% of properties have an occupancy rating
of +2 or more. This means that these properties have at least two spare bedrooms based on
the number of people in the household and the number of bedrooms that the property has.

Page 37



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 2.4: Occupancy rating of properties

+2 or more +1

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

% of households

10%

0%

‘ —— |
0 -1

Occupancy rating

B Great Totham ™ Maldon M Essex

Source: 2011 Census

2.11  Travel to work is predominantly by car, with nearly 50% of residents aged 16 to 74 (which
includes those not working) travelling by car, either as a driver or passenger. The proportion
that travel by rail (7%) will also mainly travel to the nearest stations by car. This is shown in
Figure 2.5.

Figure 2.5: Mode of travel to work

On foot -
Bicycle F

Bus, minibus or coach

r
Train :
Work from home -

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%
% of residents aged 16-74

M Essex M Maldon M Great Totham

Source: 2011 Census

Page 38



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

2.12

2.13

2.14

Great Totham'’s assets

Great Totham is a village surrounded by larger settlements; people move here for a quieter
and more rural lifestyle and they tend to stay. We all enjoy the open and extensive views over
countryside, which in some places extend right down to the Blackwater River. The views,
particularly from the Beacon, are very special and some of the finest in Essex; they are often
cited as the first and most compelling reason to move here. We also have many
interconnecting footpaths through the local countryside and some lightly trafficked country
lanes to walk on. From these we can enjoy the whole Parish. It is almost impossible to take a
photograph at any time of day, anywhere, without someone out on a walk with their dog
appearingin it.

The Beacon and its view Footpath from Hall Road towards
Sheepcoates Farm

Credit: Roy McPherson
Credit: Kevin Bennett

There is also a very highly regarded school here, Great Totham Primary School rated good by
Ofsted, which draws people from the parish and the surrounding area, if they can secure a
place for their child. Itis a great community hub for the generation who have children of
school age. It provides a meeting place and social life outside the school gate and through
organised extra-curricular events. It is another compelling reason to live in the parish; like
many good schools it has a full roll across its two forms of entry. The site has no physical room
for further growth.

There are a number of important opportunities for social and community interaction in Great
Totham, provided through the wide range of activities. There are extensively used sports and
playing fields in both Totham South and Totham North. There is a thriving cricket club with a
number of different teams based in Totham South. The village also has Cubs, Scouts,
Brownies and Guides groups. There is a thriving independent tennis club and Beacon Hill
Sports Ground on the border between Great Totham South and Wickham Bishops. We have
three very popular churches - St Peter's Church of England, the United Reformed Church and
The Barn Church of free denomination. In addition to religious worship they also provide a

Page 39



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Sunday School, Parent and Toddler group and a wide range of social activities not necessarily
linked to the church.

The Barn Church Allotment at the United Reformed
Church

Credit: Paul Mutton

Credit: Paul Mutton

The village has grown in a natural and some might say haphazard way, developing as a result,
a charming, if not conventional, character. As a result of this evolutionary development the
village has a number of centres which is reflected in the presence of three public halls. The
United Reform Church in Great Totham North also serves as a well-equipped social hall. The
largest Village Hall in Great Totham South is important, architecturally, as a Mackmurdo
building, and socially with a wide range of activities, which include a five-day-per-week pre-
school. There is a third, smaller historical building, Honywood Hall, which is an excellent and
well utilised meeting facility for a wide range of village activities.

The parish benefits from a number of commercial sites for social interaction. The 18-hole
Forrester Golf Club which has tennis courts, a swimming pool and croquet facilities. It also
serves as a popular wedding venue. There are two busy pubs, The Bull and The Prince of
Wales in Totham South. There is also a very popular riding stable at Marvens.

Main issues and challenges in Great Totham

Great Totham faces a number of challenges as a community, notably its ageing demographic.
This is growing a little each year and so there is a need to provide more affordable homes for
young people to start a life here and also consider houses suitable for older ‘downsizers’. It
could be argued that there are already a considerable number of single storey houses suitable
for downsizing which are occupied by older residents that will be released over time on the
open market.

There are also some quite challenging road conditions which become very apparent during
commuting hours and the school run periods. There is a badly designed 5-way junction
between Totham South and Wickham Bishops (see picture below) which is at a critical meeting
of some very busy de-restricted roads and the site of a number of accidents every year.
Another area of concern is Walden House Road - this serves the primary school and is also a
very important commuter road. At school times it becomes very heavily parked, congested

10

Page 40



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

and difficult, effectively becoming a single lane road due to inconsiderate parking which
prevents passing traffic. Obviously, the interaction of traffic with young children makes this
a serious issue. There is also the issue of crossing the busy main B1022. There is a crossing
at the centre of Totham South but there is no safe crossing in Totham North where recreation
ground and bus stop access are both an issue, as are the lack of pedestrian and cycling links
which residents of Totham North need to access the many facilities in Totham South.

Junction of Kelvedon Road, Maypole Road, Prince of Wales Road and Back Lane

Credit: Kevin Bennett

2.19  Like many rural communities, Great Totham faces issues with access to medical facilities as
there are none in thevillage. The community and Parish Council has taken the path of realism
in this regard and has begun serious investigation of the various transport options rather than
following the unrealistic aspiration of securing a medical facility in Great Totham. With our
ageing demographic this is not an issue that is taken lightly.

2.20  Afurther issue that it is felt must be addressed is the avoidance of further incursions from
urban architecture that has been brought in through modern development, by infill and
generally through the design eye of people moving from urban areas to a rural village. Many
of these matters adversely inhibit the easy everyday interactions which help build a strong
community and are covered in the Great Totham Village Design Statement (VDS). The main
issues are overly dense buildings and layouts for an Arcadian environment, the mass of built
form dominating plots, high fences and forbidding gate structures.

11
Page 41



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

3 VISION AND OBJECTIVES

Vision for Great Totham

3.1 The following vision was established for Great Totham parish over the plan period:

‘Great Totham will continue to develop as a village in an historic rural landscape, with its
own clear identity and character.

We will continue to enjoy our green spaces, woodlands and open views over farmland to
the Blackwater.

All residents will feel safe and part of a strong, friendly and open community atmosphere
where our many neighbourhood groups and social activities continue to flourish.

We recognise that some growth will be needed to ensure the village remains vibrant and
sustainable.

Development will be small in scale and appropriately designed to be in sympathy with
the existing rural character and local environment.

We will have a sound village infrastructure with safe roads, good public transport, cycle
routes and footpaths (including Public Rights of Way) connecting us with other
communities, commercial centres, providing ready access to employment and schools as
well as recreational and social facilities within the village and outside.’

Objectives for the plan

3.2 The following were identified as objectives for the Plan, in order that the vision could be
realised:

Housing and design

e Ensure high quality design of development which is in keeping with local, Arcardian
character.

e Evaluate all opportunities to meet identified housing needs.

Environment

e Protect important green spaces, woodlands and valued open views.

Transport and movement

e Improve pedestrian and cycle access between North and South Totham and improve
access into the surrounding countryside, including for equestrian users.

e Address road safety and traffic interactions with pedestrians and cyclists.

Community activities

e Help leisure and community activities in North Totham and South Totham to thrive.

12

Page 42



4.4

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

4 SPATIAL STRATEGY AND HOUSING NEED

The Maldon Local Development Plan (LDP) was adopted in 2017 and sets the spatial strategy
for the district up to 2029. As a ‘larger village', Great Totham does not have any specific
requirement to deliver housing, employment or retail growth. However, Policy S7 (Prosperous
Rural Communities) does seek to ensure that rural settlements such as Great Totham are able
to prosper through rural diversification, tourism leisure opportunities and green
infrastructure and by encouraging Rural Exception Sites? to be brought forward which can
address local housing needs.

As stated above, the LDP does not have a specific requirement for the Great Totham
Neighbourhood Plan to deliver a specific level of housing. The LDP requires all neighbourhood
plans across the district to deliver at least 100 dwellings in aggregate. Also, across the plan
area, an allowance has been made for at least 300 ‘windfall’ dwellings to be delivered between
2014 to 2029. It is understood that these requirements have already largely been met. As of
31 March 2019 there were extant planning permissions for 48 dwellings in the parish,
including one site for 30 dwellings in Hall Road.

The spatial strategy for Great Totham in this Neighbourhood Plan therefore seeks to ensure
that development is focused within the settlement development boundaries of Great Totham,
as shown in Figures 4.1 and 4.2. These boundaries are the same as those shown on the
Maldon Local Plan Policies Map. However, it is recognised that there is a need for flexibility
around the development of uses that would enhance Great Totham'’s role as a Larger Village.

Such flexibility is mainly to allow housing sites to come forward that can address local housing
needs. These are principally likely to be as Rural Exception Sites although the Neighbourhood
Plan has not identified any such sites. A clear message from the community was that Great
Totham is generally not a sustainable location for large scale residential growth. Any such
growth must be of a scale that can contribute towards addressing local housing needs but is
of a high quality design and layout which minimises its impact on the surrounding countryside
and environment. In particular, it is important that any such site is well related to the existing
settlement boundary and does not breach obvious boundaries such as roads or watercourses
where there is no significant development on the other side already.

The Plan also recognises that Beacon Hill and Broad Street Green are communities in their
own right. Whilst neither has its own settlement boundary (as defined in the Maldon District
Local Plan), both have grown over time through small scale infill development. The
Neighbourhood Plan encourages this continued, organic growth of these settlements where
it helps to sustain them and meets the policy requirements of growth outside settlement
boundaries.

2 Rural exception sites are small sites used for affordable housing in perpetuity where sites would not
normally be used for housing. They seek to address the needs of the local community by accommodating
households who are either current residents or have an existing family or employment connection. A
proportion of market homes may be allowed on the site at the local planning authority’s discretion, for
example where essential to enable the delivery of affordable units without grant funding.

13
Page 43



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 4.1: Totham North settlement boundary

- s

ii Neighbourhood Plan Area /%\: . /@
. £y Woodlands s /2 Q
3 parish Boundary ' b /&

T} Settlement Boundaries

Wheeler's Farmy

LPIeasant%g
2 Q' >

oun’_dbusl}
Corner/ //

Containg/ Orgfiance Survey data © Crown
\Qab e right. Great Totham Paris! ouncil(OlbO

14

Page 44



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 4.2: Totham South settlement boundary

R Y N
1.} Settlement Boundaries \ \’ W“\N(%ﬁg\na:;zre

=| \
Bishops Place
1\

e

falden House.

=5
N

1

1

1

,l

s

SR
Cricket {1
Ground

C av
§ | ."\i
[ FEanners Farm ¥,
L Stables
*50m
il
i Recreation
H Ground o
g ‘
!
l:
ofl ) ¥,
< O _,;j\ 1
e
Q B & ‘
NGV av,
QO &\ |
n¥, |
|

(a3 \ i
/  \
[ & R SE ik o 100 0 100
Contains fice Survey datas© Crowh copyright and 1\ [ \ \
database right. IE\Q! Totham Parish Council (0100053134) B S
7 i .-

Page 45



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

The need for development to contribute towards the provision of necessary supporting
infrastructure is important. This is principally negotiated on a case-by-case basis through
Section 106 agreements. Essex County Council publishes a Developers Guide (updated in
2020) which provides details on the scope and range of contributions towards infrastructure
which ECC may seek from developers and landowners in order to mitigate the impact and
make development acceptable in planning terms. These contributions include:

e Education - Early Years and childcare; Schools (primary, secondary, post 16, Special
Education Needs); School transport and sustainable travel

e Transport - Highways and Transportation; Sustainable Travel Planning; Passenger
Transport; Public Rights of Way

e Employment and Skills Plans
e Waste Management
e Libraries

e Flood and Water Management and Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)

Housing need

In March 2020, a Housing Needs Survey for Great Totham was published, based on a survey
of needs of the local community undertaken in 20193, The survey had a very good response
rate of 34%. There was strong support for small development providing primarily affordable
housing for local people. In total, 52 people completed the survey in full and expressed a
housing need. This was split broadly evenly between those looking to set up their
first/independent home and those wishing to downsize from their current property. This
housing need was broken down as follows:

e Open market property - 13 units
e Affordable rent* - 11 units

e Shared ownership - 2 units

e Self-build - 1 unit

¢ Notenough information - 25 units (these were either people currently living with parents,
people away at university, people in unsuitable accommodation or those looking to
downsize).

3 RCCE (2020) Rural Community Council Essex Housing Needs Survey: Great Totham, for Great Totham
Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group.

4 Affordable housing for rent meets all of the following conditions: (a) the rent is set in accordance with the
Government's rent policy for Social Rent or Affordable Rent, or is at least 20% below local market rents
(including service charges where applicable); (b) the landlord is a registered provider, except where it is
included as part of a Build to Rent scheme (in which case the landlord need not be a registered provider);
and (c) it includes provisions to remain at an affordable price for future eligible households, or for the subsidy
to be recycled for alternative affordable housing provision.

16

Page 46



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

4.8 The needs of those trying to get on the property ladder for the first time commonly relate to
having insufficient equity whereas for the downsizers, the issue is more about the availability
of suitable smaller properties, e.g. bungalows. In this regard, the younger people trying to get
on the property ladder have a housing ‘need’ which they cannot address, even if properties
are available, whereas the issue for older downsizers is more a lack of supply of the type of
property they would like to live in.

49 Across all types of need/supply shortage, the main requirement was for 2-bed properties. For
older downsizers this was preferably a bungalow.

410 The Housing Needs Survey considered that, based on the survey and reflecting the needs at
present, there is justification to provide three 1-bed units and two 2-bed units to address local
needs. It should be borne in mind that the recommendations of a Housing Needs Survey are
applicable for five years, so there are likely to be further needs that arise later in the plan
period.

4.11  Whilst the Neighbourhood Plan does not identify specific sites to deliver such needs, it
supports the delivery of any rural exception sites or small, market-led sites which specifically
address these needs for smaller properties, including bungalows.

412 Itisimportant that this evidence is kept up to date, therefore any sites coming forward after
2025 (when the Housing Needs Survey has expired) will need to be supported by up-to-date
evidence of need.

4.13  Alldevelopment proposals will be expected to contribute as necessary towards infrastructure
which shall include transport and movement (including community transport and
infrastructure to improve pedestrian safety), health, education community facilities, utilities
and environmental improvements, through direct provision and/or developer contributions
(including Section 106 and/or, as appropriate, Community Infrastructure Levy).

POLICY GTO1: SPATIAL STRATEGY

A. New development in Great Totham Parish will be focused within the settlement
boundaries of North Totham and South Totham as shown in Figures 4.1 and 4.2.

Development proposals to meet identified local housing needs on sites that are
outside the settlement boundary will be supported where they meet all of the
following criteria:

It can be demonstrated that no available and deliverable site exists within
the settlement boundary.

The site is well related to the settlement boundary, sharing a boundary
on at least one side.

The site does not breach an existing defensible boundary, e.g.
watercourse or main road, where there is not already development on
both sides.

17
Page 47



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

5.1

5.2

53

5.4

HIGH QUALITY ARCADIAN DESIGN

Great Totham parish sits at the western edge of a band of Essex landscape stretching from
the Suffolk border to the River Thames. This contains former heathland and wooded hills,
overlapping with the low-lying coastal zone of the River Blackwater. The village lies on a
generally south-east facing slope from Beacon Hill (at 292 feet, the highest point in Maldon
district and one of the highest in South Essex), to near sea level at Chigborough Farm. From
Beacon Hill views stretch to Southend-on-Sea, Mersea Island and the coast of North Kent. The
natural landscape has helped form the character of Great Totham and is a key influence on
the village's social and economic development.

Layout

Great Totham is regarded as an ‘Arcadian’ settlement. This means that it is dispersed and
does not cluster around a street or green. As a result there is no sense of enclosure or an
urban configuration. This has been a fundamental principle that has informed the way that
Great Totham has evolved as a village over time. Unfortunately, some recent development
has not adhered to these principles and feels out of character with the rest of the village. The
community considers it very important to re-establish these Arcardian principles in the design
of new development.

Definition: ‘ARCADIAN SETTLEMENT’

‘One that is dispersed and does not have a core street or green at their heart. Instead
there are various dispersed groupings or hamlets each with its own specific, but fairly
small historic core. There is no scale or sense of enclosure approaching an almost urban
configuration.’

Source: Maldon District Characterisation Assessment 2012

A description of local character is given in the Village Design Statement 2022. Responding to
and respecting local character should be the starting point for every new design. The
following section is an abridged version of the Great Totham Village Design Statement (VDS).
The full VDS is available at Appendix A of the Neighbourhood Plan (due to file size, this is
provided as a separate downloadable document).

Most of Great Totham'’s present stock of properties have been developed since the 1920s.
Analysis of the density of the development since this time has shown that in Totham South,
densities generally varied between 15 and 20 dwellings per hectare (dph) and in Totham
North, between 13 and 20 dph. There are some exceptions but these have been where
apartment development has been included, e.g. Heriot Way and Beadle Place. Whilst no
absolute constraint should necessarily be placed on density, this highlights how development
has been designed at comparatively low densities and has shaped the feeling of space in the
Arcadian settlement areas.

18

Page 48



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

5.5

5.6

5.7

Well-spaced bungalows set back from the road
Credit: Kevin Bennett

Properties of various periods sit in close proximity but do not generally ‘jar’. The village's open
configuration means that houses sit back from the road with front gardens; hedges and low
walls predominate rather than fences. Developments are interspersed with trees and are
generally laid out to follow and respect the natural lie of the land.

In established areas and the more open plan estates, houses look outwards and towards
roads. By contrast, some recent additions have a more enclosed feel with single road access
points, higher densities, smaller plots and taller buildings. One example is Beadle Place, built

on re-used industrial land.

5 ~ S

Tall houses with small front gardens, Beadle Place
Credit: Google Maps

The open feel of the Arcadian settlement means that there are myriad views between
buildings. Development in keeping is generally laid out to enable this; one modern example
is Barber Close. Development should be laid out in such a way as to offer views between
buildings. This includes small infill development within the settlement boundaries.

19

Page 49



5.8

5.9

5.10

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Housing laid out to allow glimpses of countryside to rear, Barber Close
Credit: Kevin Bennett

The topography of the landscape has also influenced the visual impact of development in
certain parts of Great Totham. One example of flats built in a former quarry (Heriot Way) is a
good example of how new development can be sensitively blended in with the contours of
the landscape. Where development is likely to have a visual impact, this should be an
important consideration of the design and layout.

Flats at Heriot Way
Credit: Kevin Bennett

Style and materials

As the development of the village was incremental, houses with different styles and finishes
jostle together. Some larger twentieth century developments have generally succeeded in
breaking up their impact and softening their appearance through judicious variations in
materials and finishes. This is seen as a good thing.

The Great Totham Village Design Statement 2022 identifies a number of features of the design
of buildings across the parish. These include:

e Avariety of modern brick colours which introduce variety within streets.

20

Page 50



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Variety of brick and wall finish
Credit: Kevin Bennett

e Render, which is used throughout the village, both on individual properties and in estate
locations and gives welcome variety and contrast to brick.

Variety of render finishes
Credit: Kevin Bennett

e Agreatvariety of roof styles, with pitched roofs of varying angles, hipped roofs and a few
mansard roofs. They also exhibit a variety of roof materials.

Roof styles
Credit: Kevin Bennett

e Dormers are found on houses of all ages, providing a welcome variety in roof lines and
adding a degree of individuality to streetscapes.

Dormer windows
Credit: Kevin Bennett

21

Page 51



5.1

5.12

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

e The great majority of village dwellings sit back from the road with front gardens.
Boundaries are defined by low hedges, stone or brick walls, shrubs or even simply the
edge of lawns. Properties should avoid sitting very close to the road or jutting aggressively
into sightlines.

Given that most new building in Great Totham will be small scale infill within the settlement,
their suitability in relation to existing, neighbouring buildings is important. The watchword in
the Village Design Statement is “Architectural Good Manners". Each residential development
proposal should include a proportionate statement and illustrations demonstrating how the
principles and guidance in the Village Design Statement have been addressed.

Policy GTO2 focuses on residential development. It is considered that the limited amount of
commercial development is satisfactorily addressed by the policies in the Maldon Local Plan.

POLICY GTO2: HIGH QUALITY ARCADIAN DESIGN

A. Residential development should demonstrate high quality design and layout
which respects the ‘Arcadian’ nature, and local character identified in the Village
Design Statement, of Great Totham. In particular this means:

i The layout avoiding an overly dense feel, including the configuration of
parking provision (see Policy GTOS8).
Opportunities are taken to retain views between buildings.
Where the topography of the landscape is not flat and development is
very visual, it is designed to blend into the contours of the landscape.
Development provides sensitive lighting to retain the dark skies in Great
Totham.

In delivering high quality design, residential development proposals should
demonstrate that they reflect the Arcadian nature and the local character
identified in the Village Design Statement of Great Totham through the use of
design, materials and features. Where appropriate, the following design features
should be incorporated into design proposals:

i Provision of a variety of brick and render materials, roof styles and
features. The choice of materials is expected to minimise the carbon
footprint of development.

Development is set back from roads and boundary treatments are at a
low level, creating an open feel.

Landscaping, including boundary treatments such as hedges, shall be
used to ensure development does not create a hard edge.

22
Page 52



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

6 ENVIRONMENT

6.1 The landscape and natural environment of Great Totham is varied and diverse and highly

appreciated by residents. This variety is shown by the assessment® which identified its distinct
landscape character areas. These are shown in Figure 6.1 below.

Figure 6.1: Landscape Character Areas across Great Totham parish

"} Neighbourhood Plan Area e B
3 parish Boundary ; e
- = &
r_j Settlement Boundaries i e Hawhorms
Character Areas: Y & O,
Great Braxted o .
A7 - Lower Chelmer River Valley o R Porters Fam )

22 P90 Fatram Fai

D2 - Maldon Drained Estuarine
E1 - Tolleshunt Coastal Farmland
F3 - Totham Wooded Farmland

Hirem o 8
Prmross %
F4 - Tolleshunt Knights Wooded Farmland e .
i
Pt
o=
4 PomemmrOut
4 %
b:'\ }'
& / Y
:,v‘ %.v
> Wickham ‘o K \
1.“; Bishops ?‘—1 * & /t - Heatesd 4
2 ! 3 : 3
o8 a";lurlv“:;a‘r:, & /A | e £ Faer <
ad 2 2 %
A ~e ]
& 8
Z g
198 Road
Wakoure Fomn
ang 3
]

o
Totham Has

OnkLodge

-
e
Lancin Form
|
Red Lodge -
: Longon
&
z
B
Langford O
e Chappe Farm
3
/ { Heybridge \ i)
: ot idow Cronorougn Fam
A ;
! 5 A / i o
' B egn ;_.: Strest s“ v,'c f 1
Wiows i & ¥ \ | ghanger Berow € )
s o . e %ag wrn  vauity M \
 Ad14] S s ¢ g Bungaiow
Y S 2 A 500" = 0 500 1,000 m
o ¥
ContaingfiEinance Sufvey data-© Crown copyright and database tight 2020 .ty ran i

Source: From 2006 Landscape Character Assessment (Chris Blandford Associates)

> Chris Blandford Associates (2006) Braintree, Brentwood, Chelmsford, Maldon and Uttlesford Landscape
Character Assessments, for the respective District Councils

23

Page 53



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

This shows that the majority of the parish where the settlements are is classified as ‘Totham
Wooded Farmland'. Its key characteristics are:

Wooded ridges and hillsides to the east of the River Blackwater.

Predominantly agricultural fields enclosed by woodland patches or hedgerows with
mature trees.

Some field boundaries are thickly enclosed, as at Beacon Hill, whereas some are more
open with gappy hedges.

o 5 25D

y: .vrv;;/‘ i : Mo : ¢
ng Wood viewed from Braxted Lane, Great Totham North

Strowli

Credit: Roy McPherson

The comparatively well-wooded nature of the majority of the parish is recognised in the
Landscape Character Assessment. This not only provides a very visually attractive landscape
but also provides a range of habitats for a wide variety of flora and fauna.

Views

In contrast to the generally flat topography of much of the wider surrounding area, the land
rises up around Great Totham, culminating with Beacon Hill being the highest pointin Maldon
district and one of the highest in South Essex. Coupled with the wooded farmland across
much of the parish, there are some significant views of value.

The views that must be preserved are not only where the land slopes over a distance. Along
with the long distance views from Beacon Hill and St Peters Church towards the edges of the
parish are more localised views which, to the existing community, represent the best
examples of the farmed and wooded landscapes in the parish. A summary of the views is
shown in Figure 6.2, with the detail of each view shown in Appendix B.

24

Page 54



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 6.2: Views

777" Neighbourhood Plan Area 4

D Parish Boundary
—' View Direction

~ W View Corridor

® Great Totham
cricket field

Note: Views 2 and 3 are long distance and extent to in excess of 20km and 12km respectively

25

Page 55



6.6

6.7

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

View 1: View of Strowling Wood and Mountains Grove from Braxted Lane

Credit: Roy McPherson

This is a medium-distance view that displays very well the character of the Totham Farmed
Woodland character, with a series of ancient woodlands on the top of the ridge. Strowling
Wood is seen in the centre-right of the picture. Braxted Lane is a quiet country lane which
makes it a popular route for walkers and cyclists.

View 2: View from Beacon Hill in Goat Lodge Road

Credit: Kevin Bennett

This is one of the longest distance views in Essex, stretching to Southend-on-Sea, Mersea
Island and the coast of North Kent. It also shows the Tolleshunt Coastal Farmland character
of the more open area to the east and includes the village gateway at the village hall, as well
as glimpses of Totham Hill Green.

26

Page 56



6.8

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

View 3: View south-east towards Goldhanger and Osea Island

Credit: Kevin Bennett

This is a medium- to long-distance view across the Tolleshunt Coastal farmland and the River
Blackwater towards Goldhanger and Osea Island. The view can be seen from the footpath
that moves towards the Beacon from close to the Bull Inn. This footpath is sandwiched
between garden fences and a hedgerow boundary of the Bull Meadow. At the top of Staplers
Heath estate, it opens out and within a few metres exposes the vista. It would be particularly
vulnerable to inappropriate development of Totham South.

27

Page 57



6.9

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

View 4: View from the footpaths close to Spickets Wood

Credit: Andrew Boorman

This is a short- to medium-distance view up to the Beacon across Bull Meadow, in which the
village hall, cricket ground and Bull Inn catch your eye. From the permissive bridlepath, the
view widens to include a view up to Totham North and Totham Green. This vista highlights
the sensitivity of the landscape to ribbon development along the B1022 between Totham
North and South, as well as outside the southern settlement boundary of Totham North.
There is a water recycling plant in Spickets Wood. Whilst this does not add to to the view, itis
recognised that there may need to be future upgrades to this in order to provide sewerage
services. Development to support such upgrades is supported in principle.

View 5: View towards St Peter's Church and along Church Road

Credit: Roy McPherson

28

Page 58



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

One half of this view is a short-distance view from the bridge over Spickets Brook near
Jepcracks Farm towards St Peter’s Church. It is the best view of St Peter's Church, a grade II*
listed church with its Grade Il listed monuments and rectory, in the parish.

o
Credit: Roy McPherson

As you scan towards the north-west and move along Church Road, a medium-distance view
towards Spickets Wood and then further in the distance, the Beacon, can be seen.

Totham's cricket field is seen as one of the most precious assets in the community. Not only
does it enable Great Totham Cricket Club to play matches and for spectators to enjoy this, but
it provides this in a very attractive setting. Whilst this attractive setting is not a view like those
identified above, development in the sight line across the cricket field looking towards the
village hall and pavilion would have a detrimental impact on the character of the setting
unless it is well designed.

View north-east across Totham cricket field towards the pavilion

e

Credit: Paul Mutton

Any development that is highly visible in this view would have a detrimental impact on its
setting. Given the line of the settlement boundary, such risks would be most likely to come

29

Page 59



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

from development encroaching on either side of the field, thereby narrowing the view.
Therefore, it is necessary that any development proposals must clearly show how their scale,
design and layout minimise this and safeguard the setting of the cricket field generally.

POLICY GTO3: IMPORTANT VIEWS AND SETTING OF TOTHAM CRICKET FIELD

A. The Plan identifies the following key views which contribute to the character and
the appearance of the neighbourhood area:
1. View of Strowling Wood and Mountains Grove from Braxted Lane
View from Beacon Hill in Goat Lodge Road
View south-east towards Goldhanger and Osea Island
View from the footpaths close to Spickets Wood
View towards St Peter’'s Church and along Church Road

The design, scale, massing and layout of development proposals should respect

the identified key views and should not unacceptably impact from their
significance in the neighbourhood area.

Development proposals which would unacceptably impact on the identified key
views will not be supported.

Development should take account of the setting of Totham cricket field (as
shown on Figure 6.2). Any development proposals adjacent or close to the cricket
field should be designed and arranged in a manner which would safeguard the
setting of the cricket field and keep any impacts to the minimum necessary to
achieve the delivery of the development proposed.

Green wildlife corridors and wildlife-friendly design

6.14  Traveling on Kelvedon Road or Mountains Road and walking the nearby footpaths, it is easy
to see why this is classified as the Totham Wooded Farmland landscape character area. This
part of the parish with its deciduous woodlands, mature hedgerows, mixed sized arable and
pasture fields, and long scale views out toward the Blackwater Estuary, is the epitome of this
landscape designation.

30
Page 60



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Wood Anemones and Bluebells in South Wildlife corridor along Mountains Road,
Wood, Totham South from the Beacon to Mountains Grove

Credit: Andrew Boorman Credit: Andrew Boorman

31

Page 61



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 6.3: Environmental designations in the Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan area

Noak's Cross
Wood L Cottages Noak's i
od Lodg crartan § S . Neighbourhood Plan Area
. p { Bra, oy - 1 .
§ Pt 1 _ .1 Settlement Boundaries
Bramble 2 '@’b o S
o % ey Hawihoms ¢ Veteran trees
E)
A) . o *
& ¢ Invasive Non-Native Species
. ¢ Great Braxted ~ .
PP Pertes am: vy Ancient Woodlands
L iSedons.Farm $ 3 _—---"\\ Poultry Farm & 254
3 \ v, sssl
- U ’ . . .
i Q Joo X Local Wildlife Sites
? o
%, Threadgold's Farm 1, Y =
o oamy )
== | v 2 Hil Farm 2
S S (Primosa 2\ %
Hale' Farm M Hil Fam S
: \ Damens %,
i o+ ) Brick '\, g Hil Fam @
X Lite N KinFam Sw %
3 %,
ysham : Loamylands |
fouse \ A "
'3 -y# Y Two Eims
| Rk w/ J
- A ) \ — y ‘
“Chantry Wood = ﬁ': S "‘ Roughways Farm Phessant Oak |
) o SN ~ & $
o pescd® o * L “2
- Seripos Fam * z
. . = . s
Beacon Hill S
T = A0,
1t ; 2% =
. Wickham [} (8
p H
Bishops ‘:I % % & g Heathfied Farm | %
y 5 P { 2 { i
o 5 o Bockingnam Road=—— .Totham Bl _ Office Famm ®
3 ¢ o 4 b &
& Pk == ¢ 5 Tl
A58 (A W T 5 /&R
B e ' 7 §
H LN [ % © Hatehing Ten /
3 [ 2 /
5 A 3 Y ]
- e ;g
P ] ' |
- N .
' L)
\ I' " \‘
house Farm l'l "\ /_/ -
/o Vihite House o qio0d Lang= / z
i cnurch ROF gt "/ & fﬂ
1/, Jeperack's Fam  Godroy's Farm : Moors Fa{"“‘ ‘ v ﬁ@
4 , | o
= )
"% |
' \
) \
- \
Eastiand Wocd "W}"“ \
1
U vy ,.? /
/ § 4
L e Langiord Park ; T 7 Litte ®
Bungalow ? o Home Fam ¥ 31 { Tomamran S 8
) ! [ & =
ak Lodge ] Chur _é.
[ / : Lwe b2
1 London Farm :
[ [
! | | S I\
1 \ Sains Hall \
A " \
= 1 Furzelands Farm
| Red Lodge | 3 Lt
I* y S | Broad Street Landon Farm
H % a
£ . '
b - e, -
E 7 b
B I
£ ]
\ : » \ Brick
2 I‘f Cottages (
t Langford s
i
£
s
5
%

Beeleigh "~

Contaifim@rdnance

32

Page 62



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

The parish has a number of ancient woodlands - including South Wood and Spickets Wood -
Sites of Special Scientific Interest and Local Wildlife Sites® that are fundamental components
of the landscape (see Figure 6.3). An objective of the Neighbourhood Plan is to better link
them for local animals through the identification of green/wildlife corridors. Using the existing
network of mature hedgerows, streams and copses it is possible to create these wildlife
corridor linkages. However, the network has significant gaps and this is one area where
working with landowners could enhance habitat connectivity. This system must be seen in
totality in order that it can become a functioning ecosystem. Habitat fragmentation is now
seen as one of the major threats to species.

Using recorded data on the presence of species it has been possible to refine a concept of
‘stepping stones’ and green and blue wildlife corridors. This has helped visualise Great
Totham's habitats, their fragmentation, but also more importantly their connectivity.
‘Stepping stones’ are discrete areas of identifiable habitat capable of supporting a range of
associated flora and fauna. They also provide for migration of fauna around the parish.

Green wildlife corridors are typically linear features composed of hedgerows and field
margins that have been found to link the stepping stones. Ideally, they should be free of gaps
although field entrances are not seen as important. The more species diverse the hedgerow
and margins the better and those close to the Totham Wooded Farmland landscape character
area are excellent examples.

Similar to green wildlife corridors, blue wildlife corridors differ by the presence of historic
streams and water courses. The Parish does not have rivers and Catchpole Brook tends to
run dry in summer. However, irrespective of the presence or absence of running water, blue
wildlife corridors provided the same benefits as green wildlife corridors. However, there are
likely to be additional invertebrates, which will be attractive to species such as bat and
swallow.

Figures 6.4 and 6.5 show the stepping stones and wildlife corridors in the north and the south
of the neighbourhood area respectively.

6 Mountain’s Wood, Strowling Wood, Spickets Wood, Captain’s Wood, Ash Plantation/Bog Grove, South
Wood and Middle Wood

33

Page 63



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 6.4: Stepping stones and wildlife corridors in Totham parish - north

"I Neighbourhood Plan Area

3 Parish Boundary

Local Wildlife Sites

Non Local Wildlife Site Stepping Stones
including Forrester Park Golf Course

4> Green Wildlife Corridors
4 Blue Wildlife Corridors

4

) » ¥, d ;

34

Page 64



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 6.5: Stepping stones and wildlife corridors in Totham parish - south

p—
&

Neighbourhood Plan Area

D Parish Boundary

T_ 3 Settlement Boundaries
Local Wildlife Sites !

Non Local Wildlife Site Stepping Stones &

4> Green Wildlife Corridors :

4> Blue Wildlife Corridors

sy

ckhatr:
ishops

35
Page 65



6.20

6.21

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Where the protection and enhancement of green corridors can most easily be compromised
iswhere development is poorly designed with little thought for wildlife movement. The design
of individual buildings and of neighbourhood scale green and open spaces, including private
gardens, will help to ensure that the species present in Great Totham can thrive. Thisis in line
with the national planning guidance for achieving net biodiversity gain through all new
development. Examples of the simple solutions that well-thought out design can easily
incorporate are:

e Integral bird and bat boxes under the eaves of the new houses, or artificial nests sited in
places away from windows and doors, can create vital new roosting sites to support
populations of birds and bats.

e Boundaries between dwellings can be made hedgehog friendly by including pre-cut holes
for hedgehogs to more effectively move across neighbourhoods to forage.

¢ New planting schemes can support bees and other pollinators by including nectar-rich
plants.

gt L

Hedgehog-friendly fencing

Credit: Pinterest Credit: Pinterest

Planting is an important aspect of development. Not only does a well-considered planting
scheme provide high quality landscaping, it is a fundamental aspect of enhancing biodiversity
that otherwise would be lost. This is particularly the case with development of greenfield sites.
Planting schemes should not simply be trees, but a range of shrubs and grasses too, and
should seek to include native species.

—

5 B
Hawthorn in bloom Mature planting in Hall Road, Totham South
Credit: Andrew Boorman Credit: Andrew Boorman

36

Page 66



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

POLICY GTO4: GREEN/BLUE WILDLIFE CORRIDORS AND WILDLIFE-FRIENDLY
DEVELOPMENT

A. As appropriate to their scale, nature and location, development proposals are
expected to deliver net biodiversity gains in addition to protecting existing
habitats and species. Development proposals on or adjacent to the green or blue
wildlife corridors or stepping stones identified in Figures 6.4 and 6.5 must
demonstrate a layout and design which ensures that wildlife is not impeded in its
movement along the corridor. Proposals to enhance the green and blue wildlife
corridors will be particularly supported.

In particular, the incorporation of design features into new development that

encourages local wildlife to thrive, is strongly encouraged.

As appropriate to their scale, nature and location, development proposals should
be designed to retain trees, shrubs and hedgerows of arboricultural, habitat and
amenity value on-site and to conserve and enhance connectivity to the wider
green and blue infrastructure networks. Where practicable, any new planting
should consist of native species of trees, shrubs and grasses and be designed in a
way that would allow their use as stepping stones for wildlife.

. As appropriate to their scale, nature and location, development proposals should
incorporate sustainable drainage and natural flood management techniques.

Recreational disturbance

6.22  The published Habitats Regulations Assessments (HRAs) for the emerging Local Plans in Essex
have identified recreational disturbance as an issue for all of the Essex coastal habitat sites.
Mitigation measures have been identified but, at this scale and across a number of local
planning authorities, is best tackled strategically and through a partnership approach. This
ensures maximum effectiveness of conservation outcomes and cost efficiency. In recognition
of this, Natural England recommended a strategic approach to mitigation along the Essex
coast. This is referred to as the Essex Coast Recreational disturbance Avoidance and
Mitigation Strategy (‘the Essex Coast RAMS') and aims to deliver the mitigation necessary to
avoid significant adverse effects from ‘in-combination’ impacts of residential development
that is anticipated across Essex. This will protect the Habitats (European) sites on the Essex
coast from adverse effect on site integrity. All new residential developments within the
evidenced Zone of Influence where there is a net increase in dwelling numbers are included
in the Essex Coast RAMS.

6.23  Financial contributions will be sought for all residential development which falls within the
zones of influence towards a package of measures to avoid and mitigate likely significant
adverse effects.

6.24  Great Totham parish is entirely within one of the Essex Coast RAMS zones of influence. Details
of the zones of influence and the necessary measures are included in the Essex Coast RAMS

37

Page 67



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) which was adopted by Maldon District Council in
August 2020.

POLICY GTOS5: RECREATIONAL DISTURBANCE AND MITIGATION

A. All residential development within the zones of influence of European Sites will
make an appropriate financial contribution towards mitigation measures, as
detailed in the Essex Coast Recreational disturbance Avoidance and Mitigation
Strategy (RAMS) Supplementary Planning Document, to avoid adverse in-
combination recreational disturbance effects on European Sites.

B. All residential development within the zones of influence should deliver all
measures identified (including strategic measures) through project level Habitat
Regulations Assessment (HRAs), or otherwise, to mitigate any recreational
disturbance impacts in compliance with the Habitat Regulations and Habitats
Directive.

Environmental impact of development

6.25 The Climate Change Act 2008 committed the UK to an 80% reduction in CO, emissions by
2050. In June 2019, an announcement was made by Government to reduce this further to
almost 100% by 2050. This will be a major task that will require everyone to be engaged, from
households and communities, to businesses and local and national government.

6.26  In 2016, the residential sector alone accounted for over 16% of the UK's annual greenhouse
gas emissions (source: Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy). The total
emissions from all building types will therefore be much greater. Standards for ecologically
sustainable homes and developments are now optional’.

Green roof Rainwater harvesting system
Credit: Pinterest Credit: Pinterest

7 The Code for Sustainable Homes was withdrawn by the Government in 2015 and this has been replaced by
national technical standards, which include optional Building Regulations standards regarding water and
access as well as a national space standard (this is in addition to the existing mandatory Building Regulations).

38

Page 68



6.27

6.28

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

It is vital that new homes and other buildings are built to the highest possible standards and
are designed in a way that minimises their carbon footprint. This not only means that they
should be exceptionally well insulated, but they must have low water demand (and maximise
use of grey water) and maximise renewable sources in the provision of their energy.

Yet the ability to cope with the impacts of climate change impact is not simply about the
physical structure of buildings. Development must be able to adapt to more intense rainfall,
the possibility of flooding, plus heat waves and droughts. The design of developments
therefore needs to more carefully consider matters such as shading, insulation and
ventilation, surface water runoff and storage and the use of appropriate tree and other
planting.

POLICY GTO6: ENERGY EFFICIENCY OF BUILDINGS AND RENEWABLES

A. Proposals for new development, including the construction of new buildings and
the redevelopment and refurbishment of existing building stock, must
demonstrate how the design of buildings and site layouts minimise consumption
of energy, water, minerals, materials and other natural resources in order to
provide resilience to the effects of climate change.

B. All developments should demonstrate how they have been designed to
incorporate measures to adapt to climate change. As appropriate to their scale,
nature and location development proposals should incorporate the following
measures:

Wherever possible, new buildings shall be orientated to maximise the
opportunities for both natural heating and ventilation and reducing
exposure to wind and other elements;

Proposals involving both new and existing buildings shall demonstrate how
they have been designed to maximise resistance and resilience to climate
change for example by including measures such as solar shading, thermal
mass, heating and ventilation of the building and appropriately coloured
materials in areas exposed to direct sunlight, green and brown roofs, green
walls, etc;

Use of trees and other planting, where appropriate as part of a landscape
scheme, to provide shading of amenity areas, buildings and streets and to
help to connect habitat, designed with native plants that are carefully
selected, managed and adaptable to meet the predicted changed climatic
conditions; and

All development shall minimise surface water runoff to prevent off-site
flooding through the design of a suitable SuDS-based drainage system, and
where possible incorporate mitigation and resilience measures for any
increases in flood risk that may occur due to climate change. Opportunities
should be taken to reduce flood risk to existing residential properties
through new development, particularly if this is located within a Critical
Drainage Area (CDA)..

39
Page 69



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

This page is intentionally blank

40

Page 70


tara
Text Box
This page is intentionally blank


APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

7.1

7.2

7.3

TRANSPORT AND MOVEMENT

In a rural community such as Great Totham, it is inevitable that a significant proportion of
journeys are made by car and that households have high levels of car ownership. In 2011,
each household in the parish had access to an average of 1.8 vehicles, compared with 1.6
vehicles across Maldon district and 1.37 vehicles in Essex county. Only 6% of households did
not have access to a vehicle, compared with 13% in Maldon district and 18% in Essex county®.

Issues of traffic flow and safety along the narrow lanes around Great Totham are important
to the local community. Whilst highway matters are not issues that a neighbourhood plan can
directly address, there are infrastructure improvements that could be made to slow the traffic
passing through the villages and at key junctions along the B1022 Maldon Road. These
improvements - which could include digital speed signs, better signage and changes to road
alignments - could be funded through developer contributions secured from development.
The intention by Maldon District Council to putin place a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
charge would make this more certain, as not all development can be required to make such
contributions through Section 106. Section 9 contains a list of priority actions that the
community would wish to see delivered. It is recognised that that these actions would need
to be agreed by Essex County Council as highway authority.

Car parking

Another effect of high car ownership is parking issues. Inadequate off-street parking provision
can lead to indiscriminate parking, which not only can affect the amenity and convenience of
residents but may also prejudice the safety of pedestrians, drivers and the passage of utility
and emergency vehicles. Poorly planned on-street parking often results in parking on
footways and verges, which not only affects the appearance of the street scene, but can
present difficulties for pedestrians, those using push chairs, and people with impaired
mobility, especially if using mobility equipment.

Pavement parking in Heriot Way

Credit: Graham Thorne

8 Source: 2011 Census

41
Page 71



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

7.4

7.5

7.6

The intensification of use of existing housing stock, specifically adding loft bedrooms and
filling in garages, has not always considered parking implications where additional cars
supporting larger household numbers are pushed off the property onto pavements and
access roads.

In 2018, Maldon District Council adopted its own Vehicle Parking Standards Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD)°. This provides up-to-date parking standards for all types of
development and is a material consideration in planning applications. For residential
development, there is a requirement for a certain number of spaces per dwelling, depending
on the number of bedrooms. There is also a requirement to provide visitor parking. This can
be provided in a range of different ways, although if provided in garages, it must be
demonstrated that the garages are large enough to accommodate a modern vehicle. Policy
GTO7 takes account of this strategic approach. The same account will be taken of any updates
to the parking standards.

Garage space that is not large enough even for a small car
Credit: Bob Tarpey

The Neighbourhood Plan is supportive of these parking standards and in Great Totham
adherence to them is considered vital to the delivery of high quality development. In this
regard, alternatives to garages are encouraged. Whilst car ports and communal parking areas
provide less storage space - a common and sometimes primary use of garages - they do
provide spaces that are used for their intended purpose more fully. In particular, given the
need for development to use space efficiently, such alternative forms of parking provision can
be an important part of delivering higher quality schemes. A good example is the parking
provision in Beadle Place.

® Maldon District Council (2018) Vehicle Parking Standards, Maldon District Local Development Plan
Supplementary Planning Document

42

Page 72



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

7.7

7.8

Covered communal parking in Beadle Place
Credit: Google Maps

POLICY GTO7: PARKING PROVISION

In order to ensure good design and layout of development, particularly residential

development, proposals for parking are encouraged to use car ports and/or
communal parking to deliver their parking requirements. All parking provision must
be permanently available for parking use.

Walking and cycling

Alongside the bus, providing opportunities to walk and cycle to local services and facilities is
equally important. Great Totham is a community with two distinct built-up areas not far from
one another. Many important facilities such as the primary school, the main village hall, the
local shop and the Post Office are based in Totham South, with the United Reform Church
hall, allotments and flower shop in Totham North. Midway between the two is Forrester Park
Golf and Country Club which provides numerous social activities. As a result, a good
proportion of the community want to be able to walk between Totham North and South yet
feel restricted by the limited options and quality of routes for walking.

Figure 7.1 below shows that, whilst there is a network of footpaths and bridleways, the
linkages between Totham North and South and between Totham North and Wickham Bishops
are poor. Also, this map does not show the quality of the routes, with some being overgrown
and difficult to use in winter because of poor drainage. Certainly there are a number of these
routes that can only be used as recreational walking routes, rather than as realistic
alternatives for providing pedestrian access to services and facilities in the settlements. Nearly
half of those that completed the community survey stated that the footpaths needed
improvement.

43

Page 73



7.9

7.10

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Footpath from Beckingham Road South towards Jepcracks Farm
Credit: Kevin Bennett

Through the Neighbourhood Plan, a series of three short circular walks, a longer, ramblers
walk and a circular cycle route have been developed (see Appendix D). These routes connect
up existing footpaths and bridleways using some on-road sections. Whilst not ideal to have
on-road route sections, this does help to create some attractive walking and cycling routes
which were well received when tested through the process of community consultation.
Proposals to enhance these routes through improved signage and by making them more
accessible for a greater part of the year would be welcomed.

In terms of directly linking Totham North and South, the creation of a continuous footpath is
not without significant hurdles but with goodwill, negotiation and sufficient funding there are
enough options to see it completed. Every opportunity should be considered including, where
appropriate, funding through developer contributions.

44
Page 74



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 7.1: Map of footpaths and bridleways

i} Neighbourhood Plan Area e,
| ®
[ parish Boundary VR, - 5.,
r=s . Sextons Farm Poullry Farm O‘a_
1. 2 Settlement Boundaries
\ A Jd
Public Rights of Way: 0 7 ¢
— Bridlewav 7 Loamy
Hill Farm
Byway _ e ‘
— Footpath A . N
L Litle
- = National Cycle Route otrans Fer e
i i ﬁ:?"’fg’: : L  Twol
~Mountaing ROQ,

. And Panlry

Ao

Roundbush Far Pheasant Oak

83
\ %~ Beacon Hill-

o
| Mountams -
\__ Grove

= Scripps Farm

. A

Great
Mounitzins Farm

5 'I‘
!
Wigkham |#

.Bishops = .
: PS : Heathfiald Farm

< Totham Hill ' Office Farm

{

Hatching Tan® 4

3
:

P

= o
. S P
Jeporack's Fam  Gagfrey's Farm '_l 5
] b A
¢
i
Eaztiand wosd Cunflprm 17 | Captan's Wood
The WorkshoP “ %Champions. Tn
/ Lt Lodgs - o /
/ 3 _
' s
viount / 2 .
Shey Langlord Park " /..
T o Home Farm / / Sheepcoates Fam Toham Hal
{ e - { o y

-
{ | 4 Lecmurer™
\ ! Litha |
[ " f London Farm
! 1D

~

l Pennyl Brook |

(

Littla \
London Farm

ralands Farm

Broad Street
Green

o
R

“ | Siough
House Farm

@himbersugh Rosd = "

\
sl l \ Colta
m

ue HseM=C

Chigborough Farm il

7500 1,000 m

e ;eele-ghﬁ“ N
Conttéfins Ordiiafice Subvey: dat.

arkumtorss o

45



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 7.2: Map of Pedestrian Walkway Routes in Totham North

N

"I Neighbourhood Plan Area
3 parish Boundary

I"} Settlement Boundaries

= = Pedestrian Walkway Routes .\\\
Facilities:

@ Public House

() Chapel and Allotments
@ Florist

[ Playing Fields

w27

1
]
e b Brick-Kiln Farm

L

heeler's I-Tai'Q &
A o
P 8
&) o
‘:—5‘




APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Figure 7.3: Map of Pedestrian Walkway Routes in Totham South

i1 Neighbourhood Plan Area @ Primary School
_uwert O Parish Boundary @ Public House

I} Settlement Boundaries @ Riding School/Stables
= = Pedestrian Walkway Routes @ Village Hall and Cricket Ground
2// Facilities: [ Playing Fields
— @ Church [ Historic Park and Gardens
@ Cubs/Scout Centre Fishing Lakes

=" @ Post Office/General Stores
. Mountains Sau X

¢

on "——’ g Py ‘\9’0
4 \ /

Applebys Farm 1
. Bull Grove
£ i BishOps‘?\_lace v ) A \
N 0 A - B E 3 LY ‘
‘ i Tl = - 4-*6\"‘- N\
ixCampdite 4 | Walden House | 9 Pty | 3 :
7 (private) 5 _\ ] >, \ 9/ ) < A ne
205585\ Bull*Brogg
| Y \.' 5 AN
N ) R /“’ 3 =
dl 4 s

Spickets Y_'VAOOd

Warren:
Cottage i

y
]
....... = »Trgs_,f;"'

47

Page 77



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

7.11

712

713

7.14

Alongside this, a network of Pedestrian Walkway Routes has been identified (see Figures 7.2
and 7.3). The purpose of these routes is to better link up the main residential areas of Great
Totham with key services and facilities in the villages for pedestrians.

Linking any new housing development into the network of footways within the built-up areas
and then to footpaths into the countryside is vital to encourage more walking and less use of
the car but also to connect these areas and their residents to other parts of the community.
Such improvements have a range of benefits including:

e Providing health benefits through increased walking and cycling;

e Facilitating less congestion at busy times by encouraging children to walk and cycle to and
from school and people to walk and cycle to the shop and other facilities rather than
'jumping in the car' for a short journey;

e Providing a safer environment for the community, including for vulnerable users;

e Providing access to green spaces for users such as dog walkers, so addressing the
potential adverse impacts of development on European designated sites.

Development in locations where no connections with existing footways can be provided are
considered to have limited sustainability.

Development adjacent to these Pedestrian Walkway Routes will be expected to provide direct,
safe pedestrian access to them and proposals for their enhancement - including providing
longer stretches of dedicated footways wide enough for pushchairs and disability access - are
encouraged.

POLICY GTOS8: PEDESTRIAN AND CYCLE ACCESS
A. Proposals to improve pedestrian and cycle access will be supported. In particular,

such proposals should focus on improving access between Totham North and
South and to Wickham Bishops.

Proposals to enhance the Pedestrian Walkway Routes identified in Figures 7.2

and 7.3 are strongly encouraged. Development that is immediately adjacent to
these Pedestrian Walkway Routes will be expected to:

i. ensure the retention and where possible the enhancement of the
Pedestrian Walkway Route; and

ii. be designed so it does not have a detrimental impact on the Pedestrian
Walkway Route and its environment to ensure the safety and flow of
pedestrians.

48

Page 78



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

Public and community bus provision

Whilstin a rural community such as Great Totham, the private car is the predominant method
of travel, the community is clear that it wishes to maximise the potential to travel by other
modes. Bus transport is a lifeline, both for people unable to afford a car and for older people
who feel unable to drive. With the ageing population, more people are likely to fit into the
latter category and yet many will want to stay in the local community if possible.

Great Totham is served by two public bus routes. The number 75 goes to Maldon and
Colchester every 30 minutes. The number 90 goes to Maldon and Witham (including Witham
railway station) and is a more frequent service, including during peak commuter hours.
However, the number 90 bus does not pass through Totham North. One important
community action is to engage with the bus provider to see if the number 90 can be re-routed
to serve Totham North as well as Totham South.

Separately, plans are being pursued to provide a bespoke ‘taxi-bus'’ service, equivalent to the
‘Dengie Dart', to transfer older, less mobile residents to the nearest medical facilities. The
Dengie Dart is operated by a local taxi company and passengers can use their bus passes in
a minibus. Typically, passengers can wait at bus stops and hail it to and from Maldon town
centre or Broomfield Hospital or they can ring the company and arrange a ride.

The possibility of introducing a similar service for Great Totham and other local parishes
without bus services has been championed by the GTNP Steering Group. This is now being
actively pursued by the parish’s Maldon District Councillor, Essex County Council and the two
local Members of Parliament.

GTNP COMMUNITY ACTION: PUBLIC TRANSPORT SERVICES

Engage with operator of number 90 bus to get North Totham included on the route.

GTNP INVESTMENT PRIORITY: COMMUNITY TRANSPORT

As a priority for the spending of developer contributions, the Great Totham
Neighbourhood Plan identifies the need to invest in a local community bus service.

Although it is recognised that improving community and public bus services is outside the
remit of the Neighbourhood Plan, it is included in the Transport and Movement section of the
Neighbourhood Plan as bus services are an important component of the transport options
available to local residents.

49

Page 79



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

8.1

8.2

8.3

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

Great Totham, due to its arcadian nature, is not a village that incorporates one central
community hub. Whilst the village hall in Totham South serves as the main focal point due to
its size, Totham North has the well-placed United Reform Church. Along with Honywood Hall
in Totham South, it is considered that these facilities are able to serve the local community at
the present time. Therefore, it is felt that Great Totham has accessible venues that serve as
village hubs in both the north and south settlement areas.

Village Hall, Totham South United Reform Church, Totham North
Credit: Martin Flook Credit: Martin Flook

It is recognised however, that with a growing population in Great Totham and a desire to
make the it a more sustainable place through the provision of a wider range of services, that
these community hubs should be allowed to expand in the future if that was considered to
be appropriate.

Alongside these hubs are a range of other activities that provide for people of all ages. These
include Marven's Stables, Forrester Park Golf and Country Club (which has tennis courts and
a swimming pool) and Great Totham Cricket Club. Whilst these facilities are away from the
heart of the built-up areas and are therefore less accessible than the community hubs, they
are established and successful facilities that serve the rural community. They should
therefore be supported in their activities by being allowed to grow, albeit recognising that
they are in a countryside location.

Marven'’s Stables

Credit: Marven'’s Stables brochure
50

Page 80




APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

8.4

8.5

8.6

Great Totham has three established pubs serving its residents. Whilst the Bull and The Prince
of Wales in Totham South are doing well, the Compasses in Totham North is currently closed
and stands empty, with its future giving cause for concern to the community.

The Compasses is listed as an Asset of Community Value which is a material consideration if
an application were submitted for an alternative use of the building. However, the community
is very keen to retain the only pub in Totham North and would support any reasonable
approach that would increase the prospect of it re-opening and thriving. This could include
the pub providing other services such as a community shop or a community library. If it was
necessary for expansion of the pub to facilitate this, then this is supported.

POLICY GTO9: EXPANSION OF COMMUNITY AND LEISURE FACILITIES
A. Proposals to improve Community Hub buildings in Totham North and Totham
South will be supported, subject to demonstrating that they are of a high quality

design.

Proposals for expansion of leisure facilities outside the settlement boundary will

be supported where such expansion is required in order to continue providing
activities of benefit to the local community. Such proposals must ensure that
they are appropriate for their countryside setting.

Proposals to enable the Compasses pub in Totham North to provide a range of
community uses alongside the main pub use will be supported.

Both Totham North and Totham South have play areas that are popular and well used by
families and youths throughout the whole year. Totham South Recreational Ground - known
locally as ‘The Pit' - has play apparatus for young and older children to use as well as a
basketball hoop and a sheltered seating area. There is also a full-size football pitch with goals
and a changing room for players to use. Totham North Recreation Ground has a smaller
range of play facilities mainly for younger children, a basketball hoop and open space.

51

Page 81



8.7

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Totham North Recreation Ground Totham South Recreation Ground

Credit: Martin Flook Credit: Paul Firman

Itis important that both recreation areas are maintained and continue to provide an attractive
offer to families with younger children and youths alike. In addition, parking provision at
Totham North Recreation Ground would benefit from improvement as it is difficult to reach
on foot for children without adult supervision.

There are excellent and wide-ranging facilities provided by the Beacon Hill Sports Association.
This is a broad coalition of clubs and organisations that serve both Wickham Bishops and
Great Totham villages. The sports activities on the boundary between the two villages,
adjacent to Rainbow Field, include football fields and a thriving tennis club. Both are
supported by clubhouses and car parking.

Rainbow Field with the tennis club in the background

Credit: Kevin Bennett

POLICY GTO10: PLAY FACILITIES IN TOTHAM NORTH AND TOTHAM SOUTH

A. Insofar as planning permission is required, proposals to improve facilities at
Totham North and Totham South Recreation Grounds will be supported. This
includes improvement to the quality and range of play apparatus and seating.

B. Where practicable, any new or enhancement to existing facilities should be
designed to provide a multiple purpose use that is sympathetic to its natural
setting and the landscape character.

52

Page 82



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan

9 NON-POLICY ACTIONS

Referendum Version

9.1 Table 9.1 below identifies a series of actions that have arisen through the community
engagementin preparing the Neighbourhood Plan. These were considered by the community
to be important matters but do not necessarily require planning permission. As such, they
are not the subject of planning policies in the Neighbourhood Plan. These non-policy actions
will be reviewed in line with the rest of the Neighbourhood Plan as part of any subsequent
review, to take account of changing circumstances and community aspirations.

Table 9.1: Non-land use issues to be addressed

Issue

Environment

Possible actions

Lead agencies and
partner

Exploring
environmental
improvements

Undertake a feasibility study for environmental
improvements, which might include; improving the
environmental audit, engaging with residents
including landowners, finding land for projects,
identifying stakeholders and funding possibilities and
most importantly establish priorities.

Great Totham Parish
Council

with Maldon District
Council, Essex County
Council, Essex Wildlife Trust

Tree planting

Identify land and work with landowners to deliver an

Great Totham Parish

appropriate planting scheme. Council
with Lonsdale Small Woods
Group
Establish Identify and develop opportunities through the Great Totham Parish
woodland and MOREwoods scheme. Council

shelterbelts

Apply to tree provision programmes.

with Woodland Trust and
other parties

Improve planting
on road verges

Identify verges where planting could be improved

Great Totham Parish
Council
with Essex County Council

Community

Improve
community
awareness of
what's on

Expand community website and range of contributors

Upgrade and
maintain
community
facilities

Scope out specific needs and priorities.
Bid for funds to undertake work

Great Totham Parish
Council

Transport

Highway safety

Introduce 40mph limit along Broad Street Green Road
and B1022 between North and South Totham.

Great Totham Parish
Council
with Essex County Council

Highway safety

Reduce speed limit to 30mph in the built-up area of
Colchester Road, North Totham

Great Totham Parish
Council
with Essex County Council

Highway safety

Reduce speed limit to 20mph in Walden House Road

Great Totham Parish
Council

Page 83

53




Issue

APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan

Possible actions

Referendum Version

Lead agencies and
partner
with Essex County Council

Highway safety

Refurbish and improve the junction at Five Corners,
Maypole Road.

Essex County Council

Highway safety

Introduce 40mph speed limit from Captains Wood
Road to Five Corners and beyond to existing 30 mph
Wickham Bishops sign.

Essex County Council

Highway safety

Extension, improvement and refurbishment and road
signage

Great Totham Parish
Council
with Essex County Council

Highway safety

New signage for HGVs to deter them from using
minor roads.

Great Totham Parish
Council
with Essex County Council

Traffic and Preparation of a travel plan to identify solutions to Great Totham Parish
parking parking and safety problems associated with school Council

drop-off and pick-up. Includes the ‘Walking Bus' with Great Totham School,

Essex County Council

Traffic safety More use of Essex County Council ‘Ranger’ resources | Great Totham Parish

to carry out minor maintenance on signs and Council

vegetation
Bus services Improvements to bus service - reroute the 90 away Great Totham Parish

from Walden House Road and investigate the
possibility of a stop in Gt Totham North.

Council
with Essex County Council

Community bus
service

Take every opportunity to support and encourage
investment in a community bus service for older and
less mobile residents to access medical facilities in
Maldon and Broomfield.

Great Totham Parish
Council

with Maldon District Council
and Essex County Council

Access and Maintain and expand the footpath/bridleway network | Great Totham Parish
Leisure in order to create safe off-road rights of way for Council,
vulnerable road users and equestrian users in with Maldon District
accordance with relevant legislation. Council,
Essex County Council
Cycling and Introduction of a dedicated footpath/cycle path that Great Totham Parish
walking links the settlements of Great Totham North and Council,
South. Maldon District Council,
Essex County Council
Circular Publicise the new circular walks and the existing GTNP Steering Group
Walks/rides Parish Council walks with Great Totham Parish

Council

Page 84

54




APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

APPENDIX A GREAT TOTHAM VILLAGE DESIGN
STATEMENT

Due to the large file size, this is provided under separate cover

55

Page 85



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

APPENDIX B LOCAL VIEWS

View 1

8RS,
CES
"{‘Q LimeTree House

: Parish Boundary
ﬂ View Direction

™ View Corridor

QK Round Woad QI

Little Oauks o

7 5 0 [£ Recreation
Ground

e e
ntains Farm-y
o/

Beacon
Hill House

rﬁ‘ .

Great
Mountains
JFarm
/

and databaseri



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

177" Neighbourhood Plan Area
: [ Parish Boundary

57



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

58



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

View 4

1777777 Neighbourhood Plan Area% | \ \ %
i “’

[ Parish Boundary : |
. ' Spick A g

b, av ¥ £ ’ R
=) View Direction P 00| "\%’ o
2 R 2 N0 { (5 v

l

-
\

" \\‘
" av. at 5 =2 Mo ¥
7 View Corridor I BN L
R . v " e
L9 Recreation )\ i
Ground! el " AR b, b i 3
s 7 o )
XD 3 . ™ RS
S \
W 4
¥
i Ash Plantation
o
: G
= X
p’ -]
- [=] (s} Drain
3 —_—
<] i
\\
= . Seo o Jepcrai
=] = \‘fﬁfb i 3
~\ El
3 hl = A ]
Vi S8
i) >
= 57 v Y a7 /

m
-C,’
&
/
!
31m’
o _onaees
"4\:[1’:’ Al
&=
,;’Lﬁi—__ﬂ_ X - -
R
m\ H l"
i | = :t_
i : |
sth Wo
o ':\
= \ |
o
‘ ~
| -
s
il . | |
) T )
dle Wood " ’ é /
‘7 ~

\} -
] ’
spr Hampion ﬂ | Northlands Farm
Lodge Cottage = N\ A

-~
orthlands |

s ouse

= = 100 0 100 00  400m
Contains Ordn Survey dafa © Cw\ﬁﬁ pyKight.a ight 2020 -

59

Page 89



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

View 5

L

""" Neighbourhood Plan Area

= parish Boundary
ﬁ View Direction

... View Corridor

60

Page 90



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

APPENDIX C CIRCULAR WALKS AND CYCLE ROUTES

~ P . "
N ¥ N AR R W m..: s

ClRCUI.AR ROUTE 1- 4 7Km (3 miles)C
mm— EXISTING PATHS
===== ROADSIDE WALKING

Source: Magic Map

61

Page 91



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

e
.

H

- o ———
% ,.,.\ W1 _“}.‘bl A ‘\’ | L
- £2=] !

o Fate

L
v

el

G

"s,.
£9
1 5\::;_‘.

~.
!

Source: Magic Map

62
Page 92



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

TN ANV G S N N ST Bp@d* | N
CIRCULAR ROUTE 2 - 8.6kM/5.5 miles : Po;s’_r:s_ N .
=== ROADSIDE WALKING N R AN ‘ 4

mems  EXISTING FOOTPATHS PP | VONERY &

.- T 4 a | ) *, -
; U L& 38 S of : . B AR N
Threadgold's¥s /N & Por, & - 27 R \ y L
g Farm 45 *ng /’r.’ / Resr 7\ g ‘
. M > o' ¢ _.;_g": : ~

3 o
' - o ~ t
L N, ”facm Hm o '_ A o ey i {
by e 2 ) Ser c‘"} 2% | D, e ?
“ w / Flfm o= { iy 4 . -
5 . & » TYN\ Hill Far
’eb &) Gﬁ{ todge Farm Rest / & N ‘ 4
SN W e , Great in)sj% s p.,Q.— Totham Hill
PO o = > ¥ Farm *,
1 o Sprss FClnsefidd | 2
arm‘}\ 8ol Applebys | > ian's'Farm
S ] Sch Grove Farm JA‘C
v A e / o)
5 - }
: '/ [
- & Paia) i o -
v ‘\'thde 3 A II -
Koy ; "House Far Crigkee| o= wl e ’
% Lane \ ) Splckses 35 \ 27
. - L : v sl . ood F«Tﬂtq?u&;/ c _
i s | { | g Goll Country } o
Crabb'sl. - ' X Great. % RF8 8 . &R 7/
N\ "';,'.',“;,," R, i T:tham £ Srwage Works” )™ . X

" G . -’. b - './‘ Rw }. “ 9""}'.’
T i P Farm w ? Captain's Wood - v = 4
"‘I)A 33 . v — /T 1 ]
le o Y. . J S - / - W
RN\ e o R _Sae. N b "S-

Source: Magic Maps

63
Page 93



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

\ - Y .‘.....
y M\ﬂ x“\.u—ﬂ.m. ) &'uc.m\..,\
ey 8

YHLOE 3 1LL £ N

-,

| p —l\ﬁL Wi
W, \5 y m..ouﬂ
oo\S P DOnae 7 ¥ :
ey . = ..:. -

wuey s paesdaf WW. = vggwooéooooo\v
\ ‘/ '

BV oY

_ jip BT
RN TR/

».ucx NS, wary 28po7 rwuu 13 L
s " NN w % \\é \ ,
Nall, N e | AT ?l ddiadg | ,Oﬁ
\ 7N o, - i/ ¢
, R %m&w@ It boseog \ eV
. SR\ TS Y 9A0dg ol Sed e
A X/ N W[5 suencd % usﬂ%ﬂ“%.m,
A . ONDITYM IAISAVOY s .ﬂwwaao."..owmwﬂ A
\ e £\ sopiw £y /w9 L —EXTYMUVINDHIDD | 2 o ik
,,_ - ;A .v.:nm, poy '3 .J%o:d SO% o afenony 4 A SEOHIES
Al - 3G AR el e X!

64

Source: Magic Maps

Page 94



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

TWAR

I'

446 ) ANeETa—E
f A Grea_s.B;aif\éd' o
; K- Forters Farmy [~

‘ — ’23' Litte Londod
o | f Baie 1
;J”?ﬂ - \i‘ P
o S N | [Resener (c)
_." l o k‘ tzdﬂ-am&

RAMBLERS WALK — 15Km/9.5 miles
== == == OFF ROAD WALKING
ROADSIDE WALKING

Source: Magic Maps

65
Page 95



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

Fruit Farm "'°g"'t'¢|4'l
S\ Fa

TEb\gP

N

A N
Threadgold's¥s I &

P g Farm— IS
s A .y

WA
= W
T

CYCLE ROUTE \. , Hirm
10.5Km/6.5 miles 1 : N ', _’"‘" Q.v
5133;._'" 'b ) \ "/. (¢) Crown Copyr

Source: Magic Maps

66
Page 96



APPENDIX 1

Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
Referendum Version

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

67

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2

THE GREAT TOTHAM VILLAGE DESIGN STATEMENT 2022

Page 99



APPENDIX 2

Contents
3 I 141 ' Te 1¥ ot o o 3
PUFPOSE OF thE VDS ...ttt et e e st e s st e e e e b e e e e s abbe e e e sbeeeesasteeeesbeeessaneeas 3
CONSUITALION PrOCESS ..eeuvieeiieeiitesiie ettt ettt ettt ettt sat e s b e s bt e e be e e sbe e e smeeesabeesabeeeabeesneeenneeesaneesanis 3
Status of the Village Design Statement and Relation to Relevant Planning Documents.................... 3
Y 81201 .4 - USSP 4
2. Great Totham Village..... e ittt recsree st e ree e sea e seasessnsesenssssenssssnsssensensnsanns 5
HISEOIICAl CONTEXL ...eeeeiee ettt st e e et e s e e s be e e beeeneeesmeeesareesaneean 5
Yoo Ko o LI @1 o - = ot {1 Su SRR 8
F i T N or- Yo [ =Y o W I Y o E o= o =S 9
Environment and Habitats ........cooueeieeiiiiee e 9
3. The Settlement Areas ........cccvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 11
Settlement history and CharaCter..... ..o i e e s ara e e e aaeeaan 12
Great TOtham SOULN ...co..i ettt s r e ennees 20
Great TOtham NOIE ..ot esneenees 24
BEACON Hill .t ettt et e st sab e e s bt e e bt e e s abe e sabeesabe e eabaesbaeenabeesabeesares 28
Broad SErEEE GIEEN ...oieiii ettt ettt ettt e sa bt e st e et e e s bt e e sabe e sabeesabeesabeesbeeenteesabeesanes 30
THE OULIYING @rEAS...uueiiiciieie ittt ettt e e ettt e e st e e e s sabe e e e s beeeeesteee s abeeeessteeeensseeeesareeeennees 32
4. Village Style and Elements EXplained ........ccccoiiiuiiiiimniiiiiiiiiiieinieeeeeseses 33
2 TU T o [T Y=Y 42 L= SRR 33
Material FiniShes t0 BUIIAINGS ......cvuiiiiiiie ettt e e e s e e e sbee e s saneas 33
B CToToTe [ 1Y =T o o 1= SRS U RO PRRURRTORRTOPRIN 35
2 To TN Yo Y VA I =T 1 1 41T 0 SRR 36
GUIAANCE NOTES. ...ttt et st e st e st e s e e s b e e s be e e sabeesaneesaneesaneesnesenneeenns 37
Buildings Listed and of Special INtEIESt ......c.eviiiiiiei ettt e vae e e 37
Village Facilities, COmMMUNITY aNd LEISUIE .....ccccuviiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e e rae e e naeas 39
Commerce, Industry and EMPIOYMENT.......cooociiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e s e are e e e araeeean 40
5. Highways and INfrastrUCtUre ......c...cireeeiiiiieiciireecrrrresesreresesrerenesreraseseennsssseennsssseennsnsnees 41
R[0T o Yo T n dr=Ta Yo l 2 U - o LSRR 41
Pedestrians @and CYCIING .....coouiii it e e e rtte e e e ate e e et ee e e e bte e e e sabeeeeeataeeennreas 41
PAIKINE 1ttt ettt e et e e et e e et ee e e e b te e e e e tae e e e btaeeeaataee e e baaeeeaateeeeaabaeeeanreaeeannrees 41
SErEETL FUINITUIE .eviiiiiiiiiiiiii i a e 41
VLT = LY T o B ol o 1= PSSP 42
U IS ettt ettt ettt sttt et esa b e e st e e st e e bt e e bt e e s ab e e s bee s beeeabeeebeeesabeesareenares 42
6. Protection, Enhancement and Development .......ccccciviuiiiiiiniiiiiiniiniiiens. 43
7. Thanks and acknowledgments ........cccuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiree e sessssessessssesees 45

Page 100


file:///C:/Users/chris/Dropbox/JOBS/Great%20Totham/Reporting/Reg%2016/21.04.08%20-%20Village%20Design%20Statement%20-%20FINAL.docx%23_Toc68761221

APPENDIX 2

1. Introduction

The Great Totham Village Design Statement (VDS) has been developed by a Sub-Group of the
village’s Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group (NSPG) as part of the Neighbourhood Plan process. It
seeks to support the Plan and to identify and record the major characteristics of Great Totham and
its appearance. The VDS has been presented to villagers who have had the opportunity to comment
and input at the drafting stage. The VDS should now become a working tool to guide the character
and appearance of development in the future.

Purpose of the VDS
The Great Totham VDS will:

. Actively influence change and development in Great Totham to meet our future needs.

. Assist those who bring forward proposals for development to ensure they are acceptable to
the expressed wishes of the community and in keeping with the village character.

. Identify and help to protect key buildings, settings and views and promote the use of
appropriate designs and materials.

o Improve and protect the village character with particular reference to views and open
spaces.

. Support modest and appropriate development in the village’s rural surroundings.

. Assist Maldon District Council, as planning authority, in their determination of planning
applications.

Consultation Process

The Great Totham Village Design Statement has been produced by a Sub-Group of the Great Totham
Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group. The Group consists of interested Parishioners with a strong
representation from the Parish Council. The VDS and the Neighbourhood Plan have been developed
in parallel. A full village survey has been undertaken along with a weekend exhibition at the Village
Hall. The results of both survey and event have been fed back into the Plan and VDS. Consultation
has also been undertaken with Maldon District Council and the Rural Community Council of Essex
(RCCE).

Status of the Village Design Statement and Relation to Relevant Planning Documents

The intention is for the VDS (presented as Appendix A of the Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan) to
be endorsed by Maldon District Council and used as material consideration and a key document of
standing in determining planning applications for Great Totham.

In this way the VDS will ensure informed local involvement in planning applications for the village.

The VDS supports, and builds upon, the objectives of the building and environmental policies for the
Maldon District, as expressed in the Maldon District Local Development Plan (2014-2029) and the
Essex Design Guide 1997 in offering guidance to ensure that new developments respect their local
environment and are in keeping with traditional housing in towns and villages.

3

Page 101



APPENDIX 2

The Essex Design Guide for Residential and Mixed Use Development 1997

The Design Guide was first published by Essex County Council in 1973 and has been influential in the
planning of new housing, encouraging the use of vernacular design and local materials to create
good design in varying locations throughout the county. The Guide was revised in 1997 by the Essex
Planning Officers Association and adopted as Supplementary Planning Guidance by local authorities.
The Guide aims to encourage all new developments to respect, and be in keeping with, traditional
housing in towns and villages and addresses such considerations as spatial organisation (layout),
building heights, distances between dwellings, roof styles, window patterns, materials, treatment of
ground surfaces and use of landscaping. All these elements should reflect the context of existing
development, creating housing of distinctive character and identity.

Summary

The Great Totham Design Guide covers the main Settlement Areas of the village and the rural
hinterland of the parish.

Its aims are:

J To assist and guide the initiators of future development proposals in Great Totham as to
what is acceptable to the local community. This should assist such proposals and avoid
conflict during the planning process.

. To demonstrate clearly which buildings, open spaces and views are of major importance
to the community and should be protected.

. To give local insight into conformance with the principles of the Essex Design Guide

4

Page 102



APPENDIX 2

Con®

Emm———

2. Great Totham Village

b

\

Historical Context

Archaeological investigation has revealed human activity from Prehistoric and Early Medieval times
in the extreme south-east of the parish. This consisted of animal husbandry and arable farming.
There is evidence of Bronze Age metalworking. The population at Domesday, 1086, is estimated at
around 150. At the Norman Conquest Great Totham was awarded to three Norman supporters of
King William the First.

5

Page 103



APPENDIX 2

. e ————— — &

The early village of Great Totham was a collection of dispersed farmhouses and buildings such as
Lofts. There was no central core of church, village green and dwellings, generally seen as the typical
English village. Instead there were isolated farms with small settlements developing on heathland
near to services. The largest settlements were around the Parish Pits (one of which is now the
Jubilee Recreation Ground), near the windmill, wheelwright, blacksmith and saddler, school and
shop; the second at Totham Hill also had a mill and blacksmith as well as its brickworks.

Beckingham Road

The first census in 1801 showed a population of 528, by 1851 it had reached 840. The latter half of
the nineteenth century saw a steady decline, due mainly to changes in agricultural methods and the
beginning of industry in neighbouring towns. In 1901 Totham was home to 589 souls. In the first half
of the twentieth century, population again rose as travel to neighbouring centres became cheaper
and easier. By 1931 population was 982 and by 1951 it had reached 1,221.

Housing was needed to meet the rise in population. 18 houses were built from 1895 to 1913. The
large houses, Beacons and Great Ruffins date from this period but most properties were much
smaller and to rent. The period after the First World War saw the beginning of local authority
housing; Maldon RDC erected 26 dwellings in the 1920s and 1230s, 12 in Spring Lane and Colchester
Road, 8 facing Bull Green and 6 in Goat Lodge Road.

From 1950 onwards Great Totham saw consistent major growth so that by 2011 the population was
2930. There was further new local authority housing, notably at Staplers Heath and Mill Road but
the market now began to provide housing by private developers with a sequence of developments
from Kings Road and Eaton Way to Chasefields, Seagers, Heriot Way and Beadle Place. In addition
there was a good deal of infill and some smaller developments around the village. The Willie
Almshouses, dating from 1855 provided housing for three widows and three couples who had
resided in the village for 20 years; the Village Workhouse was at what is now the Prince of Wales pub
from 1805 to 1830.

6

Page 104



APPENDIX 2

. S el (Are

Employment up to the mid nineteenth century was in agriculture and related industries. There were
two windmills, remembered by Millways and Mill Road and a tide mill at the very south of the village
near the jetty at Saltcote. A major industry, now totally extinct, was brick, tile and pottery making.
This was mainly in the north of the parish and is remembered in names such as Brick Spring Lane,
Brick Hall and Brick Kiln Farm. The soft red bricks from local pits can be seen in many older village
buildings.

Schooling took place at the Congregational (United Reform) Church and for Anglicans at the
Honywood School. A Board School was built in the 1870s and the present school dates from a
century later. Religious life centred on the Parish Church but Non-conformists built the chapels at
Mill Road (Wesleyan, now demolished) and Chapel Road (Congregational) in the nineteenth century.
The use of a barn as an Evangelical Church in Prince of Wales Road is a very early example of such
conversions. The Village Hall (1929-30) is one of a number designed by resident architect, AH
Mackmurdo, under the aegis of Rural Community Council of Essex.

TEY W

Witham Road now Walden House Road

. -
'L
‘.")\ / ’
» . ¥ L
B

L BN L
The number of pubs in the village has varied over the years. Of the survivors, the Compasses at
Totham North and the Bull both date from the early eighteenth century, and are conversions from
houses. The Prince of Wales was a conversion of the old Workhouse c1860; it was rebuilt after a
disastrous fire in 1990. For the rest The Star and Blacksmiths Arms are now houses on Compasses
Green and Totham Hill Green; there were also beer houses at Slough House and the Post Office. The
Bird in Hand, near Myrtle Villas, and the Crown at Broad Street Green have been demolished.

The current parish boundary dates from a 1934 Review. At this time the land between Maypole
Road and Broad Street Green Road, a narrow strip to the east of the latter and Captain’s Wood were
transferred from Heybridge to Great Totham. An area at the south of the parish near the river, and
Osea Island were transferred to Maldon but are now in Heybridge. The ecclesiastical parish was
unaffected.

Today Great Totham is generally referred to as Great Totham North and Great Totham South. This
derives from the titles of the two electoral registers which cover the whole parish and the labels

7

Page 105



APPENDIX 2

——— — ] —
: - e ————— "
e e 7

e (Srem el

given to the two largest settlement areas, whose cores have defined development limits. Sadly for
travellers this distinction is not recognised by the Ordnance Survey.

There are in fact four recognised settlements, as well as outlying farms and small hamlets. The
largest is Great Totham South (formerly just Great Totham) with the School, Village Hall and Shop,
while Great Totham North (formerly Totham Hill) is smaller; Beacon Hill where the parish meets
Wickham Bishops and the Braxteds, and Broad Street Green which sits mainly on the east of the
road with the same name. Smaller settlements are at Maypole and Beckingham Roads with one at
Sheepcoates Lane overlapping with Little Totham.

Landscape Character

The natural landscape helps form the character of Great Totham and is a key influence on the
village’s social and economic development. The Parish sits at the western edge of a band of Essex
landscape stretching from the Suffolk border to the River Thames. This contains former heathland
and wooded hills, overlapping with the low-lying coastal zone of the River Blackwater. The village lies
on a generally south-east facing slope from Beacon Hill (at 292 feet, the highest point in Maldon
District and third highest in Essex), to near sea level at Chigborough Farm. From Beacon Hill views
stretch to Southend on Sea, Mersea Island and the coast of North Kent. This viewpoint has been
used for defence and early warning purposes from the Armada to the Cold War. Crowds from the
parish and neighbouring parishes still gather here when the reproduction beacon is lit on significant
anniversaries.

Much of the land is gravel bearing with clay veins and a brickearth layer. The centre and south of the
parish has evidence of gravel workings over a considerable period. Several are now lakes for fishing
and wildlife conservation as at Totham Hall and Chigborough. Modern developments such as
Seagers, Beadle Place and Heriot Way sit partly on old workings. Workings at Lofts Farm have been
restored to farm land and two old workings, owned by the Parish Council, are used as recreation
grounds at Maldon Road and Braxted Lane, with a third at Maldon Road, used informally for leisure.

There is significant woodland landscape with Captains, Heybridge, Middle, South and Spickets
Woods in the South with Strowling Wood and Mountains Grove in the North. Most are ancient and
appear on Chapman and Andre’s County Map of 1777. There are a number of smaller copses.

The 1777 map shows a significant original landscape feature of Great Totham — the central belt of
sandy heath and wasteland, which, varying in width, stretches from the Suffolk Sandlings to
Southend on Sea. Part of this, Tiptree Heath, ran from Messing to Heybridge spanning a mile wide at
Great Totham to 100 yards at Broad Street Green. This formed the central belt of Great Totham with
only small areas being enclosed prior to the nineteenth century.

This Heath was open waste, of use only for common grazing and collecting firewood but a growing
population and demand for food, together with farm mechanisation and growing techniques, eyes
turned to this hitherto unviable land. Enclosure began in 1805 and totally changed the landscape,
leaving only the present Tiptree Heath conserved for nature. In Great Totham remnants of the old
waste survive as wide road verges and two Greens of common grazing land in the north of the
Parish.

Three distinct landscape character areas have been identified in the parish which all contribute to its
unique atmosphere. The enclosed Totham Wooded Farmland extends from Beacon Hill and

8

Page 106



APPENDIX 2

——— — ] —
: - e ————— "
e e 7

e (Srem el

Mountains Road through the settlements to the open arable dominated Tolleshunt Coastal and
Maldon Drained Estuarine Farmlands to the south.

The natural features and resources of the land had an important influence on the way the Parish
developed and was shaped by people and their activities satisfying economic and social needs over
the centuries. All this led to changes in the visual landscape.

An ‘Arcadian’ Landscape

Great Totham, North and South is regarded as an Arcadian settlement and is defined as such in the
Maldon District Characterisation Assessment of June 2012, an evidence base document to the LDP.
The main characteristics of such settlements are that they are dispersed and not nucleated with a
main street or green at their centre. The church and hall are remote from the growth concentrations
of the 19t and 20t centuries and there are dispersed groupings each with its own small historic
core. There is no scale or sense of enclosure or anything approaching an urban configuration. Trees
and soft landscaping mean that houses sit within a planted setting. New developments have in the
main respected this overall appearance though there has been some loss of trees and soft
landscape.

The Characterisation Assessment details ‘Threats to this character’ as including ‘the infilling of gaps
between houses, the rebuilding of houses with a larger footprint than their predecessors and the
addition of large groups or small estates to the edge of villages’. Care should be taken to retain trees
and planting and with the impact of new vehicular accesses, footways and parking areas, all of which
can jeopardise the sense of soft enclosure and seclusion.

Environment and Habitats

The landscape and natural environment of Great Totham is varied and diverse; ranging from
intimate wooded farmland around Beacon Hill to lower lying arable countryside on the eastern
boundaries. Just as our settlements are well defined with a diversity of street patterns and buildings
which reflect our historical development, so too are our habitats, which include ancient remnant
woodland, scrub, gardens, churchyards, hedgerows and fishing ponds. These support a variety of
flora and fauna from orchids to humble grasses and buzzards to butterflies.

Although a full biological survey has not been undertaken, local knowledge has identified a good
range of habitats and species. The only habitat lacking in the parish is species rich grassland but
roadside verges and field margins could be more diverse. Scrubland is an undervalued habitat which
takes time to develop its richness but responds to sympathetic if minimal management. There is no
co-ordinated planning to replace existing tree stock although some active projects have been
undertaken by landowners.

Wildlife

The rural environment of the parish provides a sustainable habitat for a range of species.
Trees

Most native species are to be found, including:

Ash, Beech, Birch, Blackthorn, Buckthorn, Hazel, Hawthorn, Holly Hornbeam, Horse Chestnut, Oak,
Rowan, Spruce, Sycamore, Walnut, Willow and Yew. In gardens are more exotic species such as the
Monkey Puzzle; there is also a variety of fruit trees — Apple, Plum, Pear, Greengage, Damson &
Cherry.

9

Page 107



APPENDIX 2

Mammal: Fox, Badger, Bats, Hare, Rabbit, Hedgehog, Muntjac Deer, Grey Squirrel.

Avian: House Sparrow, Blackbird, Coal Tit, Blue Tit, Great Tit, Long Tailed Tit, Robin, Dunnock,
Thrush, Collared Dove, Wood Pigeon, Pheasant, Great Spotted Woodpecker, Greenfinch, Chaffinch,
Goldfinch, Siskin, Wren, Pied Wagtail, Redpoll, Green Woodpecker, Song Thrush, Mistle Thrush, Tree
Sparrow, Sparrowhawk, Cuckoo, Black Cap, Willow Warbler, Chiff Chaff

Corvids: Jackdaw, Magpie, Crow, Jay

Raptor: Buzzard, Kestrel, Little Owl, Tawny Owl, Barn Owl
Reptile/Amphibian: Adder, Grass Snake, Slow Worm, Pond Frog, Newt, Toad
Mustelid: Stoat, Weasel

Otters have been observed in adjoining local waterways and Red Kites are sometimes seen
overhead.

Our Landscape Vision

. To conserve the parish’s essentially rural character

o Retain the three character areas of Great Totham

. Maintain views to adjacent character areas and east and south to the Blackwater Estuary
. Ensure new development respects the landscape in scale, pattern and materials

o Ensure new and replacement farm buildings are sensitively designed and located

Our Vision for Habitats and Biodiversity

. Natural habitats to be conserved, protected and managed as part of the Essex Biodiversity
Plan
o Woodland and hedgerows to be maintained and enhanced as wildlife corridors
. Degraded areas such as roadside verges and field margins to be proactively restored
. Seek to identify and develop new habitat areas on suitable sites
. Monitor protected and unprotected species
o Develop plans and take actions to maintain and increase variety of flora and fauna
10

Page 108



3. The Settlement Areas

APPENDIX 2

MAIN SETTLEMENT AREAS “ . =

KEY
] GREATTOTHAM NORTH ] GREATTOTHAM SOUTH
] sEaconHIL ] BROAD STREET GREEN
] OUTLYING AREAS
11

Page 109



APPENDIX 2

Settlement history and character

Great Totham - 1958

12

Page 110



APPENDIX 2

GREAT TOTHAM — DEVELOPMENT HISTORY

Cofiects

S \§
j /

&X'\

/)

C

KEY:

1980s/90s

2000/2010
Outline planning granted 2018

13

Page 111



APPENDIX 2

GREAT TOTHAM SOUTH — HOUSING DENSITY

1 Crossways

Garden
entre
AR

==

Fanners
Farm

- ‘55‘

C

)
» Great Totham \
/~Primary School L}~

N
Y v
3

)\
‘7 RSA&rn
& : Y A
\ \\‘ Hall\Q

b v
Cricket it
0 Ground

!
N —

-

\€? Ll e
Q 2xGreat Toth|
AN

Bog Grove ==
E )
Location When Area Number Density/ Comments
built (hectares) | of homes hectare
Staplers Heath | 1920s/30s 0.7 14 20.0
Staplers Heath | 1950/60s 4.1 74 18.0

Heriot Way 1980s/90s 1.2 44 36.6 Includes 18 apartments
Playle Chase 1980s/90s 2.1 31 14.7
Staplers Walk | 1980s/90s 0.9 15 16.6
Beadle Place 2000-10 1.3 37 28.4 Includes 9 apartments
Brook Close 2000-10 0.9 23 16.4
Hall Road 2018 1.4 30 21.4 Outline planning granted 2018

14

Page 112



APPENDIX 2

Issues

Brick Kiln

o A
¥ ]

AR

e 0\
i on 2200

Roundbush
£, Corner

{The/Stables
'

S A

Location When Area Number Density/ Comments
built (hectares) | of homes hectare

Rookery Lane | 1980s/90s 2.14 28 13.1
Mount Lodge | 1980s/90s 0.54 6 11.1
Chase
15

Page 113



APPENDIX 2

\‘:

BROAD STREET GREEN — HOUSING DENSITY
INAY )

gﬁa-,— M

B Northlands
Farm

, Heybridge Wood

s

———— ————— Neighbourhood Plan boundary

C] Site of the North Heybridge Garden Suburb

This underlying map for Broad Street Green is not current but comparison with other mapping and
Google Maps shows the developed area of Broad Street Green covers some 5.9 hectares with 55 houses
giving a density of 9.3 houses per hectare. Property ages are from around 1900 to the present day.

16

Page 114



APPENDIX 2

BEACON HILL — HOUSING DENSITY

P ZA8T

* 6im
C | MA
\\0(’\

\ A% o
Shut Heath Wood ;

'

\
‘%5
)
Sl

~

¥
S
=y

) S zA\>* N+
PRSP
AT T ack)

oo’

N
-~

&
Cock-a-Bevis
Cottage

AA G

Beacon Hill
House

—

O

Ruffins

Scripps Farn

ACI(

o0 o Ex .
~Goat Lodge v

) Farm

P

|
L0
Gy O _NO! A
[=]
\ Pt

>
S\

Neighbourhood Plan boundary

Location When Area Number Density/ Comments
built (hectares) | of homes hectare

Great Totham village a is overwhelmingly a twentieth century construct; before this the area consisted
almost entirely of small farms and cottages. Significant development began only from the 1950s and this
has led to a village of four settlement areas plus remaining open country. Ours is not an historic village
nor does it contain many high quality individual buildings. Buildings are in a mixture of styles and periods
with no sense of enclosure. Such villages are described as ‘Arcadian’; they are dispersed and do not
cluster around a street or green; there is no sense of enclosure or an urban configuration.

17

Page 115



APPENDIX 2

e {

—_—

@

Properties of various periods sit in close proximity but do not generally ‘jar’. The village’s open
configuration means that houses sit back from the road with front gardens; hedges and low walls
predominate rather than fences. Where there are gates, they tend to be left open. Planned
developments are interspersed with trees and are generally laid out to follow and respect the natural lie
of the land.

Great Totham has significant numbers of bungalows; houses are largely of two stories, some with dormer
windows and others of chalet configuration. Properities are well separated, often by up to two yards.
Overall there is a balanced mix of housing with provision for most age groups. The largest current need is
starter homes for couples and young families. These have been largely missing from recent
developments.

Examples of Chalets with Dormer windows in Mount Lodge Chase,Totham North

In established areas and the more open plan estates, houses look outwards and towards roads. Some
recent additions have a more enclosed feel with single road access points, higher densities, smaller plots
and taller buildings. This tendency needs to be kept under review and the density of future developments
carefully monitored. Consideration for neighbours and the style of their properties — in other words,
‘Architectural Good Manners’ — should be a guiding principle, with new housing generally in keeping with
existing village character. Walking is important to our village and where houses crowd to the road, an
open village feeling is lost. Generally Great Totham is well served with pavements and footpaths and this
amenity should be safeguarded.

18

Page 116



APPENDIX 2

Examples of taller houses with small front gardens in Beadle Place

=z e

As the development of the village was incremental, houses with different styles and finishes jostle
together. Lately larger twentieth century developments have succeeded, to a greater or lesser degree, in
breaking up their impact and softening their appearance through judicious variations in materials and
finishes. This should be encouraged as a general policy.

The last decade has seen an increase in large detached properties, individually designed, on large plots
with enclosed, gated grounds. Such developments should be regarded as exceptional. Smaller, older
properties have been sacrificed for these and others remain vulnerable.

19

Page 117



APPENDIX 2

Great Totham South

This is the most populated area of the Parish. It grew up around the crossroads on the B1022 and is
surrounded by open countryside. There are significant and far reaching views from many points See
Section 2. This part of the village contains several of the significant listed buildings inside the
development boundary, notably The Willie Alms Houses, The Honywood School, The Barn Church and
‘The Bull’ Public House, all Grade Il . Some older buildings like the windmill and Alley’s Farm have been
demolished to make way for more modern schemes. The Parish Church of St Peter, the Old Vicarage and
Totham Hall lie a short distance south east of the settlement area.

The majority of development has taken place since the 1950s starting with Staplers Heath. More
development was carried out in the 1970s (Foster Road and Seagers), 1980s (Heriot Way) and the 1990s
(St Peter’s Walk/Beadle Place).

20

Page 118



APPENDIX 2

=

7

P! St Peters Walk Foster Road

Over this period, developments have tended to become more enclosed, denser and urban in feel. This
tendency should be resisted or at least kept in check, as should any unwelcome move to higher and
bulkier buildings. There is one group of former municipal housing at Staplers; some have been purchased
by tenants, the remainder are run by Moat Housing.

Infilling of sites has been a constant feature in the evolution of the village. Heriot Way and St Peter’s
Walk were formerly centres of employment — the former a transport yard and the latter a truckbuilders.
Such reuse of brownfield sites should be encouraged. In addition to large detached homes, both Heriot
Way and Beadle Place contain a number of flats. As a result, at locations within the village, properties
from a number of periods and of various types, may be found in close conjunction; in most cases these
bring a welcome variety to the streetscape and can still be defined as ‘good manners’ in architectural
terms.

.

‘ -~

Barber Close

-

Flats in Beadle Place

The Post Office/general stores and Great Totham Garage are located close to the B1022 and Hall Road
junction. Here too is the village green, which with the shop and The Bull forms the closest we have to a
village centre in Totham South.

21

Page 119



APPENDIX 2

a
y

Great Totham South — Village Green - :

Southwood Timber, suppliers of wood and manufacturers of wooden outbuildings operates from the
wood of the same name situated on the B1022 just south of the settlement.

-Great Totham School is deservedly well regarded and popular. It also serves the villages of Wickham
Bishops and the Braxteds; this extended catchment area is now causing major traffic and safety issues for
Great Totham residents.

GUIDANCE

¢ New developments or extensions near old
buildings should be designed sympathetically
to complement the existing buildings.

e The ‘Arcadian’ nature of Great Totham
should be given significant weight in
considering development proposals.

e Existing open spaces and views should be
retained and respected.

The old village school in Maldon Road

R

The northern entrance to the village is ‘framed’ by ‘The Bull’, the Village Hall and cricket field. ‘The Bull’
is a listed building and the Village Hall, designed by Arthur Mackmurdo, renowned Arts and Crafts
architect and local resident, is a listed Local Heritage Asset.

22

Page 120



APPENDIX 2

a
y

The ‘Bull’

The Village Hall

Mackmurdo was also responsible for the design of Great Ruffins and Beacons on Beacon Hill and several
other village halls in Essex. The Village Hall is home to the Great Totham Nursery School and plays host
to numerous other clubs and associations. The aspect of this northern entrance is a very important visual
feature of Great Totham and has been recognised as such by the Planning Inspectorate.

The Jubilee Recreation Ground was formed on the site of an old gravel working during the 1950s. It
contains a football pitch, play equipment and a youth shelter.

l”v

T

\

Great Totham South — Recreation Ground

The village has a substantial village green, with trees and a bench. This space might benefit from a more
active and imaginative conservation approach. A layby has been constructed alongside the green to
enable safer parking for customers visiting the Post Office and stores.

Totham Lodge, (Grade 1l), once the manor house of the De Crespigny family is now a care home.

23

Page 121



APPENDIX 2

A
v

Con®

A second public house, The Prince of Wales is found at the B1022/Prince of Wales Road junction. Thisis a
repacement building — the C18 original was demolished by fire in the 1990s — but is broadly similar in
style to the original.

The Prince of Wales

Great Totham North

There is a long standing story to the effect that the settlement of Great Totham North was formed when
some residents of the original Great Totham moved away to form a new community as a way of avoiding
the plague of the 1600s. It is surrounded by open countryside. Although the population of Great Totham
North is significantly smaller than Great Totham South, the Settlement Areas are closer in size, giving
Great Totham North a more open aspect.

Vi”38eEntrance—TothamNorth s - R

24

Page 122



APPENDIX 2

A
v

e

The first major development took place in the 1920s around Spring Lane and Cochester Road and
comprises semi detached houses; this was followed by further developments around Mount Lodge
Chase, Mill Road and Eaton Way in the 1970s and 1980s. These later developments contain detached
houses, chalets and bungalows. The Eaton Way development has an open feel which is characterised by
the lack of defined boundaries at the front of the properties.

Eaton Way

Some of the properties built here in the 1970s are similar in style to their counterparts in Great Totham
South. Asthe planned developments in Totham North are smaller in scale than those to the South, the
North has a more rural feel. In general though, the same principles apply as in Totham South and the

principles applied to development in the North should be no different from that outined above for
Totham South.

Although smaller in size than its neighbour, Great Totham North has a greater number of bungalows, 124
against 67 in Great Totham South. There is a small number of former local authority houses on the B1022
and in Spring Lane.

a

Detached bungalows in Mount Lodge Chase

— == 1920shouses in Spring Lane

25

Page 123



APPENDIX 2

\‘:

¥ NN TR
Example of well spaced bungalows set back from the road

Great Totham North has a recreation ground for public use and there are some allotments within the
grounds of the United Reformed Church (URC). The URC hosts a number of clubs and associations and is
an attractive structure dating in part from 1831 when it was built as an Evangelical Arminian Chapel.

on the B1022. This green, though small in size, is most attractively laid out. It should be regarded as a
major village asset; the green and its setting should be rigorously protected. Great Totham North also

26

Page 124



APPENDIX 2

\‘:

has an area of open land, known locally as ‘Donkey Green’ at the junction of Totham Hill Green and
Beckingham Road.

GUIDANCE

The context of listed buildings
should be considered as a
significant influence on design.
e Good design to enhance and
preserve the Arcadian
environment.
e ltis important that the
openness and rural aspect of
our village is constantly kept in
mind and protected.

There are limited retail facilities in North Totham; the village contains a Florist and a Public House — The
Compasses — which has been listed as an asset of community value.

Great Totham North — Recreation Ground

Development in the ‘green corridor’ between Totham North and South and its associated vistas should be
regarded as exceptional to preserve openess and separation.

27

Page 125



APPENDIX 2

[, Sh?b Nﬁ ““.\

anto

: 's\

% 3 = ’/Bnék Koln\

/lfﬂl

Beacon Hill

Although not a settlement in its own right, over the years Beacon Hill tends to look towards Wickham
Bishops. Itis a largely mixed development of individual houses stretching along Mountains Road. There
are some older timber framed cottages and more recent, individually designed buildings constructed
from the 1960s. Some smaller properties with large plots have been demolished and replaced with
larger, more modern homes. Houses at Beacon Hill are hidden away far more than in the rest of Great
Totham; there is a preponderance of gated entrances and high thick hedges. The whole aspect is much
less open.

There are five listed buildings along Beacon Hill and Mountains Road. Maclarens is a development of
large detached homes situated on the North side of Beacon Hill. It has a spacious layout, excellent
landscaping and welcome variety in its houses and their treatment. Arthur Mackmurdo lived on Beacon
Hill in a bungalow relatively recently demolished.

28

Page 126



APPENDIX 2

a
y

Great Ruffins, the large house he built for himself, is listed Grade II*. Bettley & Pevsner (Buildings of
England: Essex) say that “the comparison of it to a South American railway station is not altogether
unfair”.

Great Ruffins on Beacon Hill

The beacon and the
Blackwater

The village beacon, a look-out since Saxon times and the third highest point in Essex, is situated at the top
of Goat Lodge Road and many villagers and visitors enjoy the far reaching views of the Blackwater Estuary
and the Dengie Peninsula.

29

Page 127



APPENDIX 2

The protection of the vistas from the Beacon should be absolutely paramount; their value has also been
recognised by the Planning Inspectorate and they are of far more than local significance. On a clear day
chimney stacks on the North Kent coast are visible. The beacon is regularly lit for national celebrations or
commemorations — the most recent was to commemorate the 100* anniversary of the 1918 Armistice.
‘Beacons’ near the junction with Goat Lodge Road is a listed building (Grade II) but this is largely hidden
from view.

GUIDANCE

e Improve access to the beacon
viewpoint to attract more
visitors.

e Proposals to replace older,
smaller dwellings with large,
modern houses need careful
monitoring

Beacon Lighting
Armistice Day 2018

Broad Street Green

This settlement at the south end of Great Totham Parish along the eastern side of the B1022 (an old
Roman Road) would historically have been part of Tiptree Heath. The ribbon of houses, built on the
heathland, is of mixed dates from C19 to the present, with one or two possibly earlier. Buildings vary
from farm cottages to large modern detached houses. Lofts Farm and associated buildings east of the
B1022 include listed structures and lakes resulting from gravel workings.

30

Page 128



APPENDIX 2

A
v

. Old gravel workings, Lofts Farm, Broad St

reet Green
L i T 3

Broad Street Green doesn’t benefit from retail or community facilities but does have a chapel, The
Searchlight Church.

The parish boundary between Broad Street Green and Heybridge crosses the B1022 by the chapel. At its
southern extremity Broad Street Green is already affected by the developing Heybridge Garden Suburb
which will continue to expand during the life of the Neighbourhood Plan. In recognition of this
uncertainty, a small part of Great Totham Parish, west of the B1022 and containing no dwellings, has
been excluded from the Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan.

The main concern here is the long term need to constrain the northward march of Heybridge which takes
the form of large suburban estates. The differentiation of these developments from Great Totham South,
while not an immediate issue, will require vigilance over the life of the current Neighbourhood Plan and
beyond.

Older propertiesin
Broad Street Green

; ¥
i |
The Searchlight Church with newer properties
in the background

31

Page 129



APPENDIX 2

The outlying areas

St Peter’s Church (Grade 11*) is located outside of Great Totham South, it is co-located with the old
Vicarage and Totham Hall. Both are listed Grade Il. The church lych gate was rebuilt in 2018. The church
owns the Honywood School (Grade Il) and both buildings are used for many different village activities.

LT\ TR ‘

GUIDANCE

e People in Great Totham value the
open landscape and rural views,
both in the settlement areas and
the outlying landscape context.

e Protect and manage woodland
effectively.

e Protect the green space between
Great Totham and Wickham
Bishops which is getting smaller.

3

o

Away from the village centres the only real development of note has taken place along Sheepcoats Lane,
Plains Road and Beckingham Road. These are mainly detatched homes of varying styles and ages. A
number of the older properties along Beckingham Road are listed. Sheepcoats Lane and Plains Road have
both seen some infilling and redevelopment/replacement of older properties.

The landscape is mainly arable interspersed with woodland and hedgerows. There are several large
farms which produce a range of cereals and Mountains Farm is well known for Turkey rearing.

Development in these areas should be minimal with priority given to cases of clear need. The adaptive re-
use of redundant agricutural and industrial buildings should be encouraged.

32

Page 130



APPENDIX 2

|
4

4. Village Style and Elements Explained

Building Styles

Great Totham consists of predominantly C20 and C21 development, with pockets of earlier houses
and scattered farms representing the earlier landscape. There is ribbon development along the
B1022 towards Heybridge. Building styles are various but generally sit together comfortably. Recent
developments have been of higher densities and properties have tended to be at the large end of
the spectrum.

The village has developed with buildings that are predominantly set back from roads with open
frontages. Where there are gates, they tend to be low, not solid and often left open. Recent years
have seen deviations from this in two respects. Some more recently developed properties are
aggressively close to roads and neighbouring properties giving an enclosed, separate and urban feel,
while others, particularly larger dwellings, hide behind high hedges and solid gates which does not fit
with the open rural aspect and feeling that most residents enjoy.

Material Finishes to Buildings

The predominant material is brick in various shades. Many houses are rendered wholly or in part,
predominantly in shades of cream. A number of estates have used render to give welcome variety to
identical properties. Timber is also used in this way. A recent fashion for cladding refers to some
earlier buildings which are weather boarded in traditional fashion. Similarly, there are examples of

pargetting, even on quite recent houses.

Brick

A number of listed structures, for example, The Honywood and the Willie Aimshouses are in
traditional red brick, as are the few surviving pre C20 buildings. More recent buildings, particularly
the estates, use a variety of modern brick colours to introduce variety within streets or closes.

33

Page 131



APPENDIX 2

\ﬁ‘:

Render is used throughout the village, both on individual properties and in estate locations. This
gives welcome variety and contrast to brick and breaks up the look.

Roofs

The village has a great variety of roof styles, pitched roofs of varying angles, hipped roofs and a few
mansard roofs; gables from main roofs and dormers are also to be seen.

= AL

el | B

=

Roofing Materials

A variety of roof tiles are to be found in Great Totham from traditional peg tiles to all manner of
variations. Concrete tiles are also found with some natural slate on older properties.

Dormers

Dormers are to be found on houses of all ages; they provide welcome variety in roof lines and add a
degree of individuality to streetscapes.

Doors and Windows

Doors and windows are a major factor in the appearance of buildings and the village as whole. There
is large variety in the styles of doors and windows in Great Totham. Many houses — even those of
relatively recent construction — are already seeing doors and windows replaced with PVC and double
glazing. These are sympathetic in varying degrees but do not require planning consent.

34

Page 132



APPENDIX 2

\\

“Good Manners”

In line with village preferences, as expressed in the Neighbourhood Plan and Housing Needs Survey,
it is anticipated that most new building in Great Totham will be of infill within the settlement
boundaries, and in modest numbers. Such schemes should be rigorously examined for their
suitability in relation to existing, neighbouring buildings. In this as elsewhere, the watchword should
be “Architectural Good Manners”. Only a few buildings in the village are of the highest quality but
their variety should be cherished, and this should not imply that the village heritage can be treated
lightly or with contempt.

35

Page 133



APPENDIX 2

S e——

Boundary Treatments

The great majority of village dwellings sit back from the road with front gardens. Boundaries are
defined by low hedges, stone or brick walls, shrubs or even simply the edge of lawns. Where there
are gates, these tend to be openwork and are often left open. Low boundaries give large sections of
the village an open and welcoming aspect. Some larger properties have high walls of hard
landscaping or tall green planting. There is a fashion for severe solid gates, often controlled by the
occupant. There is also a tendency for newer properties to sit very close to the road or jut
aggressively into sightlines. This tendency should be kept in check.

36

Page 134



APPENDIX 2

L ANY 3} o

Guidance Notes

e New buildings should respect neighbouring properties and not impose themselves
in their scale, height or close proximity, they should have adequate space around
the property to maintain a rural feel and to the side of the property for garages.

The recent trend towards building urban style houses with three storeys imposing
themselves on the street scene and neighbours is not in keeping with the village
architecture and should only be approved by exception. Skyline views allowing
sunlight through should be protected.

Property extensions should replicate the details of their parent building e g
windows, doors and roofing and not impose on street views or neighbouring

properties.

Pitched roofs should be the norm in new development but exceptions may be
made for submissions of high architectural merit.

Hedge boundaries to be of native species and wildlife friendly.

Fences, railings and walls should be traditional in design and appearance.

The open frontages and low boundaries common in large areas of the village should
be the norm in any future developments.

Buildings Listed and of Special Interest
Great Totham has 41 Listed Buildings which are scattered across the parish.

Parish Church of St Peter, I1*: C13 and C14 with major C19 alterations. Walls are of flint,
puddingstone, freestone and oolite. Also five Churchyard Monuments

Old Vicarage Il: C18 with later alterations. Group value with Church and Totham Hall.
Great Totham Hall Il: C17 with alterations and additions. Timber framed and plastered. Also Barn Il.

Totham Barn Chapel, Evangelical Free Church Il: C17 Timber framed, weather-boarded with
thatched roof. Listed as remarkably early barn conversion, 1822

Totham Lodge Il: 1880. Red brick home of the De Crespigny family. Now a Care Home.

37

Page 135



APPENDIX 2

o So
- -~
I,-’\ 7 2 ‘\\\
A
I’ ’ N
/7 : \\\
.l', \“
- *
h X *x & ¢
ik * :
] * \
g * X 1
¥, * 3
s \
’ " \
J : $
{ ** *k = )
/
‘l' ** 'I',
) * v
XLk - ;
-., (
' * [
! * ,’ N
] !
H ' .,
] * ,' =7 {
: e’ J
"
|’_J "‘\k- A
L ;Aw’ =t :
[ 7 1 ’
P> g ) 27
v’ |‘ = * e
- - -
, & r-f
Listed buildings in Great Totham
\ ]

Honywood School II: 1857 Former village school, red brick. Gift of former lay rector.

Willie Almshouses Il: 1855 Two rows with chapel in brick. Modern extensions.

The Bull Public House II: C17 or earlier. Timber frame and brick, plastered. Stables Il adjacent.
Mountains I1*: House C15/16 with C18/20 extensions. Listing includes garden wall.

Beacons Il: 1902, Mackmurdo house. Red brick and render, with observation tower. Listing notes
group value with 1903 Beacons Cottage for gardener.

Great Ruffins II; 1904 Mackmurdo house. Italianate with tower and lantern. Also Gates II.

Farmhouses in outlying area listed Grade Il, most of C16/17 origins. Fabians C17: Gun, formerly the
Shoulder of Mutton Inn, C15: Hill c1500 and Barn: Lofts C16 with Granary and Cart Lodge: Paynes
1777: Poplar Grove C17 with Cart Lodge, Stable and Wheel Pump: Roundbush C17 or earlier and

two Barns: Sheepcoates C16 or earlier.

Cottages listed Grade Il: 76-78 Oak Cottages, Maldon Road C18/19 with ‘Royal Insurance’ plaque: 8,
Prince of Wales Road C18: 16 School Road C17 or earlier: Bean and Walnut Tree Cottages, Totham
Hill Green C18: Croft Cottage Totham Hill Green C16: 1 and 2 Beacon Cottages, Beacon Hill C18,

extended C20 now two dwellings.

Maldon District Council’s List of Heritage Assets has the following entries for Great Totham Parish

38

Page 136



APPENDIX 2

|
— 5 /
R . ——— ]

Listed as part of a group of Mackmurdo buildings are Little Ruffins, 1901, much altered, Ruffins
Lodge (to Great Ruffins), 1903, and Great Totham Village Hall, 1929-30. Mackmurdos, a 1920
bungalow was also included in this group but demolished in 2014. The K6 Telephone Box on Totham
North village green is also listed for landscape value.

Also of significance locally is the Bus Shelter adjacent to Toham South Post Office which houses the
village War Memorial.

Village Facilities, Community and Leisure

Great Totham is a rural community whose population is a mix of established village families and
incomers who have chosen to move into the village. Residents made clear in our survey that they
value the open rural aspects of the village, its setting in open country and its views across
neighbouring countryside (88%). They also felt that the looks and appearance of the village were a
major contribution to its character (95%) The population of the parish is 2930 (Source 2011 Census).
The majority of residents are retired (xx%) or in full time employment (xx%). Of the latter our survey
showed that most commute to work with journeys of over 20 minutes.

The facilities which make Great Totham a thriving and desirable place to live are its churches, shops
and Post Office as well as a range of social, sports and recreation facilities.

. St Peter’s Church, Barn Evangelical Church, United Reform Church
. Village Hall

. The Honywood

. Village Stores and Post Office, Florist’s Shop

. Recreation Grounds, North and South

. Village Greens, North and South

. Totham Garage

o Totham School

. The Bull, Prince of Wales and Compasses Public Houses

Forrester Park Golf and Country Club

o Cricket Pitch

o Marven’s Riding School

. Network of footpaths and views

. Clubs such as Carpet Bowls, Art Club, Knit and natter, The Lunch Club and The Garden
Society

Guidance

Broader communication of all the facilities and activities available in the village to all age groups
would improve their accessibility, encourage greater use and strengthen community spirit.

39

Page 137



APPENDIX 2

\‘,_;\

B

@

Commerce, Industry and Employment

There are relatively few employers within the parish. Two shops, one including the Post office, three
public houses, the garage, the riding school, a garden centre and some of the farms. A nursery
school uses the village hall. Some farm premises have seen adaptive reuse for small businesses, and
one has converted properties for holiday rental. This is a welcome trend. Great Totham has
mercifully not seen the level of local business closures of some neighbouring settlements.

Guidance

Some of the businesses in Great Totham

Crisell Internet Consultancy
The Florist on the Green
The Compasses
Soundmagic Studios

Upson Mowers

Southwood Timber
Forrester Park

The Bull

The Prince of Wales
Bourne Engineering

Little Mountains Farm
Delta Performance

Stan’s Coaches

Naio Environmental
Quadbikes R Us

Car Masts UK

Kit Car Electronics
Landscape Photography
Great Totham Post Office and Stores

Marvens Riding Stables

Essex Wedding Discos
Worldwood Products

Marlin Components Online

11 Plus Swot

Totham Lodge Care Home

RA Lee

Great Totham Garage

B P A Kennedy

Sigma Electrical

Joe Murrell

Hughes and Son Landscapes
Maypole Health

Hayward and Barratt Holdings
Carports, Canopiesand Verandas in UK
PC Doctor Operations Ltd
Maypole Pet and Garden Centre
Hawkes Plastering

Innov8 Driving School

Jepcracks Barn Self Catering

. Local commerce and employment are important to the village. Existing services and facilities
should be supported.

. Small scale commercial activity should be welcomed as long as it does not conflict with the
village’s rural character.

. Sensitive reuse of redundant premises should be encouraged and welcomed.

40

Page 138



APPENDIX 2

5. Highways and Infrastructure

Transport and Roads

Guidance
o Continue to press for rationalisation of speed limits particularly on the B1022.
o Seek to enhance the village footpath network and secure a safe pedestrian route for all

between Totham North and South.
o Work with all involved to reduce traffic related to Totham School.

. Ensure new developments provide sufficient off-street parking which does not
adversely affect street scenes or look urban in character.

o Resist any increase in street lighting.

The two main settlement areas, North and South are bisected by the B1022 main distributor road.
This is very busy during travel to work times morning and evening and steady all day. Speeding is an
issue, as is the variety of limits on the road during its traverse of the parish. Proposed developments
at Heybridge will substantially increase traffic on the B1022. The junction of Walden House Road and
the B1022 is busy with traffic from Witham Station and the A12 accessing routes to Maldon and
Tiptree. Totham School, serving as it does, neighbouring villages, generates significant congestion
morning and evening.

Pedestrians and Cycling
National Cycle Route 1 passes through the parish. There are no dedicated cycle routes but our quiet
roads are popular with residents and visitors.

Pedestrian routes are generally good throughout settlement areas, with minor gaps. The absence of
a metalled path between North and South Totham, suitable for families including push chairs is a
source of discontent. Our network of footpaths is well used but could be significantly improved with
a small number of new links.

Parking

Most properties in the village have a degree of off street parking. However, developments built as
recently as the 1980s are now seeing significant amounts of street, and even pavement, parking.
This seems to be due to increased number of vehicles per household and young people remaining
longer at home with parents. Future developments should be scrutinised carefully for levels of off
street parking.

Street Furniture

Although it would not be practicable to carry out major retrospective work, when signage is being
replaced it is recommended that signage should, wherever possible, be combined, and its need be
closely questioned.

41

Page 139



APPENDIX 2

e - @’J

Street name combined with ‘cul de sac’ signage.

Verges and Ditches

Verges:

Although not privately owned by either the property owner or Essex Highways, many householders
voluntarily maintain the verges outside their homes. Indeed, many take the trouble to look after
considerable distances of grass verge which is highly commendable.

Ditches:

Many ditches are well maintained and consequently drain efficiently but there are also instances
where landowners do very little maintenance. Consequently, some ditches around the village are
becoming silted up and hedges overgrown which impairs maintenance of the ditch. At the open
weekend, 2 residents expressed concern that their gardens were in danger of becoming waterlogged
due to an absentee landowner neglecting the ditches adjacent to their property.

Utilities
There is a strong majority feeling in our village which does not wish to see any extension of street
lighting.

42

Page 140



APPENDIX 2

6. Protection, Enhancement and Development

Protection, Enhancement & Development

Great Totham is a village surrounded by larger settlements in an area where there is continuing
demand for housing. The Survey undertaken as part of the Neighbourhood Planning process showed
that residents cherish its rural character, open landscape and views. There was an acceptance of
modest developments within settlement boundaries with an emphasis on housing for young families
and older residents.

The aim must be to provide housing for expressed local needs while retaining the character which
brings people to live here. All age groups need to be catered for if our village is to thrive. Our public
consultation has given a clear steer on this.

Great Totham is not a conventionally pretty village. Its growth has been haphazard and as a result
buildings of various periods and styles jostle together. But that does not mean it is without character
and, even if that character is hard to define, it is precious to those who live here and it needs to be
cared for. This requires interest and vigilance on the part of planners, elected representatives and
residents.

Guidance to Residents

. When thinking of changes to property exteriors and details — building, garden or frontage —
consider their visual impact.

. Consider the scale, character of changes, how they may affect neighbours and the
immediate vicinity.

New Development

. Should respect the natural and historic environment, village character and landscape in its
scale, design and materials.

. ‘In fill’ should be appropriate in scale and appearance and show ‘Good Manners’ to existing
neighbours.

o Existing properties should be considered for sympathetic restoration or adaptive re-use.

. Landscaping and open space for new schemes should be as important as building finishes.

. Impact of development on identified and valued views must be considered.

. Development should be designed so that lighting minimises the impact on the ‘dark skies’ of
Great Totham.

. Vehicle and pedestrian access should be open and linked carefully to existing networks.

. Development should avoid worsening traffic issues in problem areas such as that adjacent to

the village school and on the B1022.

43

Page 141



APPENDIX 2

. e e &

Consideration of the effect on wildlife and the natural environment of all development
should be automatic with particular reference to green spaces, woodland and wildlife
corridors.

44

Page 142



APPENDIX 2

e {

7. Thanks and acknowledgments
This Village Design Statement has been produced by a Sub-Group of the Great Totham
Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group, Kevin Bennett, Andrew Boorman, Martin Flook, Roy
McPherson, Paul Mutton & Graham Thorne. Thanks also to Chris Bowden, Navigus Planning for

advice and support, Clive Potter, Parish Clerk, for advice and information and Philip Smith for historic
photographs.

45

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3
Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan

Decision Statement [DRAFT]
xx July 2022

MALDON DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Summary

Following an Independent Examination and Referendum, Maldon District Council is publicising its decision to ‘make’
the Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan (“the Plan”) part of the Maldon District Development Plan, in accordance
with Regulation 19 of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended). The policies in the
Plan can now be given full weight when assessing planning applications that affect land covered by the Plan.

1. This Decision Statement and the Plan can be viewed on the Maldon District Council website:
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning policy/8112/community led planning and neighbourhood plans

3

Background

Neighbourhood Area

2. The Great Totham Neighbourhood Area was approved by Maldon District Council on 7 November 2016. The
Neighbourhood Area is the parish area for Great Totham, except for the area covered by the North
Heybridge Garden Suburb LDP allocation.

Submission

3. Great Totham Parish Council submitted the Neighbourhood Plan proposal and supporting documentation to
Maldon District Council for Examination in May 2021 Maldon District Council held a 6 week consultation (the
Regulation 16 consultation) on the document from Friday 24 September and 5pm Friday 05 November 2021.

Independent examination

4. The District Council, with the agreement of Great Totham Parish Council, appointed an Independent
Examiner, Mr Andrew Ashcroft, to review whether the Plan met the Basic Conditions required by legislation
and should proceed to referendum.

5. The Examiner’s Report was received on 15 March 2021. The Report concluded that, subject to making the
modifications proposed by the Examiner, the Plan met the Basic Conditions set out in legislation and should
proceed to a Neighbourhood Planning referendum. The District Council agreed with this view, subject to
some minor modifications to correct errors.

6. The District Council also agreed with the Examiner that the Neighbourhood Area (the parish of Great
Totham, excluding that area covered by the North Heybridge Garden Suburb LDP allocation) would be an
appropriate area within which to hold the referendum.

Referendum

7. On 31 March 2022 the District Council made the decision to accept the Examiner’s recommendations and
that the Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan (as modified by the Examiner’s Report) should proceed to
referendum.

8. The District Council published a decision statement on 1 April 2022 to confirm that the Great Totham

Neighbourhood Plan, as modified, met the Basic Conditions and other legal requirements.

Page 145


https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8112/community_led_planning_and_neighbourhood_plans/3
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8112/community_led_planning_and_neighbourhood_plans/3

10.

APPENDIX 3
The referendum was held on 9 June 2022. The Referendum asked the question “Do you want Maldon
District Council to use the neighbourhood plan for Great Totham to help it decide planning applications in
the neighbourhood area?”

89% of those who voted were in favour of the Plan.

Referendum results

Yes 483
No 58
Rejected Ballots 1
Total votes cast 542

Decision and reasons

11.

12.

13.

14.

Under section 38A (4)(a) of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended), the District Council
is required to make a neighbourhood plan if more than half of those voting have voted in favour of the Plan.
89% of the votes cast were in favour of this Plan.

Under section 38A(6), a council is not subject to this duty if the making of the Plan would breach, or would
otherwise be incompatible with, any EU obligation or any of the Convention Rights (within the meaning of
the Human Rights Act 1998). Maldon District Council has assessed that the Plan, including its preparation,
does not breach, and is not incompatible with these obligations.

On 6 July 2022 Maldon District Council made the decision, in accordance with section 38A(4) of the Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended), to ‘make’ the Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan

Any person aggrieved by the decision to make the Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan may apply to the High
Court for permission to apply for judicial review of the decision to make the Plan. Any such application must
be made promptly and no later than 6 weeks after the date on which the Plan was made.

Neighbourhood Development Plan status

15.

Planning applications in the Neighbourhood Area must be considered against the Great Totham
Neighbourhood Plan, as well as existing planning policy such as the approved Maldon District Local
Development Plan (2017) and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Availability of documents

16.

17.

This Decision Statement and the Plan can be viewed on-line at:
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning policy/8112/community led planning and neighbourhoo

d plans/3

This information has also been brought to the attention of people who live, work or carry out business in the
neighbourhood area.

Page 146


https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8112/community_led_planning_and_neighbourhood_plans/3
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8112/community_led_planning_and_neighbourhood_plans/3

Agenda Item 13

REPORT of

DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE
to

COUNCIL

6 JULY 2022

PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER — CONSULTATION REVIEW

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Members’ approval to continue with the
legislation of dog control in specified places within the district under the Public Space
Protection Order (PSPO) section of the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act
2014. This legislation will be valid for three years.

2. RECOMENDATIONS

(1) that Members acknowledge the contents of the report;

(i) that the proposed legislation of dog control in specified placed within the
District under the Public Space Protection Order section of the Anti-Social
Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014, be adopted without further
amendment as detailed within Section 5 below and APPENDIX 3.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 On 20 October 2014, the Government implemented the Anti-Social Behaviour and
Policing Act 2014 (“the Act). The purpose of the Act is to give local authorities and
the Police more effective powers to tackle Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB), providing
better protection for victims and communities and the environment. Amongst these
new tools and powers are Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs), which provide
Councils with a flexible power to implement local restrictions to address a range of
anti-social behaviour issues in public places

3.2 On 1 February 2019 the Council implemented a PSPO to manage dog control across
the District. The order ran until 28 February 2022 as each PSPO must be reviewed
and undergo full consultation to determine if it should continue.

3.3 This particular order allows for authorised Officers to enforce against dog fouling by
way of issuing Fixed Penalty Notices to those failing to ‘pick up’ after their dogs. It
also allows for Officers to request dogs be placed on a lead when necessary to
prevent nuisance and excludes dogs from our playsites and enclosed sports pitches.
It further stipulates seasonal conditions in areas detailed below where dogs are
required to be on a lead at all times. PSPOs can be enforced by Police Officers,
authorised PCSOs, Council Officers and other designated groups, including officers
under the Community Safety Accreditation Scheme.

Our Vision: Sustainable Council — Prosperous Future

Page 147



4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

521

5.3

5.3.1

54

541

5.5

551

THE CONSULTATION PROCESS

The consultation to extend our Public Space Protection Order for Dog Control by a
further three years lasted for six weeks and was undertaken 20 April — 31 May 2022.

Full consultation was undertaken with the public during this period, with particular
regard given to the rights of freedom of expression and the rights of assembly. The
Chief Officer of Police, the Police and Crime Commissioner and those potentially
affected by the proposed order, who were contacted directly and provided with
details of how they could view a copy of the proposed order, notifying them of how
long they have to make representation.

THE CONSULTATION RESULTS

As a Local Authority we want to continue to promote responsible dog ownership and
to provide authorised Officers with the tools and powers to educate and enforce
where necessary. Having reviewed the responses received to the consultation, as
detailed in APPENDIX 1 (to follow) together with the complaints received and use of
the tools and powers over the last three years it is deemed necessary to seek to
continue with the following existing controls:

Dogs On Leads By Direction

It is proposed that authorised Officers continue to be given the power to request that
owners place their dogs on a lead if their behaviour is having or is likely to have a
detrimental effect on the local community. This equips authorised Officers witnessing
behaviour of this nature with the powers to address the nuisance at the time. The
order shall apply to all land within the administrative area of the Council which is
open to the air to which the public are entitled or permitted to have access with or
without payment.

Dogs On Leads at all times

There are specific public places within the district that are of a more sensitive nature,
it is proposed that in these places dogs will continue to be required to be on a lead at
all times. These are:

. Cemeteries, Heybridge, Burnham-on-Crouch and Maldon (APPENDIX 2 —
Maps 1, 2 and 3)
Dogs On Leads at all times (seasonally 1 April -30 September)

There are specific public places with a seasonally high footfall within the District
where it is proposed that dogs will continue to be required to be on a lead at all times
between 1 April and 30 September. These are:

. Two areas in Promenade Park, Maldon; the lake and café area and the path
to Byrhtnoth (APPENDIX 2 — Map 4)
. Riverside Park, Burnham-on-Crouch sports pitches and adjacent quay front

(APPENDIX 2 — Maps 5)
Dog Exclusion Areas

It is recognised by Maldon District Council that children’s play sites are required to be
safe and clean areas for children to use freely. As a result all its Council managed

Page 148



play sites have been identified as dog free zones. It is proposed to reinforce this
request and extend this District wide by continuing to include all children’s play sites
as dog exclusion areas with the Public Space Protection Order. It is further proposed
that any enclosed sports pitches, such as tennis courts, bowls lawns etc also
continue to be designated as dog exclusion areas. This does not apply to Assistance
Dogs.

6. CONCLUSIONS

6.1 The consultation for the review of the existing Dog Control PSPO has been correctly
adhered to which will enable Maldon District Council, with Members’ approval, to
extend the existing dog control measures by a further three years.

7. IMPLICATIONS

(@ Impact on Customers — The proposals have been introduced as a
consequence of complaints and customer demand. This is the opportunity for
customers to demonstrate their support or opposition to dog control in the
district.

(i) Impact on Equalities — The consultation document will be made available to
as many user groups as possible.

(iii) Impact on Risk — The consultation results in emphatic demonstration against
introduction of greater dog control.

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) — The costs will be minimal, consideration
will be given to the cost for new signage. There is also the cost of advertising
the Order.

(V) Impact on Resources (human) — There will be some resource requirement

in promoting the consultation document.

(vi) Impact on the Environment —

Background Papers:
Anti-social Behaviour and Policing Act 2014
Home Office Statutory Guidance 2017

Enquiries to: Damien Ghela, Lead Specialist: Community.

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

Dog Control Public Space Protection Order —
Consultation Results

1. Areyou

isitor to Maldon District - 41 (9%)

A resident of Maldon

District 440
A visitor to Maldon District 41 DA resident of Maldon Disinict: 440 (91%)
2. Are you a dog owner? [lINo: 171 (36%)
Yes 310
No 171

[CIYes: 310 (64%)

3. Do you agree that dog owners who fail to pick up their dog's excrement should be issued with a

e [CDon't know: 3 (1%)
N

Yes 474

No 4

Don't know 3 [l Yes: 474 (99%)

4. Do you agree with the requirement that dogs must be placed on a lead when directed to do so by
an authorised Council Officer? This would apply across the whole District.

[No: 66 (14%) [C]Don't know: 30 (6%)

Yes 385
No 66
Don’t know 30 [JYes: 385 (80%)

Page 151



APPENDIX 1

5. Do you agree that dogs should be excluded from all children’s play sites across the District?
[CJDon't know: 25 (5%)

[ENo: 78 (16%)

Yes 378
No 78
Don’'t know 25

6. Do you agree that dogs should be excluded from enclosed sports pitches across the District?

CDon't know: 24 (5%)

No: 96 (20%
[ (20%)

Yes 361
No 96
Don’tknow 24 [CIYes: 361 (75%)

7. Do you agree that dogs should be kept on a lead at all times in the Council's cemeteries in Maldon,

Heybridge and Burnham on Crouch?
[ENo: 39 (8%)

Yes 431
No 39 [dyes: 431 (90%)

Don’t know 11

8. Do you agree that dogs should be kept on a lead at all times between 1

April and 30 September each year around the lake in Promenade Park?
[EINo: 96 (20%)

Yes 361

No 96

Don't know 24

[JYes: 361 (75%)

Page 152



APPENDIX 1

Do you agree that dogs should be kept on a lead at all times between 1 April and 30 September
each year along the extension to the Brythnoth statue in Promenade Park

[CJDon't know: 34 (7%)

Yes 330
No 117 [CJyes: 330 (69%)

Don't know 34

10. Do you agree that dogs should be kept on a lead at all times between 1 April and 30 September

each year at Riverside Park and the Quay Front - specifically in Riverside Park Sports Pitches,

Millfields?
Yes 280
No 118 [JYes: 280 (59%)

Don't know 78
DND: 118 (25%)

11.Do you agree that dogs should be kept on a lead at all times between 1 April and 30 September

each year at Riverside Park and the Quay Front - specifically at the Quay Front
adjoining Riverside Park?

[ENo: 118 (25%)
Yes 292

[Yes: 292 (61%)

No 118

Page 153



APPENDIX 1

Don't know 71

12. Do you agree that dogs should be kept on a lead at all times between 1 April and 30 September
each year at Riverside Park and the Quay Front - specifically in Burnham Quay Front (West)

Don't know: 77 (16%)
(I

Yes 287
No 114 DNC-: 114 (24%)

[IYes: 287 (60%)

Don't know 77

13. Do you agree that dogs should be kept on a lead at all times between 1 April and 30 September
each year at Riverside Park and the Quay Front - specifically in Burnham Quay Front (East).

Don't know: 79 (16%)
O

[ENo: 110 (23%)

Yes 291

No 110

Yes: 291 (61%
O (61%)

Don't know 79

Page 154



APPENDIX 2

Maldon Cemetery PSPO Map 1

Legend

D = Dogs on leads at all times

Page 155



PPPPPPPPP

Page 156



APPENDIX 2

Map 3 - Burnham Cemetery PSPO

| | = Dogs on leads at all times

]

Page 157



8GT abed

bmmenade Park Dogs PSPC Map 4

Legend

o IA+B = Dogs on leads at all times

between 1* April and 30" September

APPENDIX 2



6ST abed

APPENDIX 2

Burnham on Crouch Quay section ‘C’ Dogs PSPO — Map 5

Legend
: = Dogs on leads at all times




09T abed

APPENDIX 2

Riverside Park Dogs PSPO — Map 5

Legend

—

= Dogs on leads at all times




APPENDIX 2

Burnham on Crouch Quay section ‘D’ Dogs PSPO — Map 5

Legend
[—1 =Dogs on leads at all times

T9T abed




This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT

APPENDIX 3

4

| )

MALDON DISTRICT
COUNCIL

The Anti-Social, Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014

THE MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL (DOG CONTROL)
PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER 2019

Maldon District Council (in this order called “the Council”’) hereby makes the following order under
section 59 of the 2014 Act

The Order comes into force on the ** July 2022 for a period of 3 years until ** July 2025.

General provision:

1.

A person who fails to comply with any obligation imposed by this order is guilty of a criminal
offence by virtue of section 67(1) of the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 and
liable to fine of summary conviction not exceeding level 3 of the standard scale.

Obligations on person with dogs:

2.

Fouling

If within the administrative area of the Council a dog defecates at any time on land to which the
public or any section of the public has access, on payment or otherwise, as or right or by virtue of
express of implied permission and a person who is in charge of the dog at the time fails to remove
the faeces from the land forthwith, that person shall be guilty of an offence unless

- They have reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or
- the owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the land has consented
(generally or specifically) to his failing to do so.

Dog on leads

2.1 A person in charge of a dog on any land to which the public are permitted access within the
District of Maldon must put their dog on a lead when requested to do so by an authorised Officer
unless:

- they have reasonable excuse for failing to do so; or
- the owner, occupier or other person or authority having control of the land has consented
(generally or specifically) to his failing to do so.

2.2 A person in charge of dog must keep that dog on a lead at all times in Maldon, Heybridge &
Burnham cemeteries in the areas edged blue on Maps 1,2 and 3 unless;

- they have reasonable excuse for failing to do so.

2.3 A person in charge of a dog must keep that dog on a lead at all time in Promenade Park, Maldon
— around the lake and by the cafés and on the path to the statue of Brythnoth as delineated on
Map 4 in blue and marked areas A and B. This applies between the dates of 01 April — 30
September only unless;

Page 163



DRAFT

APPENDIX 3

- they have reasonable excuse for failing to do so.

2.4 A person in charge of a dog must keep that dog on a lead at all times in Burnham on Crouch —
Quay Front West, Quay Front East and Quay Front adjoining Riverside park as delineated on
Map 5 in blue and marked areas B, C and D. This applies between the dates of 01 April — 30
September only, unless;
- they have reasonable excuse for failing to do so.

3. Dog Exclusion Areas
Areas where dogs are excluded at all times are:

3.1 All children’s play site to which the public have access within the District of Maldon.

3.2 Enclosed sports pitches which are artificially surfaces or any enclosed bowling green within the
District of Maldon

The COMMON SEAL of
MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL
Was affixed in the presence of:-

Authorised Signatory

Authorised Signatory

Page 164



Agenda Item 14

REPORT of

DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE
to

COUNCIL

6 JULY 2022

APPOINTMENT TO OUTSIDE BODIES AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE WORKING
GROUP

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To address Member appointments for the two outside bodies and vacancy on the
Corporate Governance Working Group as detailed in the report.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

(1) that a Member representative be appointed to the Safer Essex Group for the
remainder of the municipal year;

(i) that an Independent Group substitute be confirmed to sit on the Police, Fire
and Crime Panel.

(iii) that one Member is appointed to the vacancy on the Corporate Governance
Working Group.

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 The Safer Essex Group have written to officers and requested a Member
representative. Terms of reference for the group are attached at APPENDIX A.

3.2 There has not been a member representative from Maldon for some years and if
Members approve the appointment, this will also be included in statutory annual
appointments going forwards.

3.3 Additionally, at the Statutory Annual Council meeting on 12 May 2022, Members
appointed Councillor M S Heard as representative for The Police, Fire and Crime
Panel and Councillor Heubner as a substitute. The Panel have unfortunately advised
that they are governed by political balanced legislation, and that the named substitute
needs to be from the same political group as Councillor Heard, and so we are
seeking Member confirmation for the Substitute position.

3.4 On 12 May 2022, Councillor Mrs P A Channer was appointed to sit on the Corporate
Governance Working Group as part of the wider Statutory Annual appointments but
is also allocated a seat in her position as Leader of the Council. This means there is
a vacant seat on the Working Group. Current Working Group members are shown in
the table below:

Our Vision: Sustainable Council — Prosperous Future

Page 165



4.1

5.1

To Appoint Appointed Members

Leader of the Council Leader of the Council
Leader of the Opposition Leader of the Opposition
And six Members of the Council R G Boyce, MBE

C Mayes

E L Stephens

Mrs J C Stilts

Mrs M E Thompson

One vacancy

CONCLUSION

The report addresses two Member outside body appointments and working group
vacancy following recent officer contact

IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES

Outside Bodies and Working Group representation links to outcomes across the
Corporate Plan and all strategic themes. Attendance helps to contribute to
Performance and Efficiency, with Maldon District Council (MDC) working with
partners.

IMPLICATIONS

(@ Impact on Customers — None.

(i) Impact on Equalities — None.

(iii) Impact on Risk — Attendance limits risk, as MDC are aware of what is going

on in wider partner context.

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) — None.

(V) Impact on Resources (human) — Officer and member time taken to attend
Local Government and Outside Bodies.

(vi) Impact on the Environment — None.

(vii)  Impact on Strengthening Communities - Working with partners, some of
the bodies link to community themes.

Background Papers: None.

Enquiries to: Cheryl Hughes, Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager.

Page 166




APPENDIX A

Safer Essex Terms of Reference (adopted March 2022)

1. Introduction

Safer Essex has the strategic lead for co-ordinating the partnership response to community
safety issues and initiatives across Essex, Southend and Thurrock. Safer Essex acts as the
county-wide Strategy Group for community safety.

2. What we are trying to achieve (purpose)

Safer Essex brings together key partner organisations / stakeholders to work jointly and
effectively to facilitate a collaborative approach between agencies and partnerships in
delivering the following community safety outcomes:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

V.

Vi.

Prevent crime and anti-social behaviour

Prevent fires from happening

Understand and tackle hate crime

Understand and tackle violence, including violence against women and girls

Improve community confidence in the multi-agency response to community safety
issues

Continue to deliver effective Community Safety Hubs across Greater Essex

3. How we will go about it (objectives)

Safer Essex will:

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Oversee and coordinate community safety activity across Greater Essex

Carry out a high-level, overarching county-wide Strategic Assessment which
brings together the assessments carried out by local community safety
partnerships (CSPs).

Develop a county-wide Community Safety Agreement, in alignment with the
priorities developed by local community safety partnerships and other strategic
partnerships (as outlined in section 9).

Raise awareness of current and planned activities of Community Safety
Partnerships and networks and identify opportunities for added value

Share information and learning to improve community safety
Ensure awareness and understanding of new legislation and initiatives

Work with other boards, sharing information and complementing their work and
agendas

Scrutinise progress in delivering all five assets within the Crime Prevention
Strategy, and provide the governance for assets 4 (“We will support Safer Essex
to realise partnership capabilities and capacity”) and 5 (“We will support ECVS to
unlock community potential, develop and deliver community led solutions”)

Support the delivery of the “Live Safe” workstream within the Essex Fire
Prevention Strategy.

4. Scope

These Terms of Reference set out:

¢ the functions of Safer Essex (6)
o the expectations of its members (7)

o the form and governance arrangements of Safer Essex (8)

Adopted on 11/05/2022

Page 167



APPENDIX A

¢ the relationship with other strategic groups and boards (9)

e a summary of the policy context in which Safer Essex operates

5. Assumptions and Context:

5.1. The outcomes that Safer Essex is working to deliver are complementary to the Police
and Crime Plan and Fire and Rescue Plan. Safer Essex will also lead on the delivery
of asset 4 of the Crime Prevention Strategy (“We will support Safer Essex to realise
partnership capabilities and capacity”).

5.2. Members are accountable to each other for the effective operation of the group and to
their own partnerships and organisations for the effectiveness of their contribution and
actions.

5.3. Community engagement happens locally through CSPs and partners’ engagement
strategies, with nominated leads representing community views and issues at Safer
Essex.

5.4. Sub-groups will be created on a functional or task and finish basis to consider and
deliver specific time bounded programmes of work or activity as required.

5.5. Safer Essex will work with a variety of other Boards and Partnerships (as shown in
section 9).

0. Functions

6.1. Safer Essex has a role to bring together and facilitate research and intelligent analysis
of data and information about needs and what works across partner agencies.

6.2. The Essex Community Safety Network (ECSN) is an important practitioner group and
has a direct link to Safer Essex, helping set and deliver the work programme for Safer
Essex and the agendas of meetings.

7. Expectations of members
7.1. Attendance

Members are expected to show regular attendance at meetings, and to nominate
suitable substitutes from their organisation when appropriate. Members have a
responsibility to update their own organisation about discussions and decisions at
Safer Essex meetings.

7.2. Cooperation and joint working

Members are expected to approach Safer Essex with a willingness to cooperate with
partners and enter into joint projects where this would be of benefit to Greater Essex
and where the organisation has capacity to contribute the necessary resources. This
might also include a willingness to share information.

Members should respect the views of others at all times and should operate in the spirit
of transparency, openness and collaboration.

7.3. Responsibility

Members should have regard to the key outcomes that Safer Essex is seeking to
achieve and to Police and Crime Plan and Fire and Rescue Plan outcomes in their own
strategic plans.

Members should also have regard to Safer Essex when attending other meetings and
be willing to feed back.

Adopted on 11/05/2022

Page 168



APPENDIX A

8. Governance

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

Accountability

Safer Essex is accountable to another body or person only where functions and
resources have been-specifically assigned to be delivered through Safer Essex’s
governance.

Arrangements for Chairing

The Chair and Vice Chair will be elected from membership of the group, with an
election for both roles every two years.

Frequency of meetings

Safer Essex will meet every eight weeks. Additional extraordinary meetings will be
convened as required.

Agenda and papers

Agendas shall be circulated five clear working days prior to the meeting. It is preferable
that all reports be circulated at the time of the agenda but, where that is not possible,
they should be circulated as soon as possible after the agenda has been circulated.

Minutes and actions will be recorded at all meetings (sensitive and confidential material
will be excluded as agreed by the chair and vice-chair).

Proceedings of meetings

Where Safer Essex determines that a virtual or hybrid meeting is the most appropriate
form of meeting in any circumstances, Safer Essex shall be entitled to hold that
meeting as a virtual or hybrid meeting.

Safer Essex may adjourn or otherwise regulate its meetings as it deems fit.
Voting and decision making

Matters arising at any meeting of Safer Essex shall be decided by consensus wherever
possible. Where this is not possible, such matters will be decided by a majority of
votes. In the event of equality of votes, the following shall apply:

¢ Those dissenting shall provide feedback as to why they are not willing to support
the proposal placed before Safer Essex

e The party seeking the support of Safer Essex shall take into account the feedback
received and, where possible, present an alternative proposal to Safer Essex at
the same meeting for a further vote

¢ Where it is not possible to present an alternative proposal to the same meeting,
and provided there is no urgency (as determined by the Chair) for the matter to be
determined at that meeting, the proposal (or an alternative) shall be re-submitted
at the next meeting of Safer Essex

¢ Where a proposal that is re-submitted is subsequently supported by Safer Essex
with a majority vote, it shall be passed

o Where a proposal is re-submitted and again is not supported by a majority vote,
there may be no further submission of the proposal unless it is substantially
modified (as determined by the Chair)

Quorum
No decisions are to be taken by Safer Essex if the meeting is not quorate.

At least one third of those organisations listed in section 11 below must be represented
in order for the meeting to be quorate.

Adopted on 11/05/2022

Page 169



APPENDIX A

8.8. Review of Terms of Reference

The terms of reference will be reviewed no less frequently than every two years.

8.9. Secretariat

Co-ordination and secretariate will be provided by Essex County Council’'s Equalities
and Partnerships Team. The team will

Arrange meeting dates and venues (where appropriate)
Guide the formation of the agenda with the Chair
Monitor and follow up actions from meetings

Issue all agendas and papers

Produce minutes of the meetings and circulate with any follow up papers

Additional activity will be supported from within partner resources.

9.  Work with other Boards and Groups

9.1. Safer Essex will liaise and work with other bodies, to include:

Essex Chief Executives Association

Essex Children’s Partnership Board

Essex Criminal Justice Board

Essex Leaders and Chief Executives Group

Essex Partners

Essex, Southend and Thurrock Safeguarding Adult Boards
Essex, Southend and Thurrock Safeguarding Children Boards
Health and Wellbeing Boards

Essex and Thurrock Prevent Delivery Groups and Southend Violence &
Vulnerability Strategic Group
Reducing Reoffending Board

Sexual Abuse Strategic Partnership
Southend, Essex and Thurrock Domestic Abuse Board
Strategic Hate Crime Partnership

Violence and Vulnerability Roundtable and Operational Group

9.2. Safer Essex will link closely with the following boards and partnerships, to understand
and be able to influence and support their work:

Essex Criminal Justice Board

Essex Southend and Thurrock Reducing Reoffending Board
Southend, Essex and Thurrock Domestic Abuse Board
Sexual Abuse Strategic Partnership

Strategic Hate Crime Partnership

The below diagram represents the relationship between Safer Essex and other Boards and
Partnerships.

It will be a core function of the Chair and Vice Chair to ensure this coordination is effective.

Adopted on 11/05/2022

Page 170



APPENDIX A

Safeguarding Children Essex Leaders &

Safeguarding , g
Adus Board () B (42 i e
I rou|
.PO|ICE, Fire & Strategic Hate Strategic i
Crime Panel (SET) Crime Prevention Independent
Essex Children’s Partnership (SET) Advisory Essex Chief
Partnership ESCB Stay Safe Community Safety Group (SET) Independent Executives
Groups (x4) Partnerships (x13) Advisory Groups Association (SET)
Comms  DAHealth \1arac (x14)
Southend jlak Gro{ Subgroup  \anagers 2
Channel Panel Meeting DA Housing Sexual Abuse
\ /Steering Group Strategic
: Community Safety DA Substance Partnership (SET)
SouthendVlo!e.:nl:e Network (SET) SET / Misuse Steering
& Vuln.emb»hty D 4§ DA Reference Group
Strategic Group \ Safer Essex Shnestic / Group Children &
7 Abuse _— — YoungPeople MAPPA
: j SET)
CONTEST v\ Analytics Project Group (SET)
Board (SET) e '\ Task Group
se Management
Action Team ———_, DAPermatrator DA Strategic Safer Essex R'oads
Thurrock Prevent : I it P hip
Delivery Group E P Victim & Witness Delivery Group Groin SEiataglc Grolp
ssex Prevent Action Team (SET)
\ Delivery
G .
Thurrock o \ Wom?ns Servuce/ /' |0M Strategic Essex Substance
Essex Channel ActloriTeam . Oversight Board . L
Channel Panel Youth Justice (SET) Misuse Commissioning
Panel Action Team Stedp
Violence & Community Safety
ln;f:;:?xg;re Vulnerability Treatment QciEfe o
Roundtable (SET) \ Violence & Health & Justice Requirement Board l
) thlnerability Commissioning Group (SET)
Health & Wellbeing Operations group SET) (SET) Communities Essex Partners
Boards (x14) Network _»

10. Policy Context for Safer Essex

10.1. The Crime and Disorder Act was enacted in 1998 and places a statutory duty on all
local authorities together with their partnership agencies to develop and deliver a
Community Safety Strategy.

10.2. All local authorities have a statutory responsibility to engage in the delivery of the
community safety agenda through membership of Community Safety Partnerships.

10.3. There are six main topics for action within the Crime and Disorder Act:
i. Preventing young people from committing crime.

ii. Combating anti-social behaviour and encouraging increased community
involvement in tackling local crime and disorder.

iii. Tackling racially motivated crime.

iv. Speeding up the criminal justice system.

v. Protecting people from sex offenders, violent offenders and drug misusers.
vi. Providing consistency and clarity in sentencing.

It is envisaged that Safer Essex will focus on i, ii & iii, whilst iv, v & vi will be covered by
Essex Criminal Justice Board and the Reducing Reoffending Board.

10.4. Section 17 of the Act requires local authorities (and all partnership agencies) to identify
community safety implications in all their activities and states, “Without prejudice to any
other obligation imposed upon it, it shall be the duty of each authority to which the
section applies to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of
the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all it reasonably can to prevent
crime and disorder in its area.”

10.5. Legislation in 2005/06 and Government’s ongoing review of anti-social behaviour and
the community safety role of local authorities, has broadened Section 17
responsibilities to include anti-social behaviour.

10.6. The Police & Justice Act 2006 introduced additional minimum standards to ensure join
up between decisions taken at a county level (e.g. by the Police, Fire and Crime
Commissioner) and those taken locally. This includes convening a County Level
Strategy Group to help co-ordinate the work of the individual CSPs (at a district level)

Adopted on 11/05/2022

Page 171



APPENDIX A

and for that group to produce an annual Community Safety Agreement (based on the
strategic assessments prepared by the strategic groups for each of the local
government areas in the county) that sets out county wide priorities and opportunities
for cross-border working and feeds into district partnership plans.

11. Membership

The following organisations shall have membership of Safer Essex.

Member organisations are expected to be represented at meetings by someone with
decision-making power, who may be accompanied by another officer.

Organisations

Association of Secondary Heads in Essex

Clinical Commissioning Groups (currently represented by Mid and South Essex CCG)
Essex Alliance

Essex Association of Local Councils

Essex Council for Voluntary Services

Essex Council for Voluntary Youth Services

Essex County Council (Children’s Services, Public Health, relevant Member)
Essex County Fire and Rescue Service

Essex Police

Essex Police, Fire & Crime Commissioner

HMP Chelmsford

Local Authorities and CSPs, to be represented by a combination of relevant member,
CSP Chair, and or CSP manager (maximum of 2, with exact representation to be
determined locally)

National Probation Service
Policing Institute for the Eastern Region, Anglia Ruskin University
Violence & Vulnerability Unit

Youth Offending Services from Essex, Southend and Thurrock

Partnership Boards

Essex Criminal Justice Board

Essex Southend and Thurrock Reducing Reoffending Board
Safeguarding Adults Boards in Essex, Southend and Thurrock
Safeguarding Children Boards in Essex, Southend and Thurrock
Southend, Essex & Thurrock Domestic Abuse Board

Strategic Hate Crime Prevention Partnership

Adopted on 11/05/2022

Page 172



Agenda Item 15

REPORT of

DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE
to

COUNCIL

6 JULY 2022

CHANGE OF DATE TO STATUTORY ANNUAL COUNCIL 2023

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To revise the Statutory Annual Council meeting to allow time for members
onboarding and our Constitutional processes.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That the Statutory Annual Council for 2023 is moved to Thursday 18 May 2023.

3. SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES

3.1 The schedule of meetings was agreed under emergency powers on the 24
December 2021, following an abandoned Council meeting on 16 December 2021,
and included a date for Statutory Council of Thursday 11 May 2023.

3.2 Full District elections take place on Thursday 4 May 2023, and new Members
officially take office on Monday 8 May 2023.

3.3 With this in mind, we suggest 18 May for the 2023 Statutory Annual meeting of the
Council, to allow time for groups to be confirmed and nominations put forwards, and
in line with our Constitutional deadlines.

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 It is suggested that the Statutory Annual meeting of the Council date for 2023 is
moved to Thursday 18 May 2023.

5. IMPACT ON STRATEGIC THEMES

5.1 Good meeting scheduling supports the performance and efficiency strategic theme

6. IMPLICATIONS
(1) Impact on Customers — None.
(i) Impact on Equalities — None.

Our Vision: Sustainable Council — Prosperous Future

Page 173



(iii) Impact on Risk — Proposed date reduces risk that nominations will not be
received in time and promotes smooth meeting running. There will be a
leader-designate rather than a leader for one extra week.

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) — None.

(v) Impact on Resources (human) — Proposed date gives officers and members
enough time to onboard new members and make meeting arrangements.

(vi) Impact on the Environment — None.

(vii)  Impact on Strengthening Communities - None.

Background Papers: None.

Enquiries to: Cheryl Hughes, Programmes, Performance and Governance Manager.

Page 174



Agenda Iltem 18

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 175



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Statutory Annual Council - 12 May 2022
	Minutes
	 Appendices 1 and 2
	FINAL Minutes - Appendix 2


	12 Making the Great Totham Neighbourhood Plan
	Appendix 1
	1 introduction
	Purpose of the plan
	Policy context
	Essex and Southend-on-Sea Waste Local Plan (WLP)
	Essex Minerals Local Plan 2014 (MLP)

	Monitoring the Plan

	2 local context
	History of Great Totham
	Profile of the community today
	Great Totham’s assets
	Main issues and challenges in Great Totham

	3 vision and objectives
	Vision for Great Totham
	Objectives for the plan
	Housing and design
	Environment
	Transport and movement
	Community activities


	4 spatial strategy and housing need
	Housing need

	5 high quality arcadian design
	Layout
	Style and materials

	6 environment
	Views
	View 1: View of Strowling Wood and Mountains Grove from Braxted Lane
	View 2: View from Beacon Hill in Goat Lodge Road
	View 4: View from the footpaths close to Spickets Wood

	Green wildlife corridors and wildlife-friendly design
	Recreational disturbance
	Environmental impact of development

	7 TRANSPORT and movement
	Car parking
	Walking and cycling
	Public and community bus provision

	8 community activities
	9 non-policy actions
	APPENDIX A GREAT TOTHAM VILLAGE DESIGN STATEMENT
	APPENDIX B LOCAL VIEWS
	APPENDIX C CIRCULAR WALKS AND CYCLE ROUTES

	Appendix 2
	1. Introduction
	Purpose of the VDS
	Consultation Process
	Status of the Village Design Statement and Relation to Relevant Planning Documents
	Summary

	2. Great Totham Village
	Historical Context
	Landscape Character
	An ‘Arcadian’ Landscape
	Environment and Habitats

	3. The Settlement Areas
	Settlement history and character
	Great Totham South
	Great Totham North
	Beacon Hill
	Broad Street Green
	The outlying areas

	4. Village Style and Elements Explained
	Building Styles
	Material Finishes to Buildings
	“Good Manners”
	Boundary Treatments
	Buildings Listed and of Special Interest
	Village Facilities, Community and Leisure
	Commerce, Industry and Employment

	5. Highways and Infrastructure
	Transport and Roads
	Pedestrians and Cycling
	Parking
	Street Furniture
	Verges and Ditches
	Utilities

	6. Protection, Enhancement and Development
	7. Thanks and acknowledgments

	Appendix 3

	13 Public Space Protection Order - Consultation Review
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	14 Appointment to Outside Bodies and Corporate Governance Working Group
	Appendix A

	15 Change of Date to Statutory Annual Council 2023
	18 Legal Action
	19 Commercial Options for Princes Road - Update



